
AGENDA
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR MEETING

April10,2017

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

CALL ORDER 5:00 p.m., Board Room, District Office
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California

ROLL CALL Directors LaMar,Matheis, Swan, Withers and President Reinhart

NOTICE

If you wish to address the Board on any item, including Consent Calendar items, please file
your name with the Secretary. Forms are provided on the lobby table. Remarks are limited to

three minutes per speaker on each subject. Consent Calendar items will be acted upon by one

motion, without discussion, unless a request is made for specific items to be removed from the

Calendar for separate action.

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARI)

I A. 'Written:

B. Oral:

2. ITEMS TOO LATE TO BE IZED

Recommendation: Determine the need to discuss and/or take immediate action on item(s)

WORKSHOP

J PRO

AND CHARGES

Recommendation: That the Board review and provide comments on the

proposed 2017-18 Operating Budget and proposed rates and charges.



IRWD Board of Directors' Meeting
April10,2017
Page2

CONSENT CALENDAR Resolution No.2017-10

4. D
MEETINGS AND EVENTS

Recommendation: That the Board rutifylapprove the meetings and events

for Steven LaMar,Mary Aileen Matheis, Peer Swan, Douglas Reinhart and

John V/ithers, as described.

o ARD

Recommendation: That the minutes of the March 27,2017 Regular Board

Meeting and the March 28,2017 Adjourned Regular Board Meeting be

approved as presented.

6. BAKER V/ATER TREA

Recommendation: That the Board authoÅze the General Manager to execute

a construction contract in the amount of $189,356 with Tropical Plaza

Nursery, Inc. for the Baker Water Treatment Plant Landscaping, project

0s027.

AL
FACILITIES

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to accept

Heritage Hill's construction contract with FYDAQ in the amount of $155,316

for project 07169.

ACTION CALENDAR

RT

AGREEMENT RENEV/AL

Recommendation: That the Board approve renewal of the District's annual

Oracle Software Maintenance and Support Agreements, and additional
licenses and support, in the amount of $926,000 effective Ìi4ay 30,2017
(ULA) and May 22,2017 (EBS), respectively'

FOR END
JLINE 30" 2017

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute

a new Audit Services Contract with Davis Farr LLP for the fiscal year ending

June 30, 2017 at a cost of $53,040 plus possible single audit fees not to exceed

$2,600.

Items 4-7

5

17

8

IT9



IRWD Board of Directors'Meeting
April10,2017
Page 3

ACTION CALENDAR - Continued

10. TURTLE E PIPELINES ILITATION BUDGET ADDITION
AND CONSULTANT SELECTION

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the addition of projects 07888 for

$309,000 and 07889 for $309,000 to the FY 2016-17 Capital Budget; and

authorízethe General Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement

in the amount of $135,809 with Psomas for the Turtle Ridge Pipelines

Rehabilitation, projects 07888 and 07889.

11 YD
ERS

Recommendation: That the Board approve Contract Change Orders Nos. 3, 4

and 5 inthe amounts of $382,074.72, $116,550.97 and578,052.67,

respectively, for the Technology Drive and Laguna Canyon Road Capital

Recycled Water Facilities, project 01015.

12. RATIFI TION OF EMtrNT FOR ONE-Ytr,AR PROGRAM TO

GS
FACILITIES

Recommendation: That the Board ratify approval of IRWD's agreement with
Buena Vista Vy'ater Storage District for a one-year program to augment

recharge using Stockdale West Recharge Facilities.

OTHER BUSINESS

pursuant to Government Code Section 54g54.2,members of the Board of Directors or staff may ask

questions for clarification, make brief announcements, make brief reports on his/her own activities.

The Board or a Board member may provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual

information, request staff to report back at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter, or direct

staff to place amatter of businèss on a future agenda. Such matters may be brought up under the

General Manager's Report or Directors' Comments'

13. A. General Manager's RePort

AD
CT

B. Directors'Comments



IRV/D Board of Directors'Meeting
April10,2017
Page 4

OTHER BUSINESS - Continued

13. C. Closed Session:

1) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL RELATIVE TO EXISTING
LITIGATION - Govemment Code Section 54956.9(dX1) IRWD v. OCWD
Case No.30-201 6-00858584-CU-WM-CJC), and

2) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT - Pursuant to Government Code

Section 54957(b).
Title: Legal Counsel

D. Open Session

E. Adjourn

Availability of agenda materials: Agenda exhibits and other writings that are disclosable public records distributed to all

or a majority of the members of the lrvine Ranch Water District Board of Directors in connection with a matter subject

to discussion or consideration at an open meeting of the Board of Directors are available for public inspection in the

District's office, 15600 Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California ("District Office"). If such writings are distributed to

members of the Board less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, they will be available from the District Secretary of the

District Office at the same time as they are distributed to Board Members, except that if such writings are distributed one

hour prior to, or during, the meeting, they will be available at the entrance to the Board of Directors Room of the District

Office. The Irvine Ranch Vy'ater District Board Room is wheelchair accessible. If you require any special disability-

related accommodations (e.g., access to an amplified sound system, etc.), please contact the District Secretary at (949)

453-5300 during business hours at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the scheduled meeting. This agenda can be

obtained in alternative format upon written request to the District Secretary at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the

scheduled meeting.



ApnI I0,2017
Prepared by: C. Smithson / J. Davis
Submitted by: C. Clary
Approved by: Paul C;"Ø Ø.

BOARD V/ORKSHOP

FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 OPERATING BUDGET
AND PROPOSED RATES AND CHARGES

SUMMARY:

The proposed Fiscal Year (FY) 2017-18 Operating Budget for kvine Ranch Water District is
$148.7 million, representing an increase of $1.7 million, or l.2Vo, when compared to the

Operating Budget for FY 201,6^17.

The goal of the District's budgeting process is to appropriately fund the resources required to
provide excellent service to its customers as cost-efficiently as possible. Over the past few years,

the District has aggressively pursued reductions in expenses to offset uncontrollable expenses

such as pass-through rate increases from outside agencies on which the District depends for the
purchase of water and the treatment of sewage and biosolids. With significant additional capital
facilities in development in FY 2016-17,the recofirmended increases in the operating budget also

reflect additional expenses associated with operating or planning for the operation of those

facilities. The proposed FY 2011-18 budget reflects the full cost of operating the Baker'Water
Treatment Plant in the individual line items with the reimbursement to IRV/D for 767o of the
operating expenses by the Baker Plant partners shown as a "reimbursement from Baker Plant

Partners" below.

The proposed increase over last year's budget is driven primarily by the following:

Primary Drivers Expenses
(millions)

Increase in regular labor:
- Cost of Living Adjustment
- Promotions/upgrades/merit
- Proposed additions

$1.6

Increase in overtime:
- Blended increase for after hour services to all systems

$0.3

Increase in employee benefits:
- Public Employees Retirement System and health insurance

$0.4

Decrease in purchased water:
- Reduced imported water purchases offset by pass-through

rate increases anticipated from other agencies

($o.l¡

Reduction in electricity costs:
- 8.0Vo rate decrease from budget
* Increased electricity usage (kwh) due to:

o Baker Plant includes 1007o of costs of which IRWD is
responsible for 247o

- Shifts in well production

($o.z¡

3
Cs-FY 17-18 Fiscal Year Operaung Budget and Proposed Rates.docx



Board Workshop: Fiscal Year 201,7-18 Operating Budget and Proposed Rates and Charges

ApnI 10,2017
Page2

Increase in permits, licenses and fees:
- Property taxes for land within Palo Verde lrrigation District $0.6

Decrease in Orange County Sanitation District repairs and

maintenance based on OCSD's two-year budget for operating
revenues

($0.s;

Increases in IRV/D repairs and maintenance:
- Baker Plant; includes l00%o of costs
- Additional nine Natural Treatment System sites

$1.0

Increase in legal fees:
- Litieation and additional support

$1.1

Increase in alarm and patrol services
- Daytime patrol services

$0.4

Conservation Rebates - tactical incentives and Always Water Smart
reimbursements (will be offset by over-allocation revenue and a

reduction in the conservation reserve)

($1.0¡

All other increases, less than $250,000 each ($0.1)

Reimbursement from Baker Plant Partners ($1.0)

Total proposed budget increases in FY 2017-18 $1.7

The District's rate-setting strategy provides for volume fluctuations in commodity sales without
forcing rate increases to make up for the reduced sales. Rate increases are driven by operational
expenses, which are a direct result ofhigher pass-through expenses from outside agencies and

not a result of reduced commodity sales.

Rate increases are necessary to provide for cost of service equity. In the kvine Ranch Rate Area,
the proposed adjustment to rates include a low volume increase of $0.15 per hundred cubic feet
(ccf) and a base commodity rate increase of $0.05 per ccf, with no change per month to the
service charge for water and sewer. The Los Alisos Rate Area will be transitioned on to the

IRWD rates this year, utilizing a portion of the revenue generated from the future property sale

to establish rate parity. The commodity rate-setting methodology continues to utilize the four
tiers beginning with a low volume tier, a base rate and two over-allocation tiers.

Based on the recommendation, a typical residential customer within the kvine Ranch rate area

will experience an increase of $1.10 or 2.27o, from $51.10 to $52.20 per month and the average

residential customer in the Los Alisos Rate Area who will be transitioning onto the IRWD rate

structure this fiscal year, will experience a decrease of 57 .52 or t2.67o from $59.72 to $52.20.

Staff recommends the Board review and provide comments on the initial Operating Budget and

changes to the District's rates and charges for further review by the full Board at its workshop on

April 24,2017. Staff also intends to present Proposition 218 notices at the Aprll24,201.7 Board
meeting.



Board'Workshop: Fiscal Year 2017-18 Operating Budget and Proposed Rates and Charges

Aprll10,2017
Page 3

BACKGR OUND:

The initial proposed Operating Budget, attached as Exhibit "A", has been organized into l0
major functional areas, including separate sections for proposed general plant purchases and

labor changes:

o Assumptions;
. €onsolidated Operating B
o Revenues and Expenses by System;
o Non-operating Sources and Uses of Funds;
o Current and Proposed Residential Rates;
o Budgeted Revenue Summary by System;
o Budgeted Cost of Water by System;
o Individual tabs with Major Goals, proposed organization chart and expense budget by

Department;
. General Plant; and
o Summary of Labor and proposed changes.

Year over Year Change in System Operating Resuts:

Below is a table with a year over year comparison identifying the change by system with the rate

increases necessary to meet operating demands:

System Requirements
(in thousands)

FY 20lGt7

FY 2011-t8

Total Change to offset

Revenue Applied:

Change from Prior Year

Rate Increases

Over Allocation

Other sources

Total Additional Revenue

Net

Treated Sewer Recycled
Conserve/

NTS
Total

Capital &
Non-Oper.

915,4A7

$74,649

s51234.

$51J80 '

szt972

$21J63

$tzgzt

$9,131

$160,634

s157,323

$18592

$21593

($1sse)

$801

$546

$0

$1,199

($1,108)

$758 (Íi546) $209

$0 $$ : ($:oo;

$36

$2,890

(s2926)

$3,311

$186

$nD
(s2926)

($300)

($7s8) $s46 ($zæ; ($2,AlO; ($331l)

$0 $0 $0 $0, $0 l

Budqet Based Rate Structure:

The District moved to abudget-based rate structure in 1991 and initially established the

over-âllocation use tiers to incentivize wâter conservation. This approach immediately
resulted in a decrease of water consumption that exceeded lÙVo and laid the groundwork for
the efficient use of water by IRV/D customers that is firmly established today. The rate

structure continues to align excessive u$e with a marked increase in rates over the base rate

to fund costs including recycled water eonversions which helps reduce the District's need to



Board Workshop: Fiscal Year 2077-18 Operating Budget and Proposed Rates and Charges
April10,2017
Page 4

purchase expensive imported water, the District conservation efforts, and urban runoff
treatment (Natural Treatment System) which is a byproduct of wasteful water usage. The
rate structure is based on the cost of service to provide water to each tier.

The budget-based rate structure is designed to promote conservation and the District's rate-
setting process utilizes approved legislation included in Chapter 3.4 (sections370-374) of the
California'Water Code that provides for the ability to add a conservation charge for uses beyond
the reasonable use basic allocation. The proposed FY 2017-18 Operating Budget and
recommended rate increases follow these guidelines. The District's rate-setting process provides
for the determination of the nexus between the revenue generated from the proposed rates and
the costs driving those rates, and between the rates and the estimated benefit from the additional
associated costs.

Over-allocation revenue can fluctuate significantly from year to year; weather is typically the
least predictable factor. During wet years, over-allocation revenue is reduced while dry years
generate more as consumption increases. Consistent with the District's practice, as weather and
consumption cannot be predicted, this fund is to be considered cyclical for use over a three- to
five-year period. The proposed FY 2017-18 operating budget includes prioritized programs and
expenditures that will atilize the fund and provide a benefit to the District during drier than
normal years.

On an annual basis, over-allocation revenue provides for many programs that preserve the
District's water conservation approach established years ago. Specifically, over-allocation
revenue / funds provide for annual expenses that include:

Conservation programs and incentives that provide a blended benefit to all over-
allocation users;

Outreach from District staff through programs with local schools and through 
'Water

Smart;
Conservation outreach efforts that include identifying and working with Excessive and
'Wasteful tier users; and

Operation, maintenance, and management of NTS sites, which are designed to treat the
runoff from over-irrigation, with additional sites added annually.

The District's rate-setting methodology utilizes four tiers that include a low volume tier, a base

rate and two over-allocation tiers. In the table below, staff has provided the detailed
methodology for allocating costs to the budget-based rates consistent with Proposition 218 and

Article X requirements. The allocation of costs associated with the tiers follow:

a

a

a



Board'Workshop: Fiscal Year 2017-18 Operating Budget and Proposed Rates and Charges

Apnl10,2017
Page 5

Pumping Surcharges:

The District's pumping surcharges were reviewed in detail through the Embedded Energy Study

during the rate-setting process for FY 2015-16. The study provides a nexus between the

surcharge and the cost associated with moving the water to higher elevations. The proposed

rates are shown in the table below:

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Planned operating expenses in the FY 2017-18 Proposed Operating Budget reflect an increase of
$1.7 million from the adopted Operating Budget for FY 2016-17. The budget and staff's
proposed rate increases were reviewed at Finance and Personnel Committee meetings on March
7, March 23,2017 and April 4,2011 . It is expected that the proposed rate increases will result in
a contribution to the enhancement and replacement funds of approximately $3.9 million and

524.7 million for water and sewer, respectively.

Tiers Low Volrrrrc Base Rate Ineffïcient \Mastefirl

l,owest Cost Source of 'Water

District V/ide Conservation

Melded Cost of Water

Blended Cost of Baker and lrrport
loaded Cost of Inported Water
Conservation and NTS
Proposed Rate per Tier (July 1)

FY 2016-17 Rates by Tier
Change

Percent

8t.32
$0.04 $o:04

$1.66

$0.04

$2.9s

$r.10

$0.04

$3,40

$8.62

$1.36

sl.21,

$1.70

$1.65

$4.09

$4.01

$12.06

$12.01

$0.1s
12.47o

$0.05
3.O7o

$0.08
2.OVo

$0.0s
0.4Vo

$1.75 millionUse of Sinkins Fund for Rate PariW

Zones Current d

L .21

Potable

Tnne I
Znne 5 5

Znne 3 65 $0.64

.22

.36TnneB

A
d

$0.21

.34

Tnne C $0.49 $0.47



Board V/orkshop: Fiscal Yeat 2017-18 Operating Budget and Proposed Rates and Charges
Apnl 10,2017
Page 6

This item is not a project as defined in the California Environmental Quality Act Code of
Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15378.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Finance and Personnel Committee on March 7,2017,Ma¡chZ3,
2017 and April 4, 2017.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT TTTE BOARD REVM,W AND PROVIDE COMMENTS ON THE PROPOSED
FY 2017.18 OPERATING BUDGET AND PROPOSED RATES AND CHARGES.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit'oA" - Consolidated Operating Budget for All Departments FY 2017-18



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT 

OPERATING BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 

“PROPOSED” 

April 10, 2017 



 



Assumptions as of April 10, 2017 
Fiscal Year 2017-18 

The goal of the District’s budgeting process remains to fund the resources required to provide 
services to the District’s customers as cost-efficiently as possible.  Over the past several years, 
the District’s operating budget has aggressively pursued reductions in expenses to offset 
uncontrollable expenses such as pass-through rate increases from outside agencies on which 
the District depends for the purchase of water and the treatment of wastewater and biosolids.  
Pass through rate increases from outside agencies this year were partially offset by reductions 
in the cost of purchased water associated with a full year operation of the Baker Water 
Treatment Plant in FY 20-17-18.  The FY 2017-18 recommended rate increase is primarily 
associated pass through rate increases from outside agencies.     

This document is a preliminary summary of the major assumptions driving the development of 
the operating budget for FY 2017-18 for input by the Finance and Personnel Committee and 
the Board.   

I. REVENUES

Growth Estimates:

Residential development growth included both apartments and single family homes for
FY 2017-18.  The unit estimate is based on the most current projections received from
the major developers throughout the service area.  Current estimates identify
approximately 3,400 mixed units coming on line in FY 2017-18.  As a result, the growth
factor for residential development was estimated at 2.0% for FY 2017-18.

The District experienced an increase in commercial volume which is helping to meet a
return of the previously lost revenue due to the economy.  Current development
projections for the commercial/industrial sector identify 118 acres of development
occurring in FY 2017-18 as well as 98 acres developing in the current fiscal year.  Staff
included a 2% growth rate for commercial and industrial development for FY 2017-18.
Revenue assumptions used to estimate sewer revenue match the assumptions included
for potable water.

OPERATING BUDGET 

Page 1 of 6



Assumptions as of April 10, 2017 
Fiscal Year 2017-18 

OPERATING BUDGET OPERATING BUDGET 

FY 2017-18 Estimate for Operating Revenue Sources, by Customer Type (in thousands): 

Customer Type Potable Sewer Recycled Total

Residential 43,233$  36,799$  630$      80,662$    

Commercial 10,583 8,671 649 19,903    

Industrial 5,504 4,150 72 9,726   

Public Authority 4,160 1,640 0 5,800   

Construction/Temp. 1,240 798 2,038   

Fire Protection 4,172 0 4,172   

Landscape Irrigation 4,728 17,910 22,638    

Agriculture Irrigation 1,029 1,704 2,733   

Over Allocation  8,326 805 9,131   

Non Rate Generated 0 520 0 520  
Total 82,975$  51,780$  22,568$    157,323$  

The projected revenue sources and their respective percentage of the total are presented in 
the graph above.  Total Residential, Landscape, Commercial, and Industrial revenue 
constitute over 84% of the total operating revenues for both water and sewer.   

Residential
58%

Commercial
14%

Industrial
7%

Public 
Authority

6%

Construction/
Temp.

2%

Fire 
Protection

6%

Landscape 
Irrigation

6%

Agriculture 
Irrigation

1%

Potable and Untreated Water Revenue

Residential
51%

Commercial
13%

Industrial
6%

Public 
Authority

2%

Constructio
n/Temp.

25%

Landscape 
Irrigation

2%

Agriculture 
Irrigation

1%

Sewer and Recycled Water Revenue

Page 2 of 6



Assumptions as of April 10, 2017 
Fiscal Year 2017-18 

 

 

OPERATING BUDGET OPERATING BUDGET 

 
The “Other” category in the chart above includes revenue from the following sources in 
the order of total estimated receipts: 
 

 Construction/Temporary accounts 
 United States Department of the Navy contribution for the Shallow Ground 

Water Unit identified as Irvine Desalter Project (IDP) Reimbursements 
 Recycled water sales to the Santa Margarita Water District 
 Green Acres Project (GAP) recycled water sales 
 Recycled Water Conversion Loan payments 

 
II.        OPERATING EXPENSES 

Notable expected changes in operating expenses are addressed below by system and 
function: 

A.    Treated Water 

The District continues to make efforts to do its part in encouraging its customers to 
conserve even though the area received significant rainfall during the past winter 
season.  The District intends to continue encouraging conservation through its rate 
structure, which provides an incentive for customers to limit water use to their base 
allocation and customers have responded well to this messaging.    

The FY 2017-18 budget anticipates no increase in use from FY 2016-17.  The 
assumption is for a normal year of rainfall, consistent with the assumption last year.  
The District is projecting potable and untreated sales for FY 2017-18 to be 54,340 
acre feet (AF), as compared to a budget of 54,385 AF in the prior year. 

The sources used to meet potable sales, their respective cost per AF, inclusive of 
labor, electricity, chemicals, etc., and their respective share of the total water 
purchased are identified in the graph: 

Page 3 of 6



Assumptions as of April 10, 2017 
Fiscal Year 2017-18 

 

 

OPERATING BUDGET OPERATING BUDGET 

 

Groundwater Production 

The major assumptions associated with the respective sources of water include the 
following: 

 The Replenishment Assessment (RA) in FY 2016-17 was $400 per AF 
and the rate used in FY 2017-18 is $445 per AF, an increase of 11%.  
The District’s basin production percentage (BPP) is set at a maximum of 
70%, per the OCWD / IRWD Annexation Agreement executed in 2013. 

 The Dyer Road Well Field (DRWF) pumping costs: 
o Actual energy usage will be factored with a rate increase of 6%. 
o Chemical expense is relatively flat.  

 Primary changes in costs include a $45 per AF estimated rate increase 
for RA for the Irvine Desalter Project (IDP), the Potable Treatment Plant 
(PTP), and the Deep Aquifer Treatment System (DATS). 

Treated Water – Metropolitan Water District (MWD) and Municipal Water 
District of Orange County (MWDOC) 

 MWD is expected to increase its treated and untreated rates again on 
January 1, 2018 by 4%.    

 Staff assumes no substantial change to the costs associated with the 
IRWD Reservoir Management Systems. 

 Los Alisos customers will be merged into the Irvine Ranch rate area 
effective July 1, 2017.  Rate parity will be established through the use of 
a sinking fund by the sale of property initially contributed to the District 
which the District has then added significant value to by the recording of 
significant entitlements including the soon to be recorded final tract map.   

5%

49%

14%

4%

14%

2%

12%

Projected Cost of Treated System 
FY 2017-18

Imported; $1,421/AF

Well Field; $578/AF

Deep Aquifer
Treated; $697/AF

Wells 21 & 22;
$909/AF

Baker WTP;
$1,116/AF

Other Wells;
$648/AF

Irvine Desalter
(Potable); $719/AF

Page 4 of 6



Assumptions as of April 10, 2017 
Fiscal Year 2017-18 

 

 

OPERATING BUDGET OPERATING BUDGET 

Untreated Water 

The sources for untreated water for FY 2017-18 will include purchased water.   

 MWDOC purchases, Native Water and SAC water is expected to be 
used to meet all untreated demands.  MWDOC purchases have 
significantly decreased as a result of a full year operation of the Baker 
Water Treatment Plant.  Due to the rainfall in FY 2016-17, native water is 
expected to increase from 1,000 AF to 3,827 AF.   

 Any MWDOC rate increases discussed above also apply to purchases 
for the untreated system.  

B.    Recycled Water 

Customer demands for the recycled system will increase slightly from the prior year 
due primarily to customer usage.  Total recycled demand is estimated at 28,364 
AF, an increase of 1,360 AF from the FY 2016-17 budget.  Sources are as follows: 

 Production and storage generated from operations at the Michelson 
Water Recycling Plant (MWRP) and Los Alisos Water Recycling Plant 
(LAWRP) are expected to provide 22,300 AF. 

 The Irvine Desalter will provide 3,540 AF net of water lost through 
treatment. 

 The recycled water system is expected to purchase 3,091 acre-feet of 
supplemental water from the untreated system. 

 
C.    Salaries and Benefits 

 Each year, staff prepares a labor budget based upon the total positions 
in the organization chart, expected merit and cost of living increases, and 
promotional allowances.   

o Each salary is identified and included in January and then 
projected forward adding merit increases that are based on prior 
review ratings where necessary in order to reach a starting July 
salary base.     

o New positions and promotions are added and all salaries are 
projected forward on a month by month basis. 

o In December, a COLA and promotional factor are applied to all 
salaries - Assumed at 2.0% and 0.9%, respectively. 

o Although staffing is below the current budget, staff anticipates all 
positions being occupied by FY 2016-17.  

Regular Salaries and Wages 
FY 2016-17    $31,258  
New positions                 723 

COLA               453  

Merit/Other               421  

 FY 2017-18   $32,855  

Page 5 of 6



Assumptions as of April 10, 2017 
Fiscal Year 2017-18 

 

 

OPERATING BUDGET OPERATING BUDGET 

 
The following table identifies the current and proposed contribution of the 
District toward employee benefits.   
 

Additional Contributions Provided by the District 

 FY 16-17 FY 17-18 
PERS Employer Contribution 19.3% 19.3% 
PERS in Excess of ARC 5.7% 5.7% 
Combined Total 25.0% 25.0% 

   
District  Direct 401A Match  0.2%  0.3%  
401A Matching Contribution of 3% 2.3% 2.3% 

 

III. USE OF OTHER FUNDS   

A.    Over Allocation Revenue 

Over allocation revenue is used to offset the following expenses: 

o The cost associated with additional imported water purchases;  

o Customers who receive the $2 low volume capacity rebate on the fixed 
service charge; 

o Budgeted conservation expenses; and 

o Urban runoff (NTS) and San Joaquin Marsh maintenance expenses. 

Total conservation expense is expected to meet over allocation revenue in 
FY 2017-18.  The conservation fund is projected to be approximately $10.0 
million at the end of FY 2017-18. 

 
B.    Enhancement Fund User Rate Component 

The current enhancement fund contribution for both the water and sewer system 
for FY 2016-17 was a combined $1.45 per month ($0.70 for water and $0.82 for 
sewer) for the average residential customer.  There was no increase was built into 
these rates for FY 2017-18.  It is estimated that the fund balance will be 
approximately $30.0 million at the end of FY 2017-18. 

C.    Replacement Fund User Rate Component 

The current replacement water service charge is $2.10.  The sewer service charge 
is $9.31per month for the average residential customer in FY 2017-18, no increase 
from the prior year.  It is estimated that the fund balance will be approximately 
$200 million as of the end of FY 2017-18.  It is expected that the 4 years of 
increased funding totaling $3.00 per month per customer will adequately cover the 
cost of debt associated with the project.    

  

 

Page 6 of 6



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

CONSOLIDATED OPERATING BUDGET FOR ALL DEPARTMENTS FY 2017-18
(in thousands)

Expense Category / Name

2015-16 
Actual

2016-17   
YTD    

12/31/16

2016-17 
Original 
Budget

2017-18 
Proposed 
Budget

Incr/(Decr) %

Regular Labor $26,123 $13,309 $31,258 $32,855 $1,597 5.1%
Salaries & Benefits Overtime Labor 1,787 936 1,758 2,037 279 15.9%

Contract Labor 2,675 823 1,347 1,470 123 9.1%
Employee Benefits 7,787 4,226 16,938 17,366 428 2.5%

Salaries & Benefits Total $38,372 $19,294 $51,300 $53,727 $2,427 4.7%
Water 29,028 18,699 36,234 35,287 (948) -2.6%
Electricity 11,794 6,122 14,829 14,631 (198) -1.3%

Water & Utilities Fuel 505 273 566 627 61 10.8%
Telecommunication 527 257 502 566 65 12.9%
Other Utilities 158 72 178 171 (7) -4.0%

Water & Utilities Total $42,012 $25,423 $52,309 $51,282 ($1,027) -2.0%
Chemicals 2,101 1,105 3,133 3,074 (60) -1.9%
Operating Supplies 757 460 1,478 1,475 (2) -0.2%
Printing 211 69 265 276 12 4.4%

Materials & Supplies Postage 596 286 579 594 15 2.7%
Permits, Licenses and Fees 723 931 1,219 1,797 578 47.4%
Office Supplies 77 37 128 109 (19) -14.8%
Duplicating Equipment 188 89 225 192 (33) -14.7%
Equipment Rental 85 30 129 114 (15) -11.6%

Materials & Supplies Total $4,739 $3,007 $7,156 $7,632 $476 6.7%
Rep & Maint OCSD & Other 15,744 7,120 14,400 13,852 (548) -3.8%
Rep & Maint IRWD 7,531 3,675 8,726 9,683 957 11.0%
Insurance 781 499 1,004 1,021 17 1.7%
Legal Fees 479 647 455 1,565 1,110 244.0%
Engineering Fees 520 217 736 980 244 33.1%

Professional Services Accounting Fees 79 86 95 95 0 0.0%
Data Processing 2,980 1,642 3,027 2,898 (130) -4.3%
Personnel Training 795 394 1,101 1,247 146 13.2%
Personnel Physicals 27 15 51 51 0 0.0%
Other Professional Fees 3,115 1,173 4,393 4,207 (186) -4.2%
Directors' Fees 140 72 156 168 12 7.7%

Professional Services Total $32,190 $15,543 $34,144 $35,766 $1,622 4.8%
Mileage Reimbursement 165 82 132 140 8 6.0%
Collection Fees 12 1 21 12 (9) -42.9%
Election Expense 30 110 145 145 0 0.0%
Safety 157 42 83 108 25 29.8%
Alarm and Patrol Services 113 36 170 520 350 205.9%

Other Biosolids Disposals 113 59 374 246 (128) -34.1%
Commuter Program 141 59 156 156 0 0.0%
Computer Backup Storage 25 6 24 12 (12) -50.0%
Contract Meter Reading 1,319 673 1,350 1,390 40 3.0%
Other 30 0 12 12 0 0.0%
Conservation 2,294 (645) 2,965 2,012 (953) -32.1%

Other Total $4,398 $425 $5,432 $4,753 ($679) -12.5%

TOTAL $121,712 $63,692 $150,341 $153,161 $2,820 1.9%

Less: Reimbursement from Baker Partners ($3,408) ($4,498) ($1,090)

Grand Total $121,712 $63,692 $146,933 $148,663 $1,730 1.2%

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 1



Water Sewer Recycled Consolidated
Revenue:
Commodity 41,013$ -$           15,132$ 56,145$      
Service 33,636   51,780   6,631 92,047
Over Allocation $8,326 - 805 9,131
Rate Stabilization - - - - 
Total Revenues 82,975$ 51,780$ 22,568$ 157,323$    
Contribution to Enhancement 
and Replacement  Funds 

(8,474)    (18,991)  (1,120)    (28,586)       

Net Revenues 74,501$ 32,789$ 21,448$ 128,737$    

Expenses:

Cost of Water 43,120$ -$           9,190$   52,310$      
Operations 11,098   11,284   6,838 29,219
Water Banking - - - - 
OCSD - O&M - 12,580 - 12,580
Total Direct 54,218$ 23,863$ 16,028$ 94,109$      

Customer Records and Collections 2,435 1,107 885 4,427
General & Admin Expense 8,899 7,087 3,445 19,431
Total Indirect 11,334$ 8,194$   4,330$   23,858$      

General Plant 623 732 284 1,639
Marsh/NTS/Conservation 8,326 - 805 9,131

Total Expenses 74,501$ 32,789$ 21,447$ 128,737$    

Net Operating Position 0$          0$          0$          0$               

(in thousands)

REVENUES AND EXPENSES BY SYSTEMREVENUES AND EXPENSES BY SYSTEM

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 2



FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 Change
Non-operating Revenue:

Property Taxes $47,689 $52,500 $4,811

Investment Income 2,686 4,200 1,514

Connection Fees 22,000 26,000 4,000

Real Estate Income 12,954 13,400 446

Other Income 6,500 8,000 1,500

Total Revenue $91,829 $104,100 $12,271

Non-operating Expenses:

Interest Expense $24,606 $28,300 $3,694

Real Estate Expense 6,834 7,300 466

Other Expenses 1,000 2,000 1,000

Total Expense $32,440 $37,600 $5,160

Net Sources & Uses $59,389 $66,500 $7,111

                SUMMARY OF SOURCES AND USES

(in thousands)

NON-OPERATING

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 3



Before Rate Adjustment: Potable Wastewater

Current Residential Rates: Water (1)  Sewer (2) 

Low Volume $1.21
Commodity Rate $1.65

Residential Service $10.30 $23.20

Operations $7.50 $13.07
Replacements $2.10 $9.31
Enhancements $0.70 $0.82
Total Service Charge $10.30 $23.20
Commodity (12 ccf's) $17.60
Current Monthly

Proposed Residential Rate Adjustment:  
Low Volume $1.36 12% $1.02

Base Commodity Rate $1.70 3% $1.38

Operations $7.50 $13.07

Replacements $2.10 $9.31

Enhancements $0.70 $0.82

Total Service Charge $10.30 $23.20

Commodity  (12 ccf's) $18.70

Proposed Monthly

Current Monthly

Difference

Change %

(1)   Water - District Average usage assumes 12 ccf's per month.
(2)   Sewer - District average usage assumes 6-10 ccf for lowest 3 months.

2.2%

$51.10

$1.10

$52.20

Irvine Ranch 

$51.10

CURRENT AND PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL RATES

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 4



Usage Proposed

FY 2016-17 Change Rate Inc. FY 2017-18

Water

Service  23,517$             (215)$            ‐$              23,302$          

Enhancement 2,077 84 ‐  2,161

Replacement 6,231 82 ‐  6,313

Pumping Surcharge 775 (28) ‐  747

Miscellaneous 975 138 ‐  1,113

Commodity 41,832 (1,620) 801 41,013

Over Allocation 

Revenue/Fund
10,092 (1,802) 36 8,326

Rate Stabilization / Non 

Rate Generated
‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

85,499$             (3,361)$        837$             82,975$          

AF Sales 54,385 54,340

User Type
Residential 42,525$             (62)$              770$             43,233$          

Commercial 12,144 (1,683) 122 10,583

Industrial 5,011 390 103               5,504

Public Authority 3,659 433 68  4,160

Construction/Temp. 1,280 (40) ‐  1,240

Fire Protection 4,263 (91) ‐  4,172

Landscape Irrigation 5,006 (211) (67)  4,728

Agriculture Irrigation 1,519 (295) (195)  1,029

Over Allocation Revenue 10,092 (1,802)  36 8,326

Rate Stabilization / Non 

Rate Generated
‐  ‐                ‐  ‐ 

85,499$             (3,361)$        837$             82,975$          

BUDGETED REVENUE SUMMARY BY SYSTEM

(in thousands)

POTABLE REVENUE 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 5



Usage Proposed
FY 2016-17 Change Rate Inc. FY 2017-18

Sewer

Service  31,114$           826$                 ‐$                     31,940$          

Enhancement 1,332               51                      ‐                       1,383

Replacement 17,287             321                    ‐                       17,608

Miscellaneous 430                  (101)                  ‐                       329

Reimbursements 520                  ‐                     ‐                       520

Rate Stabilization 551                  (551)                  ‐                       ‐                       

51,234$           546$                 ‐$                     51,780$          

User Type

Residential 36,347$           452$                 ‐$                     36,799$          

Commercial 8,670 1                        ‐                       8,671

Industrial 3,569 581                    ‐                       4,150

Public Authority 1,577 63                      ‐                       1,640

Reimbursements 520 ‐                     ‐                       520

Rate Stabilization 551 (551)                  ‐                       ‐                       

51,234$           546$                 ‐$                     51,780$          

BUDGETED REVENUE SUMMARY BY SYSTEM

(in thousands)

SEWER REVENUE

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 6



Usage Proposed
FY 2016-17 Change Rate Inc. FY 2017-18

Recycled

Service  4,784$             479$             ‐$              5,263$           

Enhancement 341                  9                    ‐                     350

Replacement 748                  22                  ‐                     770

Pumping Surcharge 446                  (198)              ‐                     248

Commodity 15,353             887               (1,108)          15,132

Over Allocation Revenue 1,929               (1,124)           ‐                     805

Rate Stabilization 300                  (300)              ‐                     ‐                      

23,901$           (225)$            (1,108)$        22,568$        

AF 27,004 28,364

User Type

Residential 1,134$             (428)$            (76)$              630$              

Commercial 409                  258               (18)                649

Industrial 40                     32                  ‐                     72

Public Authority ‐                        ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      

Landscape Irrigation 19,531             (832)              (789)              17,910

Recycled Loans ‐                        ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      

Agriculture Irrigation ‐                        1,929            (225)              1,704

Construction/Temp. 557                  241               ‐                     798

Over Allocation Revenue 1,929               (1,124)           ‐                     805                

Rate Stabilization 300                  (300)              ‐                     ‐                      

23,901$           (225)$            (1,108)$        22,568$        

BUDGETED REVENUE SUMMARY BY SYSTEM

(in thousands)

RECYCLED REVENUE

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 7



Acre 
Feet Total

Cost / 
AF

Acre 
Feet Total

Cost / 
AF

Acre 
Feet Total

TREATED

Purchased from MWDOC 7,755 9,397$    $1,212 2,960 4,207$      $1,421 (4,795)  (5,190)$  

Dyer Road Well Field 27,680 14,238 $514 28,000 16,176 $578 320      1,938     

Other Wells 650 402 $618 700 454 $648 50        52          

Deep Aquifer Treatment System 7,680 5,301 $690 8,000 5,576 $697 320      275        

Lost to Production (2%) (154) (160) (6)         

Wells 21 & 22 Desalter 2,400 2,432 $1,013 2,400 2,181 $909 -       (251)       

Lost to Production (15%) (360) (360) -       

Irvine Desalter Project 4,644 3,611 $778 6,540 4,702 $719 1,896   1,091     

Lost to Production (15%) (697) (981) (284)     

Baker WTP 5,783 5,338 $923 7,611 8,497$      $1,116 1,828   3,159     
LA Well Water 432 432 39 $90 -       39          
Total Shrinkage (3,309) (2,626) 683      
Total Irvine Ranch Potable 52,504 40,719$  52,516 41,831$    12 1,112$   

UNTREATED

Purchased from MWDOC 4,103 2,921$    $712 1,000 841$         $841 (3,103)  (2,080)$  
Native Water 1,000 212 $212 3,827 811 $212 2,827   599        
Santiago Aqueduct Commission 264 195 $739 175 148 $843 (89)       (47)         

Transfer to RW System (3,402) (2,109) $620 (3,091) (2,009) $650 311      100        
Total Shrinkage (84) (87) (3)         

Total Untreated 1,881    1,219$    1,824    (209)$        (57)       (1,428)$  

54,385  41,938$  54,340  41,623$    (45)       (315)$     

Assumptions:
OCWD -  replenishment assessment - $445/acre foot.

MWDOC - Includes identified increases that will be effective January 1, 2018 from MWD.

COST OF WATER

BUDGETED COST OF WATER

FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 Change

(in thousands)

Total Potable and Untreated 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 8



FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 Change

Acre 
Feet Total

Cost / 
AF

Acre 
Feet Total

Cost / 
AF

Acre 
Feet Total

Groundwater 0 -$            -$  - -$  -$ -       -$           

Irvine Desalter Project 4,165 2,724 $654 4,165 2,904 $697 - 180 

Lost to Production (625) (625) - 

MWRP / LAWRP Production 22,300 4,983 $223 22,300 4,919 $221 - (64) 

Transfer from Untreated System 3,402 2,109 $620 3,091 2,009 $650 (310) (100) 

Total Shrinkage (2,238) (567) 1,671   

Total Recycled 27,004  9,816$    28,364  9,832$      1,360   16$        

81,389  51,754$  82,704  51,455$    1,316   (299)$     

Assumptions:

COST OF WATER

Total Cost of Water for Billed 
Usage

OCWD -  replenishment assessment - $445/acre foot.

MWDOC - Includes identified increases that will be effective January 1, 2018 from MWD.

    BUDGETED COST OF RECYCLED WATER

(in thousands)

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 9



 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 10



 
GENERAL MANAGER’S OFFICE 

 
OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

 
 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 

 
Program Description 
 
The General Manager’s Office implements the policies established and direction provided by the 
Board of Directors and, in so doing, provides overall direction to staff to complete that effort.  The 
office also includes Government Relations which develops and advocates for policies at the 
federal, state and local levels that promote a reliable high quality and cost effective water supply 
for IRWD customers, and demonstrates the efficient use of resources.  The Government Relations 
staff represents IRWD’s policies and provides technical expertise to the legislative process, 
particularly on issues of water recycling, water use efficiency, water rates, water supply reliability 
and governance, among others. 
 
The General Manager’s office also: 
 

 Provides direct services to and communications with the Board of Directors; 
 Produces and distributes Board, Board Committee and Ad Hoc Committee meeting packets; 
 Schedules all Board, Board Committee, Ad Hoc Committee and annual/special independent 

corporation meetings; 
 Produces the minutes of all Board meetings; 
 Maintains all Board resolutions; 
 Schedules other meetings and functions on behalf of the Board members and makes travel 

arrangements, as needed; 
 Maintains records of all inter-agency agreements, deeds and easements; 
 Maintains records for the various independent corporations; 
 Promotes beneficial inter-governmental relations; 
 Manages and coordinates the legal resources utilized by the District; 
 Responds to, or directs response to, all media inquiries; and, 
 Responds to all public information requests. 

 
The General Manager’s Office works with the Board of Directors and staff to establish the District’s 
strategic vision for all departments.  On January 13, 2017, staff reviewed the 2017 Goals and 
Target Activities with the Board.  The Goals and Target Activities described below reflect the 
Strategic Objectives, as well as the Mission, Vision and Values of Irvine Ranch Water District as 
adopted by the Board.  The Goals (numbered) and the Target Activities (lettered) approved for 
calendar year 2017 are summarized as follows: 
 

Major Goals 
 
1. Optimize and protect local water supply utilization 

a. Update and implement near-term recommendations from 2014 Groundwater Work Plan 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 11



 
GENERAL MANAGER’S OFFICE 

 
OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

 
 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 

 
b. Prepare sensitivity analysis update to water supply reliability study 
c. Select preferred alternative and begin feasibility study to repair or replace the Irvine Lake 

Outlet Tower 
d. Coordinate / collaborate with Orange County Water District (OCWD) on South Basin Clean-

up Project 
e. Investigate opportunities for brine recovery for potable uses 
f. Work with OCWD on Green Acres Project water supply opportunities 
g. Explore local indirect potable reuse (IRP) opportunities for aquifer and surface water storage 

within IRWD 
 

2. Evaluate and invest in projects and programs that will enhance future long-term water supply 
reliability 
a. Identify and procure property with high priority water rights  
b. Implement agreements with Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) and 

Municipal Water District of Orange County (MWDOC) that will provide water supply 
reliability from high priority water rights during periods of drought and supply interruptions 

c. Advocate methods for filling the Orange County Groundwater Basin 
 

3. Bank 90,000 AF of water for IRWD, develop 70 cfs of extraction and additional recharge and 
storage capacity as needed for IRWD and water banking partners 
a. Execute long-term unbalanced exchange agreements for Stockdale 
b. Execute long-term exchange agreement to maximize benefits of non-State Water Project 

water 
c. Construct Drought Relief Project recovery and conveyance facilities 
d. Develop Framework for water banking participation by Orange County Agencies 
e. Identify and secure additional land as needed for recharge and recovery facilities 
f. Construct Stockdale recovery facilities 

 
4. Minimize discharge of recyclable water to the ocean 

a. Complete construction of Irvine Lake Pipeline North Conversion  
b. Convert University of California, Irvine (UCI) Cooling Towers and other projects to recycled 

water for minimum potable water savings of 250 AF per year 
c. Include IRWD’s recycled water demands in OCWD’s total water demand calculations 
d. Update Sewage Treatment Master Plan, including consideration of Irvine Business Complex 

flows 
e. Update the Salt Management Plan – Impacts of Seawater Desalination and other issues 
f. Perform CEQA, alternatives analysis and preliminary design for the Syphon Reservoir 

Expansion 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 12



 
GENERAL MANAGER’S OFFICE 

 
OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

 
 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 

 
g. Prepare preliminary design for diverting Shallow Groundwater Unit discharge into the sewer 

system  
 

5. Maximize resource recovery from fully functional biosolids and other resource recovery facilities 
a. Biosolids Facilities operational 
b. Complete marketing plan for beneficial use(s) of pellets  
c. Develop partnerships with other agencies to utilize surplus capacity 
d. Evaluate process and schedule to introduce fats, oils and greases (FOG) to Biosolids 

Facilities 
 

6. Improve electric service reliability, manage demands, and control costs 
a. Develop program to maximize generation of renewable energy through food waste addition 
b. Secure funding from Southern California Edison (SCE) for water conservation programs in 

high energy intensive areas identified through Embedded Energy Program 
c. Pursue applications for IRWD to participate in SCE’s Direct Access Program 
d. Implement Energy Storage Projects 
e. Prepare SCE/IRWD Phase 1 Status Report for Preferred Resource Pilot Program and 

prioritize next steps to further reduce peak demands 
f. Collaborate on the development of micro-grid technologies through a partnership with UCI 
g. Evaluate site constraints and requirements for photovoltaic installation and energy storage 

at the Baker Water Treatment Plant 
h. Implement steps to outsource operation and maintenance of biogas treatment and micro-

turbine systems 
 

7. Maximize watershed protection 
a. Explore potential conversion of some natural treatment system sites to infiltrate dry weather 

flows 
b. Facilitate discussions with the County of Orange to identify facilities for potential cost 

effective recycled water recharge and storm water infiltration 
c. Work with the County and others on Selenium total maximum daily limit (TMDL) offset 

trading program 
d. Identify projects and partners to qualify for Measure M Funding 
e. Evaluate customer Fats, Oils and Grease (FOG) and Pre-treatment programs including 

assessment of implementation, billing and program requirements 
f. Complete Local Limits Study and obtain regulatory approvals 
g. Continue to work with OC Flood to ensure appropriate capacity in San Diego Creek 
h. Evaluate silt removal from San Joaquin Marsh Ponds 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 13



 
GENERAL MANAGER’S OFFICE 

 
OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

 
 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 

 
8. Ensure financial and rate stability 

a. Complete environmental and final map approval process for IRWD’s Serrano Summit 
property 

b. Develop plan to invest revenue generated by the Lake Forest property; establish rate parity 
for IRWD Lake Forest customers 

c. Evaluate development opportunities at other IRWD properties 
d. Complete plans, permitting, development and leasing on remaining Sand Canyon campus 

and other facilities 
e. Update the Replacement Planning Model 
f. Develop a Cost of Service Study for the IRWD sewer system that includes the Biosolids 

Project operating 
g. Develop IRWD debt policy 

 
9. Identify, assess and implement new technologies and systems to improve operating efficiency 

a. Complete the Implementation of Part 1 of Phase 2 of the Enterprise Asset Management 
System  

b. Document outstanding deed, access and other contractual restrictions related to real 
property 

c. Implement the Operations Database Management System 
d. Simplify and optimize financial module to incorporate new Infrastructure District structure 

and project management 
e. Implement findings of IT-related existing/new technology opportunity assessment while 

maintaining District security 
f. Implement Process Development Steering Committee to identify operational process 

improvements and explore new technologies 
 

10. Enhance customer communications 
a. Enhance customer communication through an improved customer web access portal 
b. Develop and implement new water efficiency outreach program 
c. Implement redesigned customer bill to improve customers’ understanding of IRWD rate 

structure 
d. Enhance water supply reliability outreach program 
e. Investigate development of an IRWD customer app 

 
11. Maximize water use efficiency in the community 

a. Update Water Shortage Contingency Plan based on new State regulations 
b. Evaluate water use efficiency programs and Water Use Efficiency Plan 
c. Broadcast guide for implementing budget-based rate structures 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 14



 
GENERAL MANAGER’S OFFICE 

 
OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

 
 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 

 
d. Review current approach to water loss management, best practices, and compliance with 

new regulations 
e. Evaluate remote meter monitoring program opportunities 
f. Evaluate water efficiency programs 
g. Develop automated methodologies for quantifying irrigated areas and meter locations 

 
12. Recruit, develop and retain a highly skilled, motivated, and educated work force 

a. Implement NeoGov performance evaluation on-line system 
b. Work with Employee Development Task Force to develop and implement a staff mentoring 

program 
c. Develop employee cross training and job rotation guidelines 
d. Develop a safety training database and two-year staff training plan based on the needs of 

the District 
e. Evaluate improvements to IRWD standby / first responder systems 
f. Evaluate future building space planning needs 

 
13. Guide and lead local, state and federal policies and legislation 

a. Engage productively in legislative discussions regarding the development of a long-term 
conservation framework for California and related legislation 

b. Advocate for legislation that protects local investments in water recycling and extraordinary 
supplies, and protects IRWD’s ability to access those supplies, without penalty, during times 
of drought or shortage 

c. Participate in the coalition(s) opposing legislative mandates to eliminate ocean discharges 
and seeking legislation to further indirect and direct potable reuse in California 

d. Engage in discussions surrounding water and wastewater infrastructure financing including 
discussion related to Proposition 218 reforms consistent with Board direction 

e. Provide input to the legislature and administration on developing water markets in California 
f. Promote policies that encourage energy reliability and efficiency in the water industry 

 
14. Engage and shape policies and regulations put forth by local, state and federal agencies 

a. Provide input to the State Water Resources Control Board on extensions of the statewide 
drought regulations 

b. Provide input to the State Water Resources Control Board on revisions to the Mercury 
Policy 

c. Seek regulatory changes promoting recycled water use in decorative lakes 
d. Promote a “fit for purpose” approach to regulation of recycled water for both potable and 

non-potable uses 
 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 15



 
GENERAL MANAGER’S OFFICE 

 
OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

 
 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 

 
e. Promote policies and regulations that will improve air quality and allow efficient operation of 

District facilities and equipment 
 

15. Increase collaboration with other agencies and entities through leadership and innovation 
a. Update South Orange County water supply reliability policy 
b. Advocate for IRWD’s Desalination Policy Principles 
c. Evaluate and promote opportunities for shared services such as third party billing for UC 

Irvine 
d. Participate as leaders in industry associations 
e. Advocate for regional Indirect Potable Reuse (IPR) and direct potable reuse projects 

including Metropolitan’s Carson Regional IPR Project 
f. Evaluate opportunities for reliability sharing including Irvine Lake and updating the Irvine 

Lake agreement 
g. Evaluate opportunities to update South County Emergency Interconnect Agreement 
h. Work with other agencies to maximize Orange County benefits from Integrated Regional 

Water Management processes, including capture of urban runoff by Orange County 
Sanitation District (OCSD) for use in Groundwater Replenishment System (GWRS) 

i. Participate in the water efficiency data collaborative program 
j. Work with OCSD to identify mutually beneficial opportunities for use of IRWD sewer flows 

 
16. Evaluate opportunities that enhance safety and emergency preparedness throughout the 

District 
a. Implement facility security assessment starting with Michelson Water Recycling Plant 

(MWRP) 
b. Design improvements to eliminate the use of chlorine gas at Preliminary Disinfection Facility 
c. Update District Emergency Plan, including training for certain high-risk scenarios 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 16



ADMINISTRATIVE 
ASSISTANT 

(U29.N)

HUMAN RESOURCES
ANALYST

(U31.N)

HUMAN RESOURCES 
MANAGER

(U18.E)

GENERAL
MANAGER

(U34.E)

DIRECTOR OF
HUMAN RESOURCES

(U27.E)

HUMAN RESOURCES 
ASSISTANT

(U22.N)

SR HUMAN 
RESOURCES

ANALYST
(U13.E)

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
ADMINISTRATION

FISCAL YEAR 2017-18

SAFETY (130) AND HUMAN 
RESOURCES (140)

LEGAL
COUNSEL

DISTRICT SAFETY & 
SECURITY MANAGER

(U17.E)

SAFETY & SECURITY 
SPECIALIST

(U29.N)

DISTRICT 
SECRETARY

(U14.E)

GENERAL MANAGER’S 
OFFICE (110)

SAFETY
ASSISTANT

(U19.N)

GOVERNMENTAL 
RELATIONS OFFICER

(U23.E)

OFFICE SPECIALIST
(15.N)

HUMAN RESOURCES
ANALYST

(U31.N)

Regular F/T 
budgeted 
position

Symbol Key

Title 
change

New budgeted 
position

Upgraded/
Reclass 
position

Temporary/
Contract 
position

Delete position

Transferred 
position

Downgraded 
position

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 17



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Administration

Irvine Ranch Water District

General Managers Office

730,950 754,188 23,238Regular Labor 346,928558,472110

1,000 0 (1,000)Overtime Labor 0271110

0 0 0Contract Labor 02,334110

0 0 0Operating Supplies 64136110

10,000 8,000 (2,000)Printing (150)4,921110

100 100 0Postage 11830110

84,500 37,500 (47,000)Permits, Licenses and Fees 64,79383,610110

4,000 4,000 0Office Supplies 1,9704,197110

360,000 1,420,000 1,060,000Legal Fees 503,259339,888110

257,000 360,500 103,500Personnel Training 152,987229,909110

668,050 641,000 (27,050)Other Professional Fees 222,327286,372110

156,000 168,000 12,000Directors Fees 72,280140,152110

145,000 145,000 0Election Expense 110,00030,000110

2,416,600 3,538,288 1,121,6881,474,5761,680,292Total  General Managers Office

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 1 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 18



 

 
 

                OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 

SAFETY AND SECURITY 

 

Program Description 
 

The Safety and Security program provides necessary resources to promote a safe work 
environment for employees through mandated and pro-active training and education and to ensure 
the security of all District property and facilities.  

 

With a commitment to provide on-going employee training to facilitate safe job performance and 
effective security programs to ensure property and facility protection, the Safety and Security 
function continually monitors and stays abreast of current and pending changes and improvements 
for safe work practices and security measures in the water industry.  Appropriate policies are 
regularly developed or revised to ensure the constant pursuit and maintenance of a safe and 
secure operational environment, in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.   

 

Through the use of safety awareness programs, the Safety and Security function works to increase 
employee involvement at all organizational levels via All Hands Meetings, Tailgate Safety 
Meetings, classroom and on-site training sessions, workplace evaluations, industrial hygiene 
evaluations and employee Safety Committee meetings.   

 

The Safety & Security program administers the Commuter Trip Reduction (Ridesharing) program, 
coordinates emergency preparedness and disaster response operations and oversees the 
maintenance and administration of the Emergency Operations Center. 
 

Major Goals 
 
 Evaluate opportunities that enhance safety and emergency preparedness throughout the 

District; 
 Develop safety training data base and two-year staff training plan based on District needs; 
 Update District Emergency Plan; 
 Provide disaster response training for District staff, including high-risk scenarios; and, 
 Implement facility security assessment starting with MWRP. 

 
 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 19



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Administration

Irvine Ranch Water District

Safety and Security

244,800 260,254 15,454Regular Labor 97,519151,459130

1,500 5,000 3,500Overtime Labor 21,328657130

0 0 0Contract Labor 21,90342,635130

70,500 72,500 2,000Operating Supplies 43,44272,780130

9,300 2,000 (7,300)Printing 01,017130

0 500 500Postage 1530130

40,000 40,000 0Permits, Licenses and Fees 52,38627,686130

40,000 30,000 (10,000)Office Supplies 12,3188,339130

0 0 0Rep & Maint IRWD 018,069130

0 0 0Insurance 0700130

114,000 115,000 1,000Personnel Training 52,22890,039130

36,000 36,000 0Personnel Physicals 7,05316,040130

125,000 125,000 0Other Professional Fees 122,14848,612130

25,000 45,000 20,000Safety 37,282129,149130

170,000 520,000 350,000Alarm and Patrol Services 36,117112,838130

156,000 156,000 0Commuter Program 59,085140,991130

0 0 0Other 017,250130

1,032,100 1,407,254 375,154562,962878,261Total  Safety and Security

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 2 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 20



HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
 

OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 
 

Program Description 
 

The Human Resources function provides comprehensive organizational development and 
personnel management services to maximize the potential of the District's human resources and 
overall employee efficiency, effectiveness and satisfaction.  The Human Resources program is 
responsible for attracting and recruiting a highly qualified work force and working in concert with 
the organization leadership to develop and sustain a motivated, productive organization.   

 

Human Resources ensures the delivery of a competitive compensation and benefits package; 
continuous improvement through employee training; fair and consistent employee policies, 
procedures and guidelines; and an ongoing employee reward and recognition program tied to the 
achievement of stated goals and objectives.  Human Resources is responsible for the employee 
relations and labor relations processes and facilitates communication and trust with staff through 
collaboration and the open exchange of ideas. 
 

Major Goals 
 
 Recruit, develop and retain a highly skilled and educated workforce; 
 Develop and implement a staff mentoring program with input from the Employee Development 

Task Force; 
 Implement new on-line performance evaluation system; 
 Develop employee cross training and job rotation guidelines; and, 
 Evaluate alternatives for standby/first responders. 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 21



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Administration

Irvine Ranch Water District

Human Resources

649,880 667,174 17,294Regular Labor 287,278557,789140

5,000 5,000 0Overtime Labor 3,0904,004140

16,937,520 17,365,620 428,100Employee Benefits 4,226,1217,786,731140

2,500 2,500 0Contract Labor 00140

0 0 0Printing 02,623140

100 100 0Postage 054140

2,500 2,500 0Office Supplies 5383,424140

1,000 1,000 0Rep & Maint IRWD 00140

95,000 145,000 50,000Legal Fees 143,939138,744140

370,800 388,800 18,000Personnel Training 78,324329,050140

15,000 15,000 0Personnel Physicals 8,44610,490140

134,500 179,500 45,000Other Professional Fees 53,460126,644140

18,213,800 18,772,194 558,3944,801,1968,959,553Total  Human Resources

Total  Administration 21,662,500 23,717,736 2,055,23
6

6,838,73411,518,106

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 3 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 22



 
FINANCE, TREASURY AND PROCUREMENT 

 
OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

 
 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 

Program Description 
 
The Finance Department is responsible for ensuring the financial and rate stability of the District.  
This includes developing rates and fees that support the long term sustainability of the District.  
Finance maintains the official accounting records of the Irvine Ranch Water District and provides 
financial management of the District’s income and real estate investments, new and existing debt 
issues, and deferred compensation programs.  The department provides a wide range of 
accounting and financial services including payroll, accounts payable, accounts receivable, project 
accounting, financial analysis, financial reporting, coordination of the District's annual operating 
budget and preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  The Finance 
Department also oversees risk management claims and insurance issues. 
 
The mission of the Finance Department is to safeguard assets and provide financial and 
accounting services in a timely, reliable, and cost-effective manner that meet the requirements of 
the District's internal and external customers. 
 
Major Goals 
 
ACCOUNTING AND BUDGETING 
 Prepare and submit accurate financial reports and relevant tax returns to federal, state, county 

and district agencies within established legal deadlines and requirements; 
 Prepare and submit accurate and timely financial reports to the Finance and Personnel 

Committee and the District's Board of Directors;  
 Coordinate the District’s annual financial statement audit; 
 Prepare the annual CAFR;  
 Prepare the Operating Budget for Board of Director approval including setting adequate rates to 

ensure long term financial strength and stability; 
 Ensure user rates are proportional with costs of service and support the current rate structure; 
 Lead customer noticing effort for Proposition 218 compliance (operating budget, rates and 

charges); 
 Ensure all payments and payroll checks are accurate and timely;  
 Stabilize the upgraded District-wide Financial System including incorporation of the most recent 

improvement district consolidation structure, and project management ; and 
 Identify and implement enhanced business intelligence capabilities. 
 
LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING 
 Continue to refine and update the cash flow strategic model to ensure sufficient funding for 

future capital needs;  
 Provide analytical support and analysis to Finance, other departments and outside constituents 

as requested; and  
 Explore financial models for financing, construction and operation of renewable and storage 

projects. 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 23



 
FINANCE, TREASURY AND PROCUREMENT 

 
OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

 
 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 

INVESTMENTS AND CASH MANAGEMENT 
 Invest District funds in a prudent and professional manner that will provide maximum security of 

principal, sufficient liquidity to meet working capital requirements and an optimal rate of return; 
 Prepare accurate investment reports and the annual investment policy to the Board of Directors 

and other interested parties within established time frames; and, 
 Maintain and enhance short and long-term cash flow models and cash management practices. 
 
REAL ESTATE 
 Monitor and report on the performance of all real estate investment assets; 
 Manage leasing and related property management activities for all District commercial and 

residential real estate investments; 
 Evaluate development opportunities at other District properties;   
 Complete environmental and final map approval process for property located in Lake Forest 

and market property for sale; 
 Develop plan to invest revenue generated by the Lake Forest property; establish rate parity for 

Lake Forest customers;  
 Complete plans, permitting, development and leasing of  the Sand Canyon campus in Irvine; 

and  
 Resolve outstanding deed, access and other contractual restrictions related to real property.   

 
DEBT ISSUANCE AND ADMINISTRATION 
 Issue long-term debt to fund capital projects as needed, and evaluate and recommend 

refunding opportunities for current District debt issues when appropriate; 
 Manage District letters of credit supporting variable rate debt; evaluate new credit support 

opportunities when necessary; 
 Prepare and submit required continuing disclosure materials for District debt issues to 

appropriate parties; 
 Monitor variable interest rates set by remarketing agents on District debt and make adjustments 

as appropriate; 
 Develop District debt policy; and  
 Execute, monitor and report on interest rate swap transactions as appropriate. 

 
INSURANCE 
 Ensure the District has adequate insurance to appropriately safeguard assets; and, 
 Manage claims process and coordinate legal matters in a timely manner.  

 
PENSION 
 Maintain and invest Pension Benefits Trust assets and report portfolio performance and 

recommendations to the Retirement Board;   
 Evaluate and monitor Trust Advisor performance; recommend changes in advisory services as 

appropriate; and, 
 Review additional opportunities to optimize Pension Benefits Trust performance. 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 24



FINANCE, TREASURY AND PROCUREMENT 

OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

 

Draft 4/06/2010 

PROCUREMENT 
 Purchase materials, supplies and services in a timely manner with appropriate consideration

given to quality and best pricing;
 Process all material/service requests timely and efficiently;
 Maintain warehouse inventory fill rate at 100% and review/adjust slow moving inventory;
 Streamline business procurement processes and documentation while ensuring appropriate

controls;
 Provide ongoing customer support for procurement and inventory systems; and,
 Evaluate and expand participation in cooperative purchasing agreements as appropriate.

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 25



SR ACCT (U11.E)

ACCOUNTING 
SUPERVISOR 

(U13.E)
Promo Opportunity

CUSTOMER SVC
SUPERVISOR 

(U10.E)

BUYER 
(24.N)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
OF FINANCE

(U30.E)

CONTROLLER 
(U20.E)

EXECUTIVE 
ASSISTANT 

(U26.N)

IS
COORDINATOR  

(31.N)

ACCOUNTING

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

FISCAL YEAR 2017-18

SR BUYER (29.N)

FINANCIAL 
ANALYST
 (U11.E)

PURCHASING 
MANAGER

(U17.E)

APPLICATIONS 
ANALYST 

(U15.E)

CUSTOMER SERVICE
MANAGER

(U17.E)

CUSTOMER SVC
SUPERVISOR 

(U10.E)

PURCHASING
COORDINATOR(19.N)

INFORMATION
SERVICES (250)PURCHASING (240)

CUSTOMER
SERVICE (220)

ACCOUNTING 
CLERK (16.N)

MATERIAL CNTROL
CLERK II (18.N)

SR ACCOUNTING 
CLERK (20.N)

NETWORK ADMIN 
(U32.N)

CUST SERVICE
SPECIALIST III 

(21.N)

CUSTOMER SVC
SUPERVISOR 

(U10.E)

MAIL 
COORDINATOR (6.N)

SR NETWORK
ADMIN (U15.E)

TREASURY 
ANALYST

(From 31.N to 12.E))

ACCOUNTANT 
(27.N)

CUSTOMER SVC 
FIELD TECH (16.N)

ACCOUNTANT 
(27.N)

DIRECTOR OF 
ADMINISTATIVE 

SERVICES
(U27.E)

General 
Manager

 TREASURER/
DIRECTOR OF RISK 

MANAGEMENT
(U27.E)

TREASURY 
MANAGER

(U18.E)

MANAGER OF 
STRATEGIC 
PLANNING & 

ANALYSIS (U20.E)

MANAGER OF RISK 
& CONTRACTS 
ADMIN (U18.E)

RISK ANALYST
(30.N)

PLANNING & 
ANALYSIS

CONTRACTS & 
RISK 

MANAGEMENT

TREASURY

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------FINANCE/TREASURY (210)------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

SR. PURCHASING
COORDINATOR 

(22.N)

ACCOUNTING 
SUPERVISOR 

(U13.E)
Promo Opportunity

SR APPLICATIONS 
ANALYST (U18.E)

APPLICATIONS 
MANAGER

(U22.E)

NETWORK & 
SUPPORT MGR

(U20.E)

TEMP CUSTOMER 
SVC FIELD TECH 

(16.N)

SR ACCT (U11.E)

STUDENT INTERN STUDENT INTERN

CUSTOMER SVC
SUPERVISOR 

(U10.E)

SR DATABASE 
ADMINISTRATOR

(U18.E)

SR APPLICATIONS 
DEVELOPER 

(U18.E)

OFFICE SPECIALIST
(15.N)

SR CUSTOMER SVC 
FIELD TECH 

(21.N)

ACCOUNTANT 
(27.N)

CUST SERVICE
SPECIALIST II 

(17.N)

CUST SERVICE
SPECIALIST III 

(21.N)

CUST SERVICE
SPECIALIST III 

(21.N)

CUST SERVICE
SPECIALIST II 

(17.N)

CUST SERVICE
SPECIALIST II 

(17.N)

CUST SERVICE
SPECIALIST I

(13.N)

CUST SERVICE
SPECIALIST I (13.N)

CUST SERVICE
SPECIALIST I (13.N)

TEMP CUST 
SERVICE

SPECIALIST I (13.N)

PAYROLL 
ADMINISTRATOR 

(31.N)

Regular F/T 
budgeted 
position

Symbol Key

Title 
change

New budgeted 
position

Upgraded/
Reclass 
position

Temporary/
Contract 
position

Delete position

Transferred 
position

Downgraded 
position

Reclass from 
31.N to 12.E

Delete 
Position

New 
Budgeted 
Position

New 
Budgeted 
Position

ACCOUNTING 
SUPERVISOR 

(U13.E)
Promo Opportunity

Upgrade from 
11.E to 13.E

SR ACCOUNTING 
CLERK (20.N)

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 26



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Finance & Administrative Services

Irvine Ranch Water District

Finance and Treasury

2,237,200 2,287,948 50,748Regular Labor 988,9542,248,349210

18,000 18,000 0Overtime Labor 27,08140,269210

165,800 29,000 (136,800)Contract Labor 83,14987,925210

700 2,800 2,100Operating Supplies 1,4581,115210

70,000 70,000 0Printing 064,453210

8,000 9,000 1,000Postage 4,4888,223210

3,000 56,500 53,500Permits, Licenses and Fees 00210

5,000 5,000 0Office Supplies 1,7803,540210

1,003,900 1,020,900 17,000Insurance 499,396780,600210

95,000 95,000 0Accounting Fees 85,88478,634210

51,000 52,000 1,000Data Processing 24,93049,860210

27,500 27,000 (500)Personnel Training 10,23818,570210

305,700 302,700 (3,000)Other Professional Fees 113,523233,536210

100 0 (100)Mileage Reimbursement 090210

20,000 11,000 (9,000)Collection Fees 46410,394210

4,010,900 3,986,848 (24,052)1,841,3453,625,558Total  Finance and Treasury

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 4 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 27



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Finance & Administrative Services

Irvine Ranch Water District

Purchasing

787,600 792,594 4,994Regular Labor 351,736706,747240

4,000 8,000 4,000Overtime Labor 10,12816,596240

0 4,000 4,000Contract Labor 33,62643,798240

162,000 133,000 (29,000)Operating Supplies (239,233)(494,235)240

11,500 8,500 (3,000)Printing 2,5387,087240

4,500 4,500 0Postage 1,5533,648240

24,000 18,000 (6,000)Office Supplies 6,73617,416240

225,000 192,000 (33,000)Duplicating Equipment 89,480187,774240

20,000 18,000 (2,000)Equipment Rental 014,124240

0 0 0Data Processing 0277240

6,500 6,500 0Personnel Training 6056,880240

2,000 2,000 0Other Professional Fees 32230240

1,247,100 1,187,094 (60,006)257,201510,342Total  Purchasing

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 6 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 28



 

 OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

Draft 4/06/2010 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

Program Description 

The Administrative Services group provides a wide range of support services that include 
Customer Service and Information Services.  

The mission of the Customer Service Department is to provide the highest level of customer 
satisfaction by providing reliable, courteous and efficient service.  The Customer Service 
Department provides utility billing, account support and mail distribution services. 

The mission of the Information Services Department is to research, develop, integrate and support 
reliable, cost effective information systems that meet the current and future business requirements 
of customers and provide a high level of customer satisfaction.  The Information Services 
Department provides implementation, management and support for the District's information 
systems, voice and data communications systems. 

Major Goals

CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 Deliver exceptional customer service both internally and externally;
 Review and resolve billing inquiries and adjustments in a timely manner including education of

customers on allocation;
 Receive and process all orders for new service and discontinuation of service;
 Process new meter applications;
 Process payments for temporary construction meters, fire flow tests, and customer water bills;
 Coordinate and process all meter reads to ensure accurate billing;
 Process variance requests for additional water allocations;
 Respond to field problems (leaks, no water complaints, high/low pressure, water quality, sewer

problems, line breaks, etc.) with a sense of urgency;
 Manage delinquent customer accounts and perform shut-offs as required;
 Provide customers with an accurate and effective bill;
 Streamline bill printing and distribution process;
 Distribute customer satisfaction surveys and maintain 90% customer satisfaction;
 Implement redesigned customer bill to improve customer’s understanding of District rate

structure;
 Investigate enhanced customer communication through an improved customer web access

portal;
 Investigate development of a District customer application; and
 Receive, route and deliver all District mail;

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 29



 

 

 

                OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

  
INFORMATION SERVICES 
 Provide helpful, courteous and timely support to all District staff; 
 Provide internal and external software training that meets the needs of District staff; 
 Provide a reliable network of servers, personal computers, mobile devices, printers and 

software applications that meet the needs of District staff; 
 Provide reliable voice, data and wireless communications services; 
 Implement new and improve existing software applications to meet the requirements of District 

staff; 
 Complete scheduled hardware and software upgrades to District servers, personal computers, 

mobile devices, printers, network equipment and software applications; 
 Begin implementation of projects identified and prioritized from the Technology Assessment; 
 Complete the implementation of E-Mail Archiving; and 
 Support the implementation of the Enterprise Asset Management System (EAM).  

 
 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 30



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Finance & Administrative Services

Irvine Ranch Water District

Customer Service

1,972,880 1,974,544 1,664Regular Labor 785,4081,532,656220

60,000 60,000 0Overtime Labor 38,33168,145220

228,820 130,150 (98,670)Contract Labor 135,388463,855220

1,000 3,000 2,000Operating Supplies 9,1293,512220

77,000 80,000 3,000Printing 35,81273,170220

555,500 570,000 14,500Postage 275,645577,360220

5,500 5,500 0Office Supplies 2,2495,373220

42,500 42,500 0Equipment Rental 20,57350,947220

0 0 0Rep & Maint IRWD 071220

8,000 8,000 0Personnel Training 1831,922220

2,000 2,000 0Other Professional Fees 1,2133,467220

1,000 1,000 0Collection Fees 5121,119220

1,350,000 1,390,000 40,000Contract Meter Reading 672,9451,319,338220

4,304,200 4,266,694 (37,506)1,977,3884,100,935Total  Customer Service

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 5 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 31



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Finance & Administrative Services

Irvine Ranch Water District

Information Services

1,442,100 1,608,164 166,064Regular Labor 510,2301,173,730250

30,000 40,000 10,000Overtime Labor 20,51040,841250

255,000 230,000 (25,000)Contract Labor 111,327802,552250

433,000 484,500 51,500Telecommunication 219,154457,587250

9,500 0 (9,500)Other Utilities 011,574250

0 0 0Operating Supplies 017250

5,000 5,000 0Printing 1,5406,951250

500 500 0Postage 0124250

1,000 1,000 0Office Supplies 150250

292,500 300,000 7,500Rep & Maint IRWD 130,752272,608250

2,976,200 2,833,100 (143,100)Data Processing 1,617,3652,929,432250

35,800 35,800 0Personnel Training 3,0122,608250

60,000 115,000 55,000Other Professional Fees 32,74050,121250

0 0 0Mileage Reimbursement 029250

24,000 12,000 (12,000)Computer Backup Storage 6,32424,843250

5,564,600 5,665,064 100,4642,652,9695,773,017Total  Information Services

Total  Finance & Administrative Services 15,126,800 15,105,700 (21,100)6,728,90314,009,852

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 7 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 32



 

   

             OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 

ENGINEERING 

 

Program Description 
 
The Engineering Department provides planning, design and construction coordination to develop 
the water, sewage and recycled water facilities necessary to provide the highest level of service to 
the customers of the District.  The Engineering Department also provides technical support to other 
District departments. 
 
Planning:  The Planning and Technical Services group of the Department is responsible for all 
master planning, water, sewage and recycled water demand projections, water supply planning, 
preliminary facility planning studies for new facilities, and preparation of the District’s annual and 
long-term Capital Programs.  The Planning group provides GIS services to other District 
departments including the development and support of GIS based applications and facility and 
atlas maps, maintenance of the District’s digital record drawings plan system, and spatial analysis.  
The Planning group is also responsible for managing the District’s real property and rights of way. 
  
Capital Projects:  The Capital Projects group designs and manages construction of major water, 
sewage and recycled water treatment, distribution and transmission facilities necessary to provide 
the quality and reliability of service to existing and future customers of the District.  The Capital 
Projects group is responsible for the expansion and improvement of water and sewage treatment 
facilities; the design and construction of wells, pipelines, storage facilities, pump stations, and 
sewage lift stations; and the design and construction of integration facilities for areas acquired 
through agency consolidations. 
  
Development Services:  The Development Services group facilitates the land development process 
within the District by designing and bidding the water, sewage and recycled water facilities 
necessary to support land development.  The construction of these facilities is coordinated to 
ensure that the facilities are available to meet development schedule requirements.  Temporary 
and interim facilities, when necessary, are also coordinated through this group.  The Development 
Services group also reviews developer submittals for quality and conformance with District 
requirements and assesses and collects appropriate fees. 
 
Inspection Services:  The Inspection Services group provides construction inspection services to 
other groups of the Engineering Department to ensure the highest level of constructed quality.  
These services include constructability review, pre-construction administration, progress payment 
processing, field inspection, change order evaluation and processing, and final acceptance 
coordination.  The Inspection Services group is also responsible for coordinating specialized 
construction support services including surveying and geotechnical testing and inspection. 
  
Operations Support:  The Operations Support group is responsible for providing engineering 
support to other District departments.  The Operations Support group generally focuses on the 
expansion and rehabilitation of existing District facilities and provides design and construction 
management of small to medium size water, sewage and recycled water facilities.   

 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 33



 

   

             OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 

ENGINEERING 

 
This group also includes the process control team that conducts research, develops projects and 
provides process control and technical support to enhance the performance of the District’s 
domestic and recycled water supply, treatment, distribution, and storage facilities.  The process 
control team also provides similar support to the District’s sewage collection/treatment, recycled 
water and urban runoff treatment systems and supports District-wide regulatory compliance 
objectives. 
 
Michelson Water Recycling Plant (MWRP) Construction:  The MWRP Construction group is 
responsible for the construction of the MWRP Biosolids and Energy Recovery Facilities.  The 
group ensures that sewage and biosolids treatment facilities are properly designed and 
constructed to meet the requirements of the MWRP Operations Department.   
 

Major Goals 
 
Planning 
 Update Water Resources Master Plan; 
 Provide Inter-agency technical support; 
 Develop alternative water supplies;  
 Implement Criticality Based Replacement Planning Model;  
 Initiate Sewer Collections Advisory Team; 
 Update Strategic Water Resources Mass Balance Model and initiate Potable Reuse 

Alternatives Study; and 
 Expand GIS based applications and cloud infrastructure. 
 
Capital Projects 
 MWRP Biosolids and Energy Recovery Facilities construction; 
 Stockdale West Integrated Water Banking construction; 
 Irvine Lake Pipeline North Conversion to Recycled Water design and construction; 
 Initial Disinfection Facility Chlorine Gas Removal construction; 
 Energy Storage System design and construction at multiple sites; 
 Water Recycling Treatment Plant Master Plan update; 
 Multi-Zone Recycled Water Booster Pump Station (BPS) design and construction; 
 Second Zone 1 Reservoir design and construction; and, 
 Syphon Reservoir Expansion preliminary design. 
 
Development Services 
 Heritage Fields Infrastructure design and construction; 
 Orchard Hills Infrastructure design and construction; 
 Baker Ranch Infrastructure design and construction; 
 Tustin Legacy Infrastructure design and construction; and, 
 Irvine Business Complex Redevelopment Infrastructure design and construction; 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 34



 

   

             OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 

ENGINEERING 

 
Operations Support 
 UCI Cooling Tower Recycled Water Conversion Pipeline construction; 
 Newport Coast Lift Station Improvements construction; 
 Michelson Sewer Force Main Rehabilitation design and construction; 
 Operations Center Backup Generator Replacement construction; 
 MWRP Filter Pump Station Discharge Manifold Piping Replacement construction; 
 Santiago Dam Sloped Outlet Tower design; 
 Well Rehabilitation design and construction; 
 Dyer Road Well Field Surge Tank Replacement construction; 
 Evaluate process control and water quality monitoring data to assess, correct or recommend 

performance improvement of membrane treatment facilities:  IDP-SGU, IDP-PAP, IDP-PTP, 
DATS, CATS and the Wells 21/22 Desalter Plant; 

 Develop test protocols, standard operating protocols and procedures, operate, perform sample 
collection and monitoring of bench, pilot and full-scale process facilities, including pilot and 
demonstration research projects; 

 Act as a liaison and administer reporting IRWD groundwater extraction and treatment 
operations for removal of the TCE plume from the Irvine sub-basin groundwater at the IDP 
Principal Aquifer wells, IDP-PAP and IDP-SGU to the Department of the Navy (DON), local and 
state regulatory agencies; and, 

 Assist in the development and coordinate district wide research, pilot and demonstration 
projects. 

 
 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 35



ENGINEER
(U17.E)

CONSTRUCTION
INSPECTION 
SUPERVISOR 

(U34.N)

ASSOCIATE 
ENGINEER

(14.E)

EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR OF 

ENGINEERING & 
WATER QUALITY

(U30.E)

PRINCIPAL
ENGINEER

(U23.E)

 CONSTRUCTION
INSPECTION
MANAGER

(U17.E)

SENIOR
ENGINEER

(U20.E)

CAPITAL 
PROJECTS

ENGINEER
(U17.E)

ASSOCIATE 
ENGINEER

(14.E)

CONSTRUCTION
INSPECTOR 

 (28.N)

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
ENGINEERING

FISCAL YEAR 2017-18

DEVELOPMENT 
SVCS SPECIALIST

(19.N)

STUDENT INTERNS

SENIOR
ENGINEER  

(U20.E)

SENIOR
ENGINEER

(U20.E)

ELECTRICAL/ 
INSTRUMENTATION 

DESIGNER
(34.N)

SENIOR
ENGINEER  

(U20.E)

General 
Manager

ENERGY ANALYST
(12.E)

PRINCIPAL 
ENGINEER

(U23.E)

DEVELOPMENT 
SVCS SPECIALIST
(From 15.N to 19.N)

MWRP 
CONSTRUCTION

EXECUTIVE
ASSISTANT

(U26.N)

SENIOR ENGINEER
(U20.E)

PRINCIPAL
ENGINEER

(U23.E)

ENGINEER
(U17.E)

INSPECTION 
SERVICES

SENIOR
ENGINEER

(U20.E)

DEVELOPMENT 
SERVICES

ENGINEER
(U17.E)

DEVELOPMENT 
SVCS SUPERVISOR 

(U10.E)

SENIOR
ENGINEER

(U20.E)

GIS
TECHNICIAN II

(25.N)

RIGHT OF WAY 
AGENT
(13.E)

ASSOCIATE 
ENGINEER

(14.E)

PRINCIPAL
ENGINEER

(U23.E)

ENGINEER
(U17.E)

PLANNING AND 
TECHNICAL SERVICES

GIS 
TECHNICIAN III

(29.N)

GIS SUPERVISOR
(U13.E)

WATER 
QUALITY

ENGINEERING 
TECHNICIAN I

(20.N)

PRINCIPAL
ENGINEER

(U23.E)

DEVELOPMENT AND
INSPECTION SERVICES

OPERATIONS
SUPPORT

GIS TECH I
(20.N)

TEMP ASSISTANT 
ENGINEER

(10.E)

Regular F/T 
budgeted 
position

Symbol Key

Title 
change

New 
budgeted 
position

Upgraded/
Reclass 
position

Temporary/
Contract 
position

Delete 
position

Transferred 
position

Downgraded 
position

New 
Budgeted 
Position

CONSTRUCTION 
INSPECTOR 

(28.N)

New 
Budgeted 
Position

SR. CONSTRUCTION
INSPECTOR 

(31.N)

CONSTRUCTION
INSPECTION 
SUPERVISOR 

(U34.N)

Title change 
from 

Construction 
Inspector II

Title change 
from 

Construction 
Inspector III

Reclass from 
15.N to 19.N

Downgrade 
from Eng 
Tech III

 29.N to 19.N

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 36



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Engineering

Irvine Ranch Water District

Engineering

4,377,500 4,712,004 334,504Regular Labor 2,048,1804,139,304300

144,000 190,000 46,000Overtime Labor 83,849142,258300

221,000 411,000 190,000Contract Labor 113,550261,121300

0 0 0Telecommunication 040300

9,400 8,400 (1,000)Operating Supplies 2,7045,726300

16,000 20,000 4,000Printing 6,3985,413300

2,800 2,000 (800)Postage 8312,354300

2,000 2,000 0Permits, Licenses and Fees 01,606300

12,500 9,500 (3,000)Office Supplies 3,46813,100300

0 0 0Rep & Maint IRWD 2225,742300

122,000 207,000 85,000Engineering Fees 8,90479,591300

30,000 30,000 0Personnel Training 13,77420,271300

103,000 63,000 (40,000)Other Professional Fees 7082,066300

5,040,200 5,654,904 614,7042,282,5884,678,592Total  Engineering

Total  Engineering 5,040,200 5,654,904 614,7042,282,5884,678,592

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 8 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 37



 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 38



 

WATER QUALITY 

OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY  
 

Program Description 
 
The Water Quality Department provides water quality related support to the operations and 
maintenance of the domestic and recycled water distribution and sewer collection systems and 
treatment facilities, and ensures that all District operations are conducted in a safe, reliable, 
environmentally sensitive manner to achieve a high level of customer satisfaction.  The Water 
Quality Department provides internal and external customers with high quality data for regulatory 
monitoring and reporting, process control, research projects and capital projects utilizing state-of-
the-art, United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and State Water Resources Control 
Board Division of Drinking Water (DDW) approved analytical methods. 

 
Major Goals 
 
 Perform necessary analyses and ensure the District operates in full compliance with all 

applicable federal, state and local environmental and water quality laws and regulations; 
 Monitor the development of potential future regulations that may impact District activities; 
 Ensure all compliance monitoring and reporting is completed and submitted by required due 

dates; 
 Review new technologies that may be applicable to operations;  
 Provide process control data to assist operating groups in meeting their regulatory 

requirements; 
 Complete and submit all regulatory monitoring data by the specified due dates; 
 Complete analyses within specified hold times and meet quality control specifications; 
 Research and implement new testing methods where justified, specifically methods routinely 

sent out to contract laboratories and screening methods for system security and general water 
quality concerns; 

 Maintain the laboratory’s Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP) certification 
by successfully completing the site audit and proficiency testing; 

 Prepare the laboratory to implement the new EPA Method Update Rule and the developing 
new ELAP accreditation standard; 

 Successfully complete all required water, sewage, hazardous waste and DMR proficiency 
testing samples and submit the data by the prescribed due date; 

 Research and implement, where appropriate, improved means to communicate water quality 
data to internal and external customers; 

 Implement to the fullest extent possible automated reporting programs; 
 Reduce paperwork by maximizing electronic data collection; 
 Be environmentally responsible in the selection, procurement and disposal of reagents utilized 

in the laboratory; and, 
 Seek to improve established contacts with regulatory agencies. 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 39



SR SCIENTIST
(32.N)

EXECUTIVE 
SECRETARY 

(U22.N)

LABORATORY
SUPERVISOR

(U15.E) 

LABORATORY
QA/QC (12.E)

LABORATORY
SUPERVISOR

(U15.E) 

WATER QUALITY 
MANAGER

 (U18.E)

SCIENTIST (28.N)

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
WATER QUALITY

FISCAL YEAR 2017-18

SCIENTIST
(28.N)

SR SCIENTIST
(32.N)

LABORATORY 
ANALYST

(16.N)

Exec Director of 
Engineering & Water 

Quality

MICROBIOLOGY
ORGANIC 

CHEMISTRY

WATER QUALITY (600)

LABORATORY
SUPERVISOR

(U15.E)

INORGANIC 
CHEMISTRY

STUDENT INTERN

SR SCIENTIST (32.N)

SCIENTIST (28.N)

Regular F/T 
budgeted 
position

Symbol Key

Title 
change

New budgeted 
position

Upgraded/
Reclass 
position

Temporary/
Contract 
position

Delete 
position

Transferred 
position

Downgraded 
position

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 40



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Water Quality

Irvine Ranch Water District

Water Quality

1,726,230 1,762,174 35,944Regular Labor 752,7951,518,599600

26,200 33,600 7,400Overtime Labor 24,19749,455600

15,000 127,000 112,000Contract Labor 7,08529,173600

384,300 391,000 6,700Operating Supplies 178,521320,246600

3,400 3,600 200Postage 1,0861,089600

9,000 11,250 2,250Permits, Licenses and Fees 9,0035,975600

3,000 3,000 0Office Supplies 9293,271600

6,320 6,320 0Equipment Rental 03,595600

219,550 224,892 5,342Rep & Maint IRWD 133,913174,986600

143,300 85,600 (57,700)Engineering Fees 39,85766,118600

25,650 34,850 9,200Personnel Training 28,78310,273600

99,950 24,550 (75,400)Other Professional Fees 5,84877,617600

0 0 0Mileage Reimbursement 0102600

6,400 7,200 800Safety 1,1632,255600

2,668,300 2,715,036 46,7361,183,1802,262,754Total  Water Quality

Total  Water Quality 2,668,300 2,715,036 46,7361,183,1802,262,754

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 9 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 41



 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 42



 

  
OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

 

WATER OPERATIONS 

Program Description 
 
The mission of the Water Operations Department is to operate and maintain the District’s potable 
water, recycled water and untreated water systems in an efficient, cost effective and environmentally 
safe manner that provides a high level of customer satisfaction.  The Water Operations Department 
provides operation, maintenance and repair of the District’s domestic water, recycled water and 
untreated water systems.  These systems include the Dyer Road Wellfield, Deep Aquifer Treatment 
System, The Wells 21/22 Treatment Plant, Irvine Desalter Project (Potable Treatment Plant, Principal 
Aquifer Plant and Shallow Groundwater Unit) and Baker Water Treatment Plant (BWTP). 
 

Major Goals 
 

• Manage the BWTP to achieve operational and budgetary goals for IRWD and the project 
Partners; 

• Maintain 100% compliance with all regulatory permits; 
• Meet the Department’s adopted Operations and Maintenance budget; 
• Add one additional Water Operators at the T-5 certification level; 
• Coordinate with the Finance, Engineering and Planning Departments on water supply and water 

banking opportunities to optimize cost effective operations; 
• Achieve zero lost time accidents; 
• Modify as needed and track adopted Operational Key Performance Indicators (KPI) to optimize 

operational efficiency and cost effectiveness; 
• Maintain and develop staff competency through a combination of internal and external training; 
• Operate and maintain the system to minimize energy consumption; 
• Maintain the Dyer Road Well Field and Deep Aquifer Treatment System domestic water flows in 

accordance with the Ground Water Pumping Plan; 
• Assist the Engineering Department with the design and startup of domestic and recycled water 

system facilities; 
• Operate the Irvine Desalter Project (Potable Treatment Plant, Principal Aquifer Plant and 

Shallow Groundwater Unit) in accordance with the joint agency agreement and submit required 
reports; 

• Ensure efficient operation of all District pumping and reservoir facilities; 
• Ensure safe dam operation through the monitoring and surveillance program; 
• Complete all Cross-Connection Control Program annual inspections and back-flow device  

Maintenance in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 17, Public Health 
Department Requirements; 

• Provide construction and repair services to internal and external customers in a prompt, safe, 
efficient, cost effective and environmentally sensitive manner; 

• Continue the sewer repair project to improve sewer system reliability; 
• Complete all preventive maintenance programs for the distribution system; 
• Replace residential and commercial meters on the recommended cycle; 
• Mark the District’s underground facilities in response to Underground Service Alert (USA) tickets 

to prevent potential damages to the facilities from construction activities; 
• Set and complete annual maintenance goals in accordance with AWWA and industry standards; 

and, 
• Respond to and resolve all customer service requests promptly. 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 43



WATER
MAINTENANCE

TECH II 
(22.N)

WATER
MAINTENANCE
TECH II (22.N) 

EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR OF
OPERATIONS

(U30.E) 

MANAGEMENT 
ANALYST

(10.E)

METERING
SYSTEMS 
TECH III 
(26.N) 

METERING 
SYSTEMS

TECH II (22.N)

DIRECTOR OF 
WATER OPS 

(U27.E)

FIELD SERVICES 
MANAGER 

(U17.E)

OPERATIONS
SUPERVISOR

(U35.N)

OPERATIONS
SUPERVISOR

(U35.N)

OPERATOR II
(27.N)

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
OPERATIONS ADMINISTRATION & WATER OPERATIONS

FISCAL YEAR 2017-18

WATER
MAINTENANCE

TECH III 
(26.N) 

WATER
MAINTENANCE

TECH II 
(22.N) 

WATER
MAINTENANCE 
SUPERVISOR

(U31.N)

WATER
MAINTENANCE 
SUPERVISOR

(U31.N)

WATER
MAINTENANCE

TECH III  
(26.N) 

WATER
MAINTENANCE

TECH III  
(26.N)

WATER 
MAINTENANCE 

TECH I 
(16.N)

WATER
MAINTENANCE 
SUPERVISOR

(U31.N)

WATER 
MAINTENANCE 

TECH I 
(16.N)

CROSS 
CONNECTION
SUPERVISOR

(U31.N)

CROSS 
CONNECTION 

SPECIALIST (24.N) 

WATER
MAINTENANCE 
SUPERVISOR

(U31.N)

WATER
MAINTENANCE

TECH III  
(26.N)

WATER 
MAINTENANCE 

TECH I 
(16.N)

WATER
MAINTENANCE 
SUPERVISOR

(U31.N)

WATER 
MAINTENANCE 

TECH I 
(16.N)

WATER
MAINTENANCE
TECH II (22.N) 

WATER 
MAINTENANCE
TECH II  (22.N)

WATER 
MAINTENANCE 
TECH II (22.N)

OPERATOR III
(29.N)

OPERATOR III
(29.N)

WATER MAINT 
TECH I (16.N) 

WATER
MAINTENANCE

TECH III  
(26.N)

OPERATIONS 
SUPERVISOR

 (U35.N) 

OPERATOR II 
(27.N)

WATER
MAINTENANCE

TECH II 
(22.N) 

METERING 
SYSTEMS 

TECHNICIAN I 
(16.N)

WATER OPERATIONS (420) CONSTRUCTION SERVICES (430)

General 
Manager

TREATMENT
PREVENTIVE

MAINTENANCE

POTABLE 
DISTRIBUTION

WATER
MAINTENANCE 
SUPERVISOR

(U31.N)

WATER
MAINTENANCE

TECH III  
(26.N)

WATER 
MAINTENANCE 

TECH I 
(16.N) 

CONSTRUCTION  
SERVICES
MANAGER

(U17.E)

CROSS 
CONNECTION

WATER 
MAINTENANCE 
TECH III (26.N)

WATER 
MAINTENANCE 

TECH II 
(22.N)

FIELD SERVICES (425)

LEAK DETECTIONUSA

METER 
MAINTENANCE

CHEM DELIVERY

WATER
MAINTENANCE

TECH III  
(26.N)

RECYCLING 
OPERATIONS & 
MAINTENANCE

WATER 
OPERATIONS 

MANAGER
(U19.E)

WATER 
MAINTENANCE 

TECH I
(16.N)

SR OFFICE 
SPECIALIST

(19.N)

WATER
MAINTENANCE 
SUPERVISOR

(U31.N)

EXECUTIVE 
ASSISTANT

(U26.N)

C & R 
COORDINATION/

RECYCLED 
DISTRIBUTION

WATER OPERATIONS

OPERATIONS ADMIN (805)

OPERATOR III
(29.N)

OPERATOR II
(27.N)

WATER
MAINTENANCE
TECH III (26.N) 

PRIMARY RESPONSE

TEMP UTILITY 
WORKER 

(11.N)

Regular F/T 
budgeted 
position

Symbol Key

Title 
change

New budgeted 
position

Upgraded/
Reclass 
position

Temporary/
Contract 
position

Delete position

Transferred 
position

Downgraded 
position

OPERATIONS 
SUPERVISOR

 (U35.N) 

OPERATOR III
(29.N)

New Budgeted 
Position

New Budgeted 
Position

Title change 
from Analyst

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 44



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Water Operations

Irvine Ranch Water District

Operations Administration

952,450 1,005,296 52,846Regular Labor 328,505711,320805

2,000 2,000 0Telecommunication 919356805

6,000 6,400 400Operating Supplies 4244,415805

2,500 2,500 0Printing 7560805

1,000 1,000 0Postage 55123805

20,000 20,000 0Office Supplies 3,21110,774805

0 0 0Rep & Maint IRWD 038805

164,000 164,000 0Personnel Training 15,94742,078805

163,500 163,500 0Other Professional Fees 10,03051,036805

1,311,450 1,364,696 53,246359,847820,140Total  Operations Administration

Total  Water Operations 58,765,850 58,094,890 (670,960)27,722,92846,161,787

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 13 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 45



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Water Operations

Irvine Ranch Water District

Water Operations

36,234,030 35,286,508 (947,522)Water Purchase 18,698,94029,027,599420

1,808,890 2,013,302 204,412Regular Labor 733,4191,630,882420

379,700 453,300 73,600Overtime Labor 182,048331,708420

10,098,850 9,863,218 (235,632)Electricity 4,286,9827,697,255420

35,600 45,800 10,200Fuel 17,28932,769420

48,800 53,900 5,100Telecommunication 24,11148,009420

33,400 34,800 1,400Other Utilities 10,68330,675420

1,589,910 1,465,004 (124,906)Chemicals 526,465925,856420

47,600 64,960 17,360Operating Supplies 34,91662,062420

184,000 204,000 20,000Permits, Licenses and Fees 122,70146,023420

9,000 9,000 0Equipment Rental 4,9128,588420

873,800 824,300 (49,500)Rep & Maint OCSD & Other 380,128266,253420

1,179,420 1,274,130 94,710Rep & Maint IRWD 111,465543,752420

108,000 117,360 9,360Engineering Fees 65,179156,722420

0 12,500 12,500Data Processing 00420

0 340 340Personnel Training 0501420

75,500 78,000 2,500Other Professional Fees 8,78032,290420

3,000 3,000 0Safety 00420

52,709,500 51,803,422 (906,078)25,208,01840,840,944Total  Water Operations

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 10 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 46



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Water Operations

Irvine Ranch Water District

Field Services

1,550,900 1,542,036 (8,864)Regular Labor 690,5311,370,933425

150,000 166,000 16,000Overtime Labor 97,440182,299425

62,400 124,800 62,400Contract Labor 24,84257,249425

0 0 0Telecommunication 146631425

500 800 300Chemicals 9141,006425

78,000 126,430 48,430Operating Supplies 65,30088,756425

13,000 14,800 1,800Permits, Licenses and Fees 6,26813,461425

2,500 2,500 0Equipment Rental 1,8070425

250,800 209,800 (41,000)Rep & Maint IRWD 58,337266,600425

0 680 680Personnel Training 00425

1,000 1,000 0Other Professional Fees 124636425

2,109,100 2,188,846 79,746945,7091,981,571Total  Field Services

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 11 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 47



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Water Operations

Irvine Ranch Water District

Construction Services

1,626,000 1,646,816 20,816Regular Labor 695,2631,569,998430

221,000 223,000 2,000Overtime Labor 111,246191,517430

62,400 125,800 63,400Contract Labor 55,780144,760430

0 0 0Telecommunication 105205430

400 400 0Chemicals 228467430

158,000 164,520 6,520Operating Supplies 80,623126,111430

67,000 88,000 21,000Permits, Licenses and Fees 43,12750,932430

14,000 10,000 (4,000)Equipment Rental 02,418430

487,000 473,000 (14,000)Rep & Maint IRWD 222,865431,488430

0 0 0Engineering Fees 01,130430

0 6,390 6,390Personnel Training 00430

0 0 0Other Professional Fees 117106430

2,635,800 2,737,926 102,1261,209,3542,519,132Total  Construction Services

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 12 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 48



 
 

  
OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

 

 
RECYCLING OPERATIONS 

Program Description 
 

The mission of the Recycling Operations Department is to operate the District’s resource recovery 
systems in a regulatory compliant, efficient, and environmentally safe manner that provides the 
highest level of customer satisfaction.  The Recycling Operations Department provides cost-
effective, reliable and compliant operation of the District's Sewage Collection Systems, the 
Michelson Water Recycling Plant (MWRP), the Los Alisos Water Recycling Plant (LAWRP), the 
Natural Treatment System (NTS), and the Automation Systems.   
 

Major Goals 
 
 Coordinate with Water Operations to optimize production of recycled water and balance with 

system storage; 
 Meet the Department’s adopted Operations budget; 
 Achieve zero lost time accidents; 
 Maintain 100% compliance with all regulatory requirements; 
 Refine operational key performance indicators (KPIs) to optimize efficiency and cost 

effectiveness; 
 Transition operational responsibilities for the completed portions of the MWRP Biosolids and 

Energy Recovery Facilities milestones to Recycling Operations; 
 Finalize plan for FOG integration into the Biosolids facility once its facility is online; 
 Maintain and develop staff competency through a combination of internal and external training; 
 Evaluate and optimize chemical usage for the collection and recycling facilities systems; 
 Implement findings from the marketing and distribution of pellets from the MWRP Biosolids 

Project 
 Develop concepts and partnerships relative to implementing a food waste addition/recycling 

program at the MWRP once the new solids handling facilities are completed; 
 Collaborate with Encina Wastewater Authority on lessons learned, O&M, product marketing and 

distribution, and resource sharing opportunities related to Biosolids;  
 Explore participation with other agencies in MWRP Biosolids facilities (bringing in class B 

solids);  
 Evaluate and implement options for cleaning and inspection of large sewer lines within the 

IRWD service area; 
 Continue to work with partners in Newport Bay Executive Committee to develop and implement 

the elements of the Nitrogen Selenium Management Plan; and 
 Complete the upgrade of the Water Operations SCADA. 
 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 49



PROCESS 
SPECIALIST 

(From 29. N to 32.N)

OPERATOR II
(27.N)

OPERATIONS
MANAGER

(U19.E) 

OPERATIONS 
SUPERVISOR

(U35.N)

MWRP OPERATIONS (550)

OPERATOR III
(29.N)

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
RECYCLING OPERATIONS

FISCAL YEAR 2017-18

MANAGEMENT 
ANALYST

(10.E)

OPERATOR II
(27.N)

OPERATOR III
(29.N)

OPERATIONS 
SUPERVISOR

(U35.N)

COLLECTION SYSTEMS (570)

COLLECTION
SYSTEMS
MANAGER

(U17E) 

COLLECTION
SYSTEMS

TECH I  
(15.N)

COLLECTION 
SYSTEMS 

SUPERVISOR
(U30.N) 

SENIOR 
COLLECTION 

SYSTEMS CCTV 
(25.N)

COLLECTION
SYSTEMS

TECH II (20.N)

COLLECTION 
SYSTEMS 

SUPERVISOR 
(U30.N)

COLLECTION
SYSTEMS

TECH II (20.N)

CHIEF PLANT 
OPERATOR

(U18.E)

OPERATOR III 
(29.N)

OPERATOR II 
(27.N)

LOS ALISOS RECYCLING 
PLANT OPERATIONS (590)

OPERATOR I 
(20.N)

COLLECTION
SYSTEMS 

CCTV TECH
(21.N)

COLLECTION
SYSTEMS

TECH I 
(15.N) 

SR. COLLECTION 
SYSTEMS TECH 

(25.N)

OPERATOR I
(20.N)

OPERATIONS 
SUPERVISOR

(U35.N)

DIRECTOR OF 
RECYCLING 

OPERATIONS 
(U27.E) 

Exec Director 
of Operations

SR. WETLANDS 
SPECIALIST

(29.N)

WETLANDS 
SCIENTIST

(From 24. N to 32.N)

NATURAL 
RESOURCES 

MANAGER
(U17E)

NTS OPERATIONS (515)

OPERATOR III
(29.N)

OPERATIONS 
SUPERVISOR

(U35.N)

RECYCLING OPERATIONS

STUDENT INTERN

OPERATOR II
(27.N)

OPERATOR I
(20.N)

OPERATOR I
(20.N)

OPERATIONS ADMIN (805)

AUTOMATION (820)
(Create 520 for FY17-18)

AUTOMATION
MANAGER

(U17E) 

AUTOMATION 
SUPERVISOR

(U34.N) 

AUTOMATION 
PROGRAMMER 

(15.E)

AUTOMATION 
SPECIALIST

(32.N)

AUTOMATION
TECHNICIAN

(28.N) 

WETLANDS 
SPECIALIST

(24.N)

Regular F/T 
budgeted 
position

Symbol Key

Title 
change

New budgeted 
position

Upgraded/
Reclass 
position

Temporary/
Contract 
position

Delete 
position

Transferred 
position

Downgraded 
position

Upgrade from 
Wetlands 
Specialist Upgrade from 

Operator III

Title change 
from Analyst

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 50



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Recycling Operations

Irvine Ranch Water District

NTS Operations

341,600 358,642 17,042Regular Labor 129,951265,130515

4,000 6,000 2,000Overtime Labor 7002,152515

30,000 85,000 55,000Contract Labor 29,27272,692515

261,200 267,744 6,544Electricity 63,438158,497515

0 3,500 3,500Telecommunication 1,854425515

22,000 14,000 (8,000)Operating Supplies 3,55018,418515

0 1,000 1,000Printing 81826515

0 0 0Postage 0228515

1,000 4,000 3,000Permits, Licenses and Fees 3,0902,633515

7,000 6,000 (1,000)Equipment Rental 2,3925,714515

24,000 26,000 2,000Rep & Maint OCSD & Other 6,55924,059515

1,043,300 1,460,000 416,700Rep & Maint IRWD 563,073987,916515

92,500 192,500 100,000Engineering Fees 17,51543,107515

2,800 4,300 1,500Personnel Training 3142,555515

0 0 0Other Professional Fees 0577515

0 0 0Safety 0499515

12,000 12,000 0Other 47513,122515

1,841,400 2,440,686 599,286822,2641,598,550Total  NTS Operations

Monday, April 03, 2017 Page 14 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 51



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Recycling Operations

Irvine Ranch Water District

Automation Department

0 657,022 657,022Regular Labor 00520

0 80,500 80,500Overtime Labor 0520

0 8,030 8,030Operating Supplies 0520

0 190,600 190,600Rep & Maint IRWD 0520

0 170 170Personnel Training520

0 120,600 120,600Other Professional Fees 0520

0 3,000 3,000Safety 0520

0 1,059,922 1,059,92200Total  Automation Department

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 15 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 52



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Recycling Operations

Irvine Ranch Water District

MWRP Operations

1,474,375 1,521,968 47,593Regular Labor 555,1911,058,406550

108,900 108,900 0Overtime Labor 50,206118,493550

30,000 30,000 0Contract Labor 038,783550

3,025,000 3,220,610 195,610Electricity 1,198,1682,639,745550

76,400 100,617 24,217Fuel 3,1457,481550

1,800 1,800 0Telecommunication 01,512550

796,225 902,116 105,891Chemicals 206,621514,339550

74,900 74,900 0Operating Supplies 14,59124,907550

250 250 0Permits, Licenses and Fees 00550

12,000 12,000 0Equipment Rental 00550

13,244,000 12,744,000 (500,000)Rep & Maint OCSD & Other 6,585,45415,277,304550

64,000 64,000 0Rep & Maint IRWD 261839550

2,000 4,020 2,020Personnel Training 01,421550

75,000 75,000 0Other Professional Fees 019550

12,000 12,000 0Safety 0226550

349,200 221,440 (127,760)Biosolids Disposals 49,14892,991550

19,346,050 19,093,621 (252,429)8,662,78519,776,466Total  MWRP Operations

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 16 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 53



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Recycling Operations

Irvine Ranch Water District

Collections Systems

1,223,900 1,259,522 35,622Regular Labor 544,2001,088,119570

111,500 148,500 37,000Overtime Labor 64,709134,424570

113,000 108,929 (4,071)Electricity 55,369111,202570

16,000 20,000 4,000Telecommunication 10,17217,144570

552,000 500,000 (52,000)Chemicals 217,699466,410570

64,000 64,360 360Operating Supplies 23,32771,597570

439,800 439,800 0Rep & Maint IRWD 117,715293,540570

0 4,720 4,720Personnel Training 050570

80,000 80,000 0Other Professional Fees 0325570

0 2,000 2,000Mileage Reimbursement 1,7200570

10,000 10,000 0Safety 01,926570

2,610,200 2,637,831 27,6311,034,9112,184,737Total  Collections Systems

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 17 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 54



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Recycling Operations

Irvine Ranch Water District

LAWRP Operations

615,050 611,538 (3,512)Regular Labor 273,194605,780590

61,100 66,400 5,300Overtime Labor 26,05566,130590

932,150 763,452 (168,698)Electricity 358,144860,876590

1,000 1,000 0Fuel 1341,009590

194,400 205,500 11,100Chemicals 153,255191,769590

6,600 6,600 0Operating Supplies 4,07810,937590

0 0 0Office Supplies 88471590

256,000 256,000 0Rep & Maint OCSD & Other 147,875174,647590

104,000 104,000 0Rep & Maint IRWD 36,069100,372590

1,600 940 (660)Other Professional Fees 300300590

1,700 1,700 0Safety 0256590

25,000 25,000 0Biosolids Disposals 10,10020,408590

2,198,600 2,042,130 (156,470)1,009,2922,032,955Total  LAWRP Operations

Total  Recycling Operations 25,996,250 27,274,190 1,277,94011,529,25225,592,708

Monday, April 03, 2017 Page 18 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 55



 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 56



 
 

  
OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

 

 
MAINTENANCE 

Program Description 
 

The mission of Maintenance Operations is to manage the District’s assets to ensure optimal life 
expectancy, reliability, efficiency and safety goals while providing the highest level of customer 
satisfaction.  Maintenance Operations coordinates the maintenance and repair of the District’s 
electrical, mechanical, instrumentation, fleet and facility assets by utilizing a comprehensive 
enterprise asset management system to ensure safe, reliable, and cost effective operation.  
 

Major Goals 
 
 Complete part one of the IBM Maximo software implementation activities for the Enterprise 

Asset Management (EAM) system including the replacement of the current computerized 
maintenance management system (CMMS) with Maximo Asset Management and Maximo 
Scheduler;  

 Complete the asset data collection for the MWRP Biosolids and Energy Recovery Facilities; 
 Meet the Department’s adopted Maintenance and General Plant budgets; 
 Achieve zero lost time accidents;  
 Maintain 100% compliance with all regulatory requirements; 
 Identify and track operational Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) to optimize efficiency and cost 

effectiveness; 
 Complete the request for proposal (RFP) for the operation and maintenance of the biogas 

cleaning facilities and microturbines.  Secure the services of a contractor to perform these 
services; 

 Develop and implement an efficient comprehensive maintenance plan for the Baker Water 
Treatment Facility; 

 Support the District’s battery energy storage systems project through the planning, construction 
and operational phases; 

 Maintain and develop staff competency through a combination of internal and external training; 
 Investigate and expand the use of new technology to enhance and increase equipment 

reliability and staff productivity; 
 Support the design and construction of a compressed natural gas (CNG) filling station at the 

Operations Center to accommodate the District’s growing CNG fueled fleet; 
 Provide Engineering support for projects including the Biosolids and Energy Recovery Facilities, 

Newport Coast Lift Station improvements, Operations Center generator, San Diego Creek 
Pump Station improvements; 

 Optimize predictive maintenance measures through pump efficiency testing, lube oil analysis, 
vibration analysis, ultrasound detection, and infrared thermography program; 

 Maintain all District buildings and facilities to ensure longevity to include the installation of a new 
Operations Center roof; and, 

 Perform all required maintenance on schedule to ensure safe and dependable cost effective 
fleet operation. 

 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 57



SR MAINTENANCE 
MECHANIC

(27.N) 

INSTRUMENTATION 
TECHNICIAN

(28.N)

SR MAINTENANCE
MECHANIC

(27.N) 

SR 
INSTRUMENTATION 

TECHNICIAN
(30.N)

SR ELECTRICAL
TECHNICIAN 

(30.N)

ELECTRICAL 
SUPERVISOR

(U34.N) 

MECHANICAL 
SERVICES

SUPERVISOR
(U32.N)

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
MAINTENANCE OPERATIONS

FISCAL YEAR 2017-18

MECHANICAL 
SERVICES 

SUPERVISOR
(U32.N)

ELECTRICAL
TECHNICIAN 

(28.N)

SR MAINTENANCE
MECHANIC

(27.N) 

MAINTENANCE
MECHANIC 

(22.N)

MECHANICAL 
SERVICES

SUPERVISOR
(U32.N)

ELECTRICAL SERVICES (820) MECHANICAL SERVICES (840)

MAINTENANCE
MECHANIC (22.N)

MAINTENANCE
MECHANIC 

(22.N)

INSTRUMENTATION 
SUPERVISOR

(U34.N) 

MECHANICAL 
SERVICES 
MANAGER

(U19.E) 

DIRECTOR OF 
MAINTENANCE

(U27.E)

Exec Director 
of Operations

ELECTRICAL & 
INSTRUMENTATION 

MANAGER
(U17.E) 

LANDSCAPE 
CONTRACTS 

ADMINISTRATOR 
(28.N)

FACILITIES/FLEET
MANAGER

(U17.E)

FACILITIES
SERVICES

SUPERVISOR
(U31.N)

FACILITIES SERVICES (850) 
& FLEET SERVICES (870)

LANDSCAPEBUILDING/REPAIR FLEET SERVICES

VEHICLE/EQUIP
MECHANIC (22.N)

SENIOR VEHICLE/ 
EQUIP. MECHANIC

(27.N)

FLEET SUPERVISOR
(U31.N)

SENIOR FACILITIES 
SVCS TECH 

(27.N)

FACILITIES SVCS
TECHNICIAN (22.N)

OPERATIONS ADMIN (805)

ASSET SYSTEMS 
MANAGER

(U17.E)

MAINTENANCE OPERATIONS

ASSET SYSTEMS (805)
(Create 830 for FY17-18)

Regular F/T 
budgeted 
position

Symbol Key

Title 
change

New budgeted 
position

Upgraded/
Reclass 
position

Temporary/
Contract 
position

Delete position

Transferred 
position

Downgraded 
position

ASSET 
MAINTENANCE 
COORDINATOR

(32.N) 

2 New Budgeted 
Positions

ASSET SYSTEMS 
ANALYST

(10.E) 

New Budgeted 
Position for 

1/1/2018

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 58



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Maintenance

Irvine Ranch Water District

Electrical Services

1,768,350 1,202,510 (565,840)Regular Labor 715,4431,346,855820

158,700 161,900 3,200Overtime Labor 74,074163,527820

0 0 0Telecommunication 0129820

92,950 105,700 12,750Operating Supplies 89,832110,320820

909,200 951,600 42,400Rep & Maint IRWD 457,168846,830820

0 0 0Personnel Training 0145820

2,800 800 (2,000)Other Professional Fees 271616820

16,800 16,800 0Safety 3,76820,686820

2,948,800 2,439,310 (509,490)1,340,5562,489,108Total  Electrical Services

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 19 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 59



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Maintenance

Irvine Ranch Water District

Asset Systems

0 321,824 321,824Regular Labor830

0 6,000 6,000Overtime Labor 00830

0 9,000 9,000Operating Supplies 00830

0 75,000 75,000Other Professional Fees 00830

0 1,000 1,000Safety 00830

0 412,824 412,82400Total  Asset Systems

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 20 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 60



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Maintenance

Irvine Ranch Water District

Mechanical Services

1,379,100 1,308,552 (70,548)Regular Labor 506,0241,098,907840

99,000 93,600 (5,400)Overtime Labor 34,45372,816840

0 40,000 40,000Contract Labor 14043,258840

0 0 0Telecommunication 0105840

0 0 0Chemicals 0919840

81,200 35,500 (45,700)Operating Supplies 5,89764,566840

4,000 0 (4,000)Equipment Rental 00840

1,006,000 910,400 (95,600)Rep & Maint IRWD 499,808917,160840

0 1,690 1,690Personnel Training 0103840

0 0 0Other Professional Fees 0352840

6,200 6,200 0Safety 01,593840

2,575,500 2,395,942 (179,558)1,046,3222,199,779Total  Mechanical Services

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 21 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 61



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Maintenance

Irvine Ranch Water District

Facilities Services

621,700 640,284 18,584Regular Labor 255,945555,199850

23,400 26,000 2,600Overtime Labor 13,23121,830850

25,000 0 (25,000)Contract Labor 8,40074,031850

390,000 397,924 7,924Electricity 160,077304,661850

30,000 30,000 0Fuel 43,00520,544850

0 400 400Telecommunication 120369850

73,400 74,400 1,000Other Utilities 33,02560,954850

83,900 83,900 0Operating Supplies 38,30168,153850

1,574,900 1,642,100 67,200Rep & Maint IRWD 803,1811,638,838850

0 340 340Personnel Training 16,0862,651850

0 0 0Other Professional Fees 0244850

2,822,300 2,895,348 73,0481,371,3712,747,474Total  Facilities Services

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 22 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 62



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Maintenance

Irvine Ranch Water District

Fleet Services

375,000 387,176 12,176Regular Labor 184,590374,081870

10,300 10,300 0Overtime Labor 3,01011,247870

423,400 450,000 26,600Fuel 209,429443,383870

61,600 61,600 0Other Utilities 28,56354,914870

7,800 7,800 0Operating Supplies 1,41813,350870

7,500 8,500 1,000Permits, Licenses and Fees 3,2002,188870

12,000 8,000 (4,000)Equipment Rental 3990870

499,400 540,400 41,000Rep & Maint IRWD 284,525581,841870

0 1,692 1,692Personnel Training870

132,000 138,000 6,000Mileage Reimbursement 80,577164,267870

1,529,000 1,613,468 84,468795,7111,645,271Total  Fleet Services

Total  Maintenance 9,875,600 9,756,892 (118,708)4,553,9609,081,632

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 23 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 63



 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 64



 

        RECYCLED WATER DEVELOPMENT 

OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 
 

Program Description 
 
The Water Resources and Policy Department is responsible for developing and implementing 
water resource supply and demand management programs to enhance the reliability of water 
supplies for District customers.  The department is also responsible for managing the District’s 
environmental compliance program, regulatory requirements and public affairs.  
 
Recycled Water Development:  IRWD is recognized as a national leader in recycled water based in 
large part on the many years of experience IRWD has with recycled water, the large number of 
meters served, and groundbreaking projects IRWD has completed.  IRWD currently serves more 
than 5,300 recycled water meters including more than 65 commercial dual-plumbed buildings 
where recycled water is used for flushing toilets and urinals and more than 610 single-family lots 
where recycled water is used for irrigating both the front and back yards.  The Recycled Water 
Group continues to pursue additional customers for recycled water in the service area which 
includes the conversion of dozens of untreated water customers to recycled water.  IRWD is also 
recognized for its support of recycled water through organizations such as WateReuse, a national 
recycled water advocacy group.  IRWD, in concert with WateReuse, is active in state-wide policy, 
legislation, regulation, and support for other agencies which face challenges as their programs are 
initiated or are being expanded.  IRWD has a lead role in working with other water recycling 
agencies and the regulatory agencies in Orange County to establish standards for on-going 
inspection and testing of recycled water use sites.  In fiscal year 2016-16, the Recycled Water 
Group will be conducting studies with key customers to determine the feasibility of using recycled 
water for industrial applications, expanding the use of recycled water for irrigation by retrofitting 
potable irrigation areas to recycled water, and using recycled water to irrigate orchards that are 
more sensitive to some constituents found in recycled water. 
 

Major Goals 
 

RECYCLED WATER DEVELOPMENT 
 Convert a minimum of 250 acre-feet of imported water use to recycled water; 
 Apply for new Local Resources Program funding from MWD which provides a “per-acre foot” 

financial incentive to increase the use of recycled water.  Projects include the North Irvine Lake 
Pipeline Conversion Project which will conserve approximately 2,500 acre-feet per year and the 
UCI Central Plant cooling tower project which will conserve 125 acre-feet per year; 

 Convert the UCI Central Plant cooling towers to recycled water; 
 Assist WateReuse California with its legislative agenda which includes allowing discharge of  

recycled water from impoundments during storm events; 
 Remain active the in Orange County Chapter of WateReuse California; 
 Fully develop the Recycled Water Use Site Inspection and Testing Program including at single-

family lots;  
 

RECYCLED WATER DEVELOPMENT 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 65



 

        RECYCLED WATER DEVELOPMENT 

OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 
 

 Work with other stakeholders in Orange County to develop standards for the on-going 
inspection and testing of recycled water use sites which can be a template used by other 
agencies throughout the state; and 

 Seek opportunities to dual-plumb hotels, condominiums, and apartment properties. 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 66



WATER EFFICIENCY 
MANAGER

(U17.E)

RECYCLED WATER
SPECIALIST 

(22.N)

EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR OF 

WATER POLICY
(U30.E)

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
WATER RESOURCES AND POLICY

FISCAL YEAR 2017-18

ENGINEER
(U17.E)

General 
Manager

RECYCLED WATER 
DEVELOPMENT MGR

(U19.E)

WATER EFFICIENCY 
ANALYST 

(31.N)

SR WATER 
EFFICIENCY SPEC. 

(29.N)

WATER RESOURCES 
MANAGER

(U19.E)

RECYCLED 
WATER (710)

WATER RESOURCES

SR RECYCLED WATER
SPECIALIST 

(27.N)

WATER RESOURCES 
PLANNER

(13.E)

RECYCLED WATER
PROJECT SPECIALIST 

(29.N)

ENVIRONMENTAL 
COMPLIANCE 
SPECIALIST

(From 29.N to 30.N)

DIRECTOR OF WATER 
RESOURCES 

(U27.E)

WATER EFFICIENCY (750)

EXECUTIVE 
ASSISTANT

(U26.N)

WATER EFFICIENCY 
SPECIALIST (24.N)

PUBLIC AFFAIRS 
MANAGER

(U18.E)

GRAPHIC DESIGN 
SPECIALIST

(30.N)

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC 
AFFAIRS
(U27.E)

PUBLIC AFFAIRS 
ASSISTANT

(22.N)

PUBLIC AFFAIRS
(730)

SENIOR PUBLIC 
AFFAIRS SPECIALIST 

(10.E)

TEMP WATER 
EFFCNCY SPEC (24.N)

WATER RESOURCES & 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE (720)

STUDENT 
INTERN

SR SCIENTIST 
(32.N)

SCIENTIST
(28.N)

REGULATORY 
COMPLIANCE (740)

REGULATORY 
COMPLIANCE 

MANAGER 
(U18.E)

REGULATORY
COMPLIANCE 

ANALYST
(10.E)

PUBLIC AFFAIRS
SPECIALIST 

(29.N)

Regular F/T 
budgeted 
position

Symbol Key

Title 
change

New budgeted 
position

Upgraded/
Reclass 
position

Temporary/
Contract 
position

Delete 
position

Transferred 
position

Downgraded 
position

Title change 
from 

Eng Tech III
 Reclass to 

30.N

WATER RESOURCES 
SPECIALIST 

(24.N)

New Budgeted 
Position

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 67



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Water Resources and Policy

Irvine Ranch Water District

Recycled Water Development

897,840 611,704 (286,136)Regular Labor 625,9471,268,393710

0 4,000 4,000Overtime Labor (850)44,696710

97,100 46,000 (51,100)Contract Labor 5,771440,840710

60,000 30,000 (30,000)Operating Supplies 68,899128,817710

500 500 0Printing 14345710

2,000 2,000 0Postage 9102,944710

40,000 75,000 35,000Permits, Licenses and Fees 11,06038,100710

4,000 4,000 0Office Supplies 1,5363,605710

0 0 0Rep & Maint IRWD 7326,186710

108,000 115,000 7,000Engineering Fees 33,00073,187710

16,000 14,000 (2,000)Personnel Training 4,43018,015710

576,600 458,600 (118,000)Other Professional Fees 281,660862,443710

0 0 0Mileage Reimbursement 016710

0 0 0Conservation (10,949)2,294,006710

1,802,040 1,360,804 (441,236)1,021,6305,201,293Total  Recycled Water Development

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 24 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 68



 

 

                    OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 

WATER RESOURCES AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE 

 

Program Description 
 
The Water Resources and Policy Department is responsible for developing and implementing 
water resource supply and demand management programs to enhance the reliability of water 
supplies for District customers.  The department is also responsible for managing the District’s 
environmental compliance program, regulatory requirements and public affairs.  
 
Water Resources and Environmental Compliance:  The Water Resources and Environmental 
Compliance Department is responsible for the development of water supply programs and banking 
projects primarily outside of the local Orange County area.  These programs and projects are 
increasing the diversity and reliability of the District’s water supplies by securing water supplies 
from sources outside of Orange County during wet periods and storing them for future use in 
groundwater banking projects in Kern County.  The Department is also responsible for exploring 
and developing potential local water supply reliability opportunities.  The District’s efforts in the 
development of these programs and projects are needed in response to stressors on water supply 
reliability such as environmental pressures in the Delta, expanding statewide population, climate 
change, and expanding regulatory requirements. 
 
This department is responsible for the planning and development of the District’s water banking 
programs.  In addition, this department is responsible for the negotiation and development of 
agreements with other agencies and entities throughout the State of California for water transfer 
and exchanges that facilitate the recharge, storage and recovery of water at the water banking 
projects.  It is also responsible for the negotiation and the development of agreements that 
facilitate the delivery of water recovered from the water banking projects to IRWD’s service area 
through facilities owned by the California Department of Water Resources, Kern County Water 
Agency and Metropolitan Water District of Southern California.  This department is also 
responsible for the participation of IRWD-owned lands located in the Palo Verde Irrigation District 
(PVID) in MWD’s existing fallowing program and any new water conservation related programs that 
MWD and PVID implement in the future.   
 
Other responsibilities of the Water Resources and Environmental Compliance department include 
managing the District’s environmental compliance programs, and overseeing the District’s salt 
management, energy efficiency and renewable energy planning activities.  The environmental 
compliance programs focus on fulfilling the District’s compliance requirements for the operation of 
potable water and wastewater systems operations, facility replacements and the construction of 
new facilities.  
 
  

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 69



 

 

                    OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 

WATER RESOURCES AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE 

 

Major Goals 
 
WATER RESOURCES 
 Bank 90,000 AF of water for IRWD, develop 70 cfs of extraction and additional recharge and 

storage capacity as needed for IRWD and its water banking partners; 
 Negotiate a MWD Policy for the delivery of MWD system water to IRWD’s Kern County Banking 

Projects; 
 Implement long-term unbalanced exchange agreements with Central Coast Water Authority,  

Carpinteria Valley Water District, Castaic Lake Water Agency and/or Antelope Valley-East Kern 
Water Agency and others; 
Renew a multi-year unbalanced exchange among Dudley Ridge Water District, MWD and Kern 
County Water Agency that facilities exchanges of IRWD’s SWP water allotment associated with 
the Jackson Ranch; 

 Develop and execute a one-year exchange agreement with Buena Vista Water Storage 
Agreement for pre-1914 Kern River water to be delivered to the Stockdale Integrated Banking 
Project; 

 Develop a business plan for IRWD’s water banking projects and programs; 
 Execute long term exchange agreements to facilitate exports of Kern River water to IRWD 

service area; 
 Participate in water conservation programs implemented by MWD and Palo Verde Irrigation 

District, such as land fallowing, which can make water available for other uses;  
 Investigate land fallowing and water transfer opportunities; 
 Investigate opportunities to purchase State Water Project Table A entitlement; 
 Construct Drought Relief Project recovery and conveyance facilities; 
 Increase IRWD’s amount of water stored in Southern California; and, 
 Identify, evaluate and secure land for the additional third property under the Stockdale 

Integrated Banking Project for joint use with Rosedale. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE 
 Investigate fully developing the District’s rights to the use of San Diego Creek flows; Investigate 

developing a mitigation credit inventory for the District’s San Joaquin Marsh; and, 
 Fulfill the District’s environmental compliance requirements for capital projects, replacements 

and operations including the development and approval of Mitigated Negative Declarations, 
Environmental Impact Reports and Notices of Exemption. 

 
ENERGY AND OTHER PLANNING 
 Implement recommendations from Embedded Energy Plan; 
 Evaluate the impact varying water supplies on maintaining the District’s salt balance;   
 Update Energy Master Plan; 
 Seek grant opportunities for District energy projects;  

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 70



 

 

                    OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 

WATER RESOURCES AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE 

 
 Participate in SCE’s Direct Access Program; and, 
 Maximize participation in the Preferred Resources Program. 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 71



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Water Resources and Policy

Irvine Ranch Water District

Water Resources and Environmental Compliance

603,590 992,638 389,048Regular Labor 292,424592,066720

800 400 (400)Overtime Labor 65191720

23,290 0 (23,290)Contract Labor 41,0086,361720

8,820 8,820 0Electricity 021,851720

263,500 732,000 468,500Permits, Licenses and Fees 215,14184,440720

0 0 0Office Supplies 0198720

368,500 608,900 240,400Rep & Maint IRWD 142,409223,042720

0 0 0Engineering Fees 0890720

3,000 0 (3,000)Personnel Training 9693,671720

26,100 56,000 29,900Other Professional Fees 49,44816,331720

1,297,600 2,398,758 1,101,158741,464949,041Total  Water Resources and Environmental Compliance

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 25 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 72



 

 

OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 
PUBLIC AFFAIRS 

 

Program Description 
 

The Water Resources and Policy Department is responsible for developing and implementing 
water resource supply and demand management programs to enhance the reliability of water 
supplies for District customers.  The department is also responsible for managing the District’s 
environmental compliance program, regulatory requirements and public affairs. 

 

PUBLIC AFFAIRS: 

The Public Affairs Department is responsible for communicating accurate and timely information 
about Irvine Ranch Water District services, projects, activities and programs.  The department uses 
multiple media platforms, including print, personal contact, education programs, publications, tours, 
as well as electronic and social media outlets.  The IRWD communication program serves the 
District and our customers by: 
 Creating and maintaining credibility and public trust; 
 Increasing customer awareness of the services we provide ; 
 Promoting the District’s value, activities and events of significance; 
 Ensuring that accurate and timely information is conveyed to the public regarding incidents; and 

issues of a controversial and/or sensitive nature; and 
 Promoting transparency and easy to access information. 

 
Major Goals 
  
WATER EFFICIENCY OUTREACH  
 Educate customers on efficient water use practices using multiple outreach platforms including 

resident tours of IRWD facilities, open houses, print, electronic media, and the internet; 
 Educate customers about reducing outdoor water use with the RightScape program;  
 Provide students in the IRWD service area with learning opportunities regarding water supply, 

water reliability, tap water and water use efficiency programs.  Promote water education 
programs to schools in the IRWD service area; and 

 Develop and implement next phase of customer drought outreach program. 
 

COMMUNITY OUTREACH AND MEDIA PROGRAMS 
 Refine, update and create effective multi-pronged social media outreach programs aimed at 

providing extended information channels for IRWD customers, the media, business partners, 
IRWD employees and other government entities; 

 Develop and implement tap water outreach program; 
 Enhance communications with customers through a targeted media outreach and public 

communications program including consistent and timely updates for construction and 
maintenance projects; and 

 Provide enhanced customer outreach initiatives based on customer feedback programs. 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 73



 

 

OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 
PUBLIC AFFAIRS 

 
BUSINESS OUTREACH PROGRAM 
 Develop strong working relationships with the business community by hosting a series of 

meetings for area businesses and those who are interested in working with IRWD.   

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 74



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Water Resources and Policy

Irvine Ranch Water District

Public Affairs

681,500 681,630 130Regular Labor 267,1380730

27,000 33,000 6,000Overtime Labor 12,65131,212730

0 0 0Contract Labor 063,705730

700 700 0Operating Supplies 016730

62,800 78,800 16,000Printing 21,67144,784730

200 200 0Postage 450730

6,000 6,000 0Office Supplies 9743,341730

12,400 11,400 (1,000)Personnel Training 1,0715,894730

1,599,800 1,402,300 (197,500)Other Professional Fees 199,0621,319,826730

0 0 0Mileage Reimbursement 058730

2,390,400 2,214,030 (176,370)502,6121,468,836Total  Public Affairs

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 26 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 75



 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 76



REGULATORY COMPLIANCE 
 

OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 
 
 

Program Description 
 
The Water Resources and Policy Department is responsible for developing and implementing 
water resource supply and demand management programs to enhance the reliability of water 
supplies for District customers.  The department is also responsible for managing the District’s 
environmental compliance program, regulatory requirements and public affairs.  
 
Regulatory Compliance:  The Regulatory Compliance group plans and manages District-wide 
programs to ensure the District complies with all environmental regulations governing water, 
sewage and groundwater discharges.  This includes the collection of all required samples of water, 
sewage and recycled water from distribution systems, treatment facilities, storage reservoirs, 
wetland operations and customer facilities to ensure quality services and products are served to 
our customers.  Regulatory Compliance also responds to customer service issues and concerns 
regarding water quality.   
 
In addition to water-related programs, Regulatory Compliance staff manages other regulatory 
compliance programs such as Hazardous Waste, Underground Storage Tanks, Aboveground 
Petroleum Storage Tanks, Universal Waste, Biosolids Compliance and the Air Quality Program, 
including MWRP’s Title V Permit.  The regulatory mandated Fats, Oils and Grease (FOG) Program 
that requires the District to control FOG from entering its collections system is also managed by 
Regulatory Compliance staff.  The FOG program consists of permitting, plan checks, inspections 
and enforcement of Food Service Establishments (FSE) in the District’s service area.  Regulatory 
Compliance participates with the Orange County Sanitation District and South Orange County 
Wastewater Authority to co-manage the implementation of the District’s Industrial Pretreatment 
Program.  Regulatory Compliance is an active participant in representing the District at the 
Southern California Alliance of Publicly Owned Treatment Works (SCAP) and the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies Regulatory Work Group (CASA RWG) Committee meetings for 
Air and Water Issues. 
 

Major Goals 
 
REGULATORY COMPLIANCE: 
 Ensure the District operates in full compliance with all applicable federal, state and local 

environmental, water and air quality laws and regulations; 
 Respond to Water Quality Customer Contacts and investigate the customer's concern; 
 Determine required monitoring programs to address all regulatory requirements for potable, 

sewage and recycled water; 
 Coordinate with other agencies with respect to Industrial Waste Pretreatment Programs and 

other projects; 
 Research and provide recommendations for an IRWD implemented Industrial Waste  

Pretreatment Program; 
 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 77



REGULATORY COMPLIANCE 
 

OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 
 

 Evaluate requirements and options for long-term operation of the Fats, Oils and Grease (FOG) 
Program; 

 Plan, organize and supervise the work of the Compliance Monitoring Group; 
 Collect potable system distribution and storage samples to comply with the Department of 

Drinking Water (DDW) monitoring plan and to proactively identify any developing quality issues 
in the system; 

 Implement and manage the District’s School Lead Sampling Program; 
 Collect MWRP and LAWRP samples to assure proper operation of the treatment facilities and 

compliance with each facilities' NPDES permit; 
 Assist and provide resources to other departments with environmental, water and air permitting 

issues; 
 Ensure compliance with all non-major and Title V air permit requirements for testing and 

reporting; 
 Participate in industry stakeholder groups for air, water and biosolids regulatory issues;  
 Prepare and submit new and renewal permit applications for routine activities, equipment and 

projects; and 
 Assist in the development of environmental quality projects and coordinate research activities. 

 
 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 78



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Water Resources and Policy

Irvine Ranch Water District

Regulatory Compliance

694,485 730,756 36,271Regular Labor 342,3670740

76,770 73,960 (2,810)Overtime Labor 29,76952,723740

0 14,500 14,500Contract Labor 15,9460740

61,100 59,400 (1,700)Operating Supplies 32,08255,585740

800 800 0Postage 1,326109740

504,245 523,245 19,000Permits, Licenses and Fees 400,207366,160740

800 800 0Office Supplies 37297740

2,000 2,000 0Rep & Maint OCSD & Other 02,049740

256,500 258,000 1,500Rep & Maint IRWD 110,532201,442740

162,300 262,200 99,900Engineering Fees 52,99899,330740

10,000 9,400 (600)Personnel Training 1,4648,145740

2,400 2,400 0Other Professional Fees 6251,366740

2,000 2,000 0Safety 00740

1,773,400 1,939,461 166,061987,688787,006Total  Regulatory Compliance

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Page 27 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 79



 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 80



        WATER EFFICIENCY 
 

     OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 
 

Program Description 
 

The Water Resources and Policy Department is responsible for developing and implementing 
water resource supply and demand management programs to enhance the reliability of water 
supplies for District customers.  The department is also responsible for managing the District’s 
environmental compliance programs and regulatory requirements and public affairs.  
 
Water Efficiency:  Demand management programs directly offset the need for developing 
additional water supplies and are a critical element in meeting the District’s water 
resources/reliability objectives.  IRWD has provided industry leadership through the development 
of innovative and aggressive demand management programs focusing on water use efficiency and 
sewage resource recycling.  An updated Water Use Efficiency Plan was adopted in December 
2013.  The focus was shifted beginning in fiscal year 2015-16 in response to a state mandated 
conservation target in response to the statewide drought.  As a result of significantly improved 
hydrologic conditions, staff anticipates transitioning back to implementing the District’s long-term 
water efficiency programs.  Water efficiency programs including the outdoor efficiency RightScape 
program, new data reporting technologies to engage customers, tactical incentives and 
participation in innovative pilots and research that maintain IRWD’s leadership position are 
incorporated into the fiscal year 2017-18 budget.  IRWD will continue to be engaged in the 
development and implementation of local, regional, state-wide and national water efficiency and 
demand management policies.  
 
Major Goals 

 
WATER EFFICIENCY 
 Assist IRWD customers in meeting state mandated water efficiency goals through ongoing 

implementation of enhanced outreach and cost-effective demand management programs; 
 Develop partnerships with private and public entities to leverage the effectiveness and reach of 

water efficiency programs; 
 Research and implement, as appropriate, new technologies and innovative programs to assist 

customers with improving their water use efficiency with a special emphasis on the RightScape 
outdoor conservation program; 

 Continue to partner with commercial, industrial and institutional customers to implement cost-
effective water use efficiency programs; 

 Continue to support and expand enhanced customer engagement and reporting as a tool to 
motivate additional water use efficiency; 

 Continue to support and expand educational programs for the professional landscape industry; 
Implement the use of enhanced GIS data to improve customer allocation-setting, outreach and 
programs targeted toward outdoor water use; 

 Actively participate in statewide policy discussions addressing the water-energy nexus; 
 
 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 81



        WATER EFFICIENCY 
 

     OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 

Draft 4/06/2010 

 
 
 Actively engage in discussions with the State Water Resources Control Board, the Department 

of Water Resources and other stakeholders on implementation of state’s Long Term 
Conservation Framework for efficient water use that balances local conditions and supplies, 
recycled water, prior conservation, growth and other equity adjustments; 

 Establish the appropriate metrics and quantify water efficiency targets; and, 
 Evaluate water use efficiency programs and Water Use Efficiency Plan. 
 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 82



Consolidated Operating Expense Budget for FY 2017-18

2016-17 
Orig Budget

2017-18 
Prop Budget Incr/(Decr)Expense Name

2016-17 
Actual thru 

12/31/16
2015-16 

ActualDept No

Water Resources and Policy

Irvine Ranch Water District

Water Efficiency

474,200 542,316 68,116Regular Labor 00750

36,000 16,000 (20,000)Overtime Labor 8,5730750

128,560 70,000 (58,560)Contract Labor 135,5300750

5,000 2,500 (2,500)Operating Supplies 2710750

0 0 0Office Supplies 3900750

30,000 30,000 0Rep & Maint IRWD 2,8840750

16,000 17,500 1,500Personnel Training 13,6440750

288,000 238,000 (50,000)Other Professional Fees 70,9890750

2,964,500 2,012,000 (952,500)Conservation (633,607)0750

3,942,260 2,928,316 (1,013,944)(401,326)0Total  Water Efficiency

Total  Water Resources and Policy 11,205,700 10,841,369 (364,331)2,852,0688,406,176

GRAND TOTAL 153,160,718 2,819,518150,341,20063,691,613121,711,607

Monday, April 03, 2017 Page 28 of 28Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 83



 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 84



SUMMARY*

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Increase %
2017-18 2016-17 (Decrease) Inc/(Dec)

Information Systems 681,800$       696,700$       (14,900)$        -2.14%

Transportation Equipment 580,000 563,000 17,000 3.02%

Laboratory Equipment 453,060 280,000 173,060 61.81%

Office Furniture and Equipment 119,500 (119,500) -100.00%

Equipment 587,100 3,847,900 (3,260,800) -84.74%

Structures/Improvements- Sand Canyon.MWRP 210,000 72,500 137,500 189.66%

  Sub-Total 2,511,960$    $5,579,600 ($3,067,640) -122.12%

  Less:  Vehicle Salvage Value (22,000) (23,500) 1,500 -

    Total General Plant 2,489,960$    5,556,100$    (3,066,140)$   -123.14%

Fiscal Year 2017-18

Funded by User Charges $1,627,910 65.38%

Funded by Capital Funds 655,300 26.32%

Funded by Overallocation Rev 206,750 8.30%

Total Fiscal Year 2017-18 $2,489,960 100.00%

Fiscal Year 2016-17

Funded by User Charges 4,466,200$    80.38%

Funded by Capital Funds 1,009,900 18.18%

Funded by Overallocation Rev 80,000 1.44%

Total Fiscal Year 2016-17 $5,556,100 100.00%

*  General Plant is included in the Capital Budget beginning FY 2016-17.  The asset listing detail is included in the 
Capital Budget book.  Staff will continue to include a summary that identifies the funding source in the Operating 
Budget.  

GENERAL PLANT

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 85



Finance &

Administrative Engineering Water

Description Administration Services & Planning Operations Policy Total

Information Systems and Technology -$                  624,800$       -$                57,000$        -$              681,800$      

Laboratory Equipment 78,000 375,060     453,060        

Other General Plant -                   

Office Furniture -                   

Work Class Equipment 587,100 587,100        

Transportation 580,000 580,000        

Structures/Improvements - Sand Canyon/MWRP 210,000 210,000        

Subtotal -$                  624,800$       -$                1,512,100$   375,060$   2,511,960$   

   Less Vehicle Salvage Value -                    -                     -                  (22,000) -                (22,000)

Total Fiscal Year 2017-18 -$                  624,800$       -$                1,490,100$   375,060$   2,489,960$   

Total Fiscal Year 2016-17 -                    696,700 -                  4,635,400 224,000     5,556,100

Increase/(Decrease) -$                  (71,900)$        -$                (3,145,300)$ 151,060$   (3,066,140)$ 

                                                                      ANALYSIS

GENERAL PLANT

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 86



Proposed
TASK Item Description Quantity Price 2017-18

Department: INFORMATION SERVICES
250 8030.250.1 iPad Replacement 25         792$         19,800$      

250 8030.250.2 iPads - Water Use Efficiency Department 5           800           4,000          
250 8031.250.1 Network Disk Storage Expansion and Replacement 1           245,000    245,000      
250 8031.250.2 Audio Visual Equipment - OPS Center Biosolids Conference Room 1           6,000        6,000          
250 8031.250.3 Server Replacement - Automation Department 1           22,000      22,000        

250 8031.250.4 Debt and Investment Management  Software 1           65,000      65,000        
250 8041.250.1 PC Replacement 77         1,818        140,000      
250 8041.250.2 Laptop Computer Replacement 19         2,447        46,500        
250 8041.250.3 Tablet Computer Replacement 6           2,083        12,500        
250 8041.250.4 Tablet Computers - Automation Department 6           3,167        19,000        
250 8041.250.5 Tablet Computers - Biosolids Operations Department 7           3,143        22,000        
250 8041.250.6 PC Replacement - Automation Department 7           929           6,500          
250 8041.250.7 Tablet Computers - Water Quality Department 8           2,063        16,500        

  Sub-Total 624,800$    

Department: NTS OPERATIONS
515 8036.515.1 (3) Solar Mixers 3           26,000$    78,000$      

  Sub-Total 78,000$      

Department: AUTOMATION DEPARTMENT
520 8033.520.1 (7) SCADA Desktop Computers-MWRP SCADA System Operation 7           1,000$      7,000$        
520 8033.520.2 (2) Dell Computer Servers-SCADA System 2           25,000      50,000        

  Sub-Total 57,000$      

Department: WATER QUALITY
600 8031.600.1 Misc. Laboratory Equipment for Unplanned Projects and Regulatory 1           $45,000 45,000$      
600 8031.600.1 Laboratory Equipment for Biosolids and Energy Recovery Project. 1           $25,000 25,000$      

600 8036.600.1 Laboratory Instrumentation for Future Biosolids and Energy Recovery 
Project.

1           $55,000 55,000$      

600 8036.600.2 Existing Laboratory Equipment Replacement 1           $162,000 162,000$    

600 8036.600.2 Laboratory Recirculating Deionized Water System 1           $44,000 44,000$      

  Sub-Total 331,000$    

Department: REGULARTORY COMPLIANCE
740 8031.740.1 Multi parameter water quality monitoring sondes for receiving water 1           23,060$    23,060$      
740 8031.740.2 Sigma automated samper used for sampling of LAWRP regulatory 1           8,000$      8,000$        
740 8031.740.3 Sigma automated samper used for sampling of MWRP regulatory 1           8,000$      8,000$        
740 8031.740.4 Rehabilitation/Replace of regulatory compliance sampling equipment 1           5,000$      5,000$        

  Sub-Total 44,060$      

Department: MECHANICAL SERVICES
840 8030.840.1 Vibexpert II - 2 channel system (part# VIB 5.310-2) 1           20,000$    20,000$      

  Sub-Total 20,000$      

GENERAL PLANT BUDGET

CONSOLIDATED

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 87



Proposed
TASK Item Description Quantity Price 2017-18

GENERAL PLANT BUDGET

CONSOLIDATED

Department: FACILITIES SERVICES
850 8037.850.1 Michelson Operations Center Computer Room HVAC 1           185,000$  185,000$    
850 8037.850.2 Sand Canyon HQ Central Plant HVAC Controller 1           25,000      25,000        

  Sub-Total 210,000$    

Department: FLEET SERVICES
870 8037.870.1 Electric Cart (Warehouse) 1           10,500$    10,500$      
870 8036.870.1 Boat, Controls, Engine, and Trailer 1           14,600$    14,600$      
870 8036.870.2 (2) Amphibious ATV's and Storage Containers 1           51,500$    51,500$      
870 8036.870.3 Forklift, Electric 1           38,400$    38,400$      
870 8036.870.4 Utility Cart, Electric 1           13,500$    13,500$      
870 8036.870.5 Scissor Lift, Electric 1           32,100$    32,100$      
870 8038.870.1 Backhoe Loader 1           130,000$  130,000$    
870 8038.870.2 CCTV Inspection Vehicle 1           199,500$  199,500$    
870 8038.870.3 24K LB. Boom Crane (Crane Truck) 1           290,000$  290,000$    
870 8055.870.1 Light Duty Pickup, 2WD 1           27,500$    27,500$      
870 8055.870.10 Light Duty SUV, 2WD 1           27,000$    27,000$      
870 8055.870.11 Medium Duty Pickup 2WD, DRW 1           37,000$    37,000$      
870 8055.870.2 Medium Duty Pickup, 4WD w/utility bed 1           38,300$    38,300$      
870 8055.870.3 Medium Duty Pickup, 2WD 1           27,500$    27,500$      
870 8055.870.4 Medium Pickup, 4WD 1           31,400$    31,400$      
870 8055.870.5 Medium Pickup, 4WD 1           31,400$    31,400$      
870 8055.870.5 Medium Pickup, 4WD 1           31,400$    31,400$      
870 8055.870.5 Medium Pickup, 4WD 1           31,400$    31,400$      
870 8055.870.6 Light Duty Pickup, 2WD 1           27,500$    27,500$      
870 8055.870.7 Light Duty SUV, 2WD 1           27,000$    27,000$      
870 8055.870.8 Medium Duty Pickup, 2WD 1           29,600$    29,600$      

  Sub-Total 1,147,100$ 

Total General Plant 2,511,960$ 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 88



GENERAL
MANAGER

LEGAL
COUNSEL

CAPITAL 
PROJECTS

SAFETY & 
SECURITY 

DEVELOPMENT 
SERVICES

OPERATIONS 
SUPPORT

HUMAN 
RESOURCES

HUMAN 
RESOURCES & 

SAFETY

PUBLIC AFFAIRS

Irvine Ranch Water District
Organizational Chart

(By Function)
Fiscal Year 2017-18

ENVIRONMENTAL 
COMPLIANCE

WATER 
RESOURCES

WATER 
EFFICIENCY

RECYCLED WTR 
PROGRAM 

DEVELOPMENT

WATER RESOURCES 
& POLICY

BOARD 
OF

DIRECTORS

INSPECTION 
SERVICES

GOVERNMENT 
RELATIONS

PLANNING

MWRP
CONSTRUCTION

RISK 
MANAGEMENT & 

CONTRACTS

ACCOUNTING

CUSTOMER
SERVICE

INFORMATION
SERVICES

PURCHASING

FINANCE & 
ADMINISTRATION

PAYROLL

CASH MGMT/
DEBT/

INVESTMENTS

ENGINEERING & 
WATER QUALITY

WATER 
BANKING

NTS 
OPERATIONS

WATER
OPERATIONS

FLEET
SERVICES

 CONSTRUCTION
SERVICES 

FACILITIES
SERVICES

OPERATIONS

MECHANICAL 
SERVICES 

MWRP
OPERATIONS

COLLECTION
SYSTEMS

LAWRP 
OPERATIONS

ELECTRICAL 
SERVICES 

WATER 
QUALITY

REGULATORY
COMPLIANCE

BIOSOLIDS 
HANDLING

ASSET 
MANAGEMENT

FIELD   
SERVICES

AUTOMATION 
SERVICES

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 89



Department 2015-16

Administration

Number of Positions 14.0 15.0 15.0

% change from prior year 27.3 % 7.1 % 0.0 %

Finance and Administrative Services

Number of Positions 75.0 80.0 81.0

% change from prior year 5.6 % 6.7 % 1.3 %

Engineering

Number of Positions 40.0 42.0 44.0

% change from prior year 5.3 % 5.0 % 4.8 %

Water Quality

Number of Positions 20.0 20.0 20.0

% change from prior year (28.6) % 0.0 % 0.0 %

 Water Policy 

Number of Positions 34.0 36.0 37.0

% change from prior year 25.9 % 5.9 % 2.8 %

Water Operations

Number of Positions 71.0 73.0 77.0 *

% change from prior year 1.4 % 2.8 % 5.5 %

Recycling Operations

Number of Positions 48.0 50.0 55.0

% change from prior year 11.6 % 4.2 % 10.0 %

Maintenance

Number of Positions 50.0 52.0 48.0 **

% change from prior year 4.2 % 4.0 % (7.7) %

Total Number of Positions 352.0 368.0 377.0

Number of Changed Positions 16.0 16.0 9.0
% Change From Prior Year 4.8 % 4.5 % 2.4 %

THREE YEAR PERSONNEL COMPARISON

 Authorized Positions 

2016-17 2017-18

* Operations Administration is part of Water Operations.

** For FY 2017-18, one position is budgeted to start January 2018.    

CONSOLIDATEDLABORCONSOLIDATEDPOSITIONS BY COST CENTER

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 90



(in thousands)

Total Administration

Finance & 
Administrative 

Services Engineering  
Water 
Quality

Water 
Policy

Water 
Operations

Recycling 
Operations Maintenance

Current Authorized:

Gross Pay $30,778 $1,613 $6,275 $4,353 $1,690 $3,338 $5,770 $4,242 $3,498

Annual Increase 1,354 69 280 $193 $72 $154 $266 $167 $153
Sub-Total Regular 
Salaries & Wages

32,132 1,682 6,555 4,546 1,762 3,492 6,037 4,409 3,651

New Positions:
Gross Pay 723 0 109 $166 $0 $68 $171 $0 $210
Total Regular Salaries 
& Wages

32,855 1,682 6,663 4,712 1,762 3,559 6,208 4,409 3,860

Insurance and Benefits 7,768 398 1,575 1,114 417 841 1,468 1,042 913

Employment Tax  & 
PERS Contributions 9,598 491 1,947 1,377 515 1,040 1,813 1,288 1,128
Total Regular Salaries 
& Wages, health 
Insurance and 
employment taxes

$50,221 $2,571 $10,185 $7,203 $2,694 $5,440 $9,489 $6,739 $5,901

Employee Count: 377 15 81 44 20 37 77 55 48

SUMMARY OF SALARIES AND WAGES

CONSOLIDATEDSALARIES AND WAGES

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 91



(in thousands) FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 Change
Insurance and Benefits

Health Ins Actives $5,019 $5,220 $201

Dental Premiums 419 421 2

Wrkrs Comp Premiums 708 660 (48)

Wrkrs Comp Paid Claims 758 612 (146)

Life Ins Actives 185 150 (35)

LT Disability Premiums 104 103 (1)

Medical Premiums - Retirees 123 115 (8)

Vision Benefit Premiums 80 85 5

RHCAP Payments - OPEB 360 325 (35)

Life Ins Retirees 33 14 (19)

Other 54 63 9

$7,843 $7,768 ($75)

Employment Tax and PERS
PERS Employer Portion $6,033 $6,340 $307

PERS In Excess Of ARC 1,781 1,872 91

401A Employer Match Portion 734 734 0

401A Employer Direct Portion 60 126 66

Medicare Tax 437 476 39

St Unemployment Tax 50 50 0

$9,095 $9,598 $503

$16,938 $17,366 $428

HEALTH INSURANCE AND
EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Total Insurance, Benefits, 
and Taxes

BENEFITS AND EMPLOYMENT TAXBENEFITS AND EMPLOYMENT TAX

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 92



Current Proposed Salary

Dept Job Title Sal Grade Proposed Job Title Sal Grade Costs

210 Treasury Analyst 31.N Treasury Analyst 12.E $4,500

210 Senior Accountant U11.E Accounting Supervisor U13.E $12,000

300 Construction Inspector III 31.N Senior Construction Inspector 31.N $0

300 Construction Inspector II 28.N Construction Inspector 28.N $0

300 Development Services Specialist 15.N Development Services Specialist 19.N $8,100

300 Engineering Technician III 29.N Development Services Specialist 19.N -$19,200

515 Wetlands Specialist 24.N Wetlands Scientist 32.N $8,040

550 Operator III 29.N Process Specialist 32.N $3,600

720 Engineering Technician III 29.N Environmental Compliance Specialist 30.N $900

805 Analyst 10.E Management Analyst 10.E $0

Subtotal $17,940

Salary

Dept Job Title Sal Grade Costs

220 Mail Coordinator 6.N -$42,000

Subtotal -$42,000

Salary

Dept Job Title Sal Grade Costs

220 Customer Service Field Technician 16.N $49,200

250 Senior Applications Analyst U18.E $109,200

300 Construction Inspection Supervisor U34.N $88,800

300 Construction Inspector 28.N $74,400

420 Operations Supervisor U35.N $91,200

420 Operator III 29.N $76,800

830 Asset Maintenance Coordinator 32.N $84,000

830 Asset Maintenance Coordinator 32.N $84,000

830 Asset Systems Analyst 10.E $41,400 To be filled 1/2018

720 Water Resources Specialist 24.N $66,000

Subtotal $765,000

Total $740,940

FY 2017/18 Budget

Summary of Proposed Budgeted Personnel Changes

Action

Proposed

Title Change 2 positions

Reclass 1 Position 

Proposed Changes to Existing Budgeted Positions

Reclass 3 Positions 

Proposed Deleted Positions

Upgrade 1 Position 

Upgrade 1 Position 

Title Change 2 positions

Proposed New Positions

Title Change 3 positions

Reclass 2 Positions 

Downgrade 1 Position 

Upgrade 1 Position 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 93



                   PROPOSED LABOR CHANGES 
 

Proposed Personnel Budget Changes Reflected in the FY 2017/18 Operating 
Budget 

 
Title and Salary Grade Changes for Existing Positions/Job Titles: 
Finance (210): 
Treasury Analyst (From Salary Grade 31.N to Salary Grade 12.E) 
This reclass is being requested to more properly reflect the increased duties and new 
responsibilities of this position. 
 
Senior Accountant (Salary Grade U11.E) (3 positions)          Accounting Supervisor 
(Salary Grade U13.E) 
This position upgrade is being requested to more properly reflect the higher level duties 
and responsibilities of the position. 
 
Engineering (300): 
Construction Inspector III (Salary Grade 31.N) (2 positions)         Senior Construction 
Inspector (Salary Grade 31.N) 
This title change is being requested to more properly reflect the specific duties and 
responsibilities of the position. 
 
Construction Inspector II (Salary Grade 28.N) (3 positions)        Construction Inspector 
(Salary Grade 28.N) 
This title change is being requested to more properly reflect the specific duties and 
responsibilities of the position. 
 
Development Services Specialist (From Salary Grade 15.N to Salary Grade 19.N) (2 
positions)       
This position reclass is being requested to more properly reflect the specific duties and 
responsibilities of the position. 
 
Engineering Technician III (Salary Grade 29.N)          Development Services Specialist 
(Salary Grade 19.N) 
This position downgrade is being requested to more properly reflect the specific duties 
and responsibilities of this position. 
 
 
 
 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 94



                   PROPOSED LABOR CHANGES 
 
 
Natural Treatment Systems (515): 
Wetlands Specialist (Salary Grade 24.N)           Wetlands Scientist (Salary Grade 32.N) 
This position upgrade is being requested to more properly reflect the higher level duties 
and responsibilities of this position. 
 
MWRP Operations (550): 
Operator III (Salary Grade 29.N)           Process Specialist (Salary Grade 32.N) 
This position upgrade is being requested to more properly reflect the higher level duties 
and responsibilities of this position. 
 
Water Resources and Policy (720): 
Engineering Technician III (Salary Grade 29.N)          Environmental Compliance 
Specialist (Salary Grade 30.N) 
This position upgrade and title change is being requested to more properly reflect the 
specific duties and responsibilities of this position. 
 
Operations Administration (805): 
Analyst (Salary Grade 10.E)         Management Analyst (Salary Grade 10.E) 
This title change is being requested to more properly reflect the specific duties and 
responsibilities of the position. 
 
Eliminated Positions: 
Mailroom Coordinator (Salary Grade 6.N) (one position) –  
This position is being eliminated due to increased efficiency in current processes and 
cross-training of current customer service staff.  
 
New Positions: 
Customer Service (220): 
Customer Service Field Technician (Salary Grade 16.N) – one position 
This position is required to due to increased workload in the customer service 
department resulting from increased development. This position is currently staffed by 
temporary labor.  
 
Information Services (250): 
Senior Applications Analyst (Salary Grade 15.N) – one position 
This position is required to support the high level of complexity in the District’s tier one 
Oracle Enterprise Applications. This position is currently filled by contract labor.   
 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 95



                   PROPOSED LABOR CHANGES 
 
 
Engineering (300): 
Construction Inspection Supervisor (Salary Grade U34.N) – one position 
This position is required due to an increase in workload in the inspection services group 
as a result of an increase in active construction projects.  
 
Construction Inspector (Salary Grade 28.N) - one position 
This position is required due to an increase in workload in the inspection services group 
as a result of an increase in active construction projects.  
 
Water Operations (420): 
Operations Supervisor (Salary Grade U35.N) – one position 
This position is required to provide a high level of on-site monitoring on a daily basis to 
maintain uninterrupted water production at the Baker Water Treatment Plant.  
 
Operator III (Salary Grade 29.N) – one position 
This position is required to manage the increased workload in Water Operations as a 
result of the growth and complexity of IRWD’s water system assets.  
 
Water Resources and Policy (720): 
Water Resources Specialist (Salary Grade 24.N) – one position 
This position is required due to the increased workload in water resources as a result of 
IRWD’s supply reliability program which has significantly expanded over the past year.  
 
Asset Systems (830): 
Asset Maintenance Coordinator (Salary Grade 32.N) – two positions 
These positions are required to manage the District’s new Enterprise Asset 
Management (EAM) program and the implementation of it’s software program including 
the database and for planning and scheduling predictive, reactive, and preventive 
maintenance activities.   
 
Asset Systems Analyst (Salary Grade 10.E) – one position 
This position is required to manage the District’s new Enterprise Asset Management 
(EAM) program and the implementation of it’s software program including data 
management and report generation.   
 

Proposed 04/10/2017 Page 96



April 10, 2017 

� 
Prepared and 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

submitted by: L. Bonkowski 
Approved by: P. Cooy 0� 

SUMMARY: 

RATIFY/APPROVE BOARD OF DIRECTORS' 
ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS AND EVENTS 

Pursuant to Resolution 2006-29 adopted on August 28, 2006, approval of attendance of the 
following events and meetings are required by the Board of Directors. 

Steven LaMar 

March 1-2 
March 30 
April 12-14 
April 20 

John Withers 

March 19-21 
April 13 

Douglas Reinhart 

April 25 

Mary Aileen Mathei 

March 1-2 
April 13 
May 8-12 

Peer Swan 

March 1-2 
April 12 
April 13 
April 25 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Events/Meetings 

ACW A Winter Conference, Washington, D.C. 
ACW A Energy Storage Summit, Sacramento 
CA Environmental Dialogue Plenary Meeting, Sonoma 
Tour of Syphon Reservoir for Linda Ackerman 

WateReuse California Annual Conference, San Diego 
2017 IRWD Business Outreach Lunch 

Monthly Discussion of District Activities with the General Manager 

ACW A Winter Conference, Washington D.C. 
2017 IRWD Business Outreach Lunch 
ACW A 2017 Spring Conference, Monterey 

ACW A Winter Conference, Washington, D.C. 
Water Education Foundation Water Summit, Sacramento 
2017 IRWD Business Outreach Lunch 
Monthly Discussion of District Activities with the General Manager 

THAT THE BOARD RATIFY/APPROVE THE MEETINGS AND EVENTS FOR STEVEN 
LAMAR, MARY AILEEN MATHEIS, PEER SWAN, DOUGLAS REINHART, AND JOHN 
WITHERS AS DESCRIBED. 

lb-Board Mtgs Events.doc 
4 



Consent Calendar: Ratify/Approve Board of Directors' Attendance at Meetings and

Events
Aprll lO,2Ol7
Page2

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

None.



April10,2017
Prepared and
Submitted by: L.
Approved by: P. Cooy' @,

CONSENT CALENDAR

MINUTES OF BOARD MEETINGS

SUMMARY:

Provided are the minutes of the March 27,2017 Regular Board Meeting and the March 28,2017
Adjourned Regular Board Meeting for approval.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

Not applicable.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

Not applicable.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE MINUTES OF THE MARCH27,2O17 REGULAR BOARD MEETING AND
THE MARCH 28 ADJOURNED REGULAR MEETING BE APPROVED AS PRESENTED.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit "A)) - March 21,2017 Minutes
Exhibit 668" - March 28,2017 Minutes

-5
lb-Minutes of Board Meeting



EXHIBIT "A"

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING - MARCH 27,20T7

The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Irvine Ranch'Water District (IRWD) was called to

order o:t s'oO p.m. by president Reinhart on March 27,2017 in the District office, 15600 Sand Canyon

Avenue, Irvine, Califomia.

Directors Present: Swan, La}y'rar, Matheis, Reinhart, and Withers (arrived at 5:13 p.m.)'

Directors Absent: None.

Also present: General Manager Cook, Executive Director of Finance Clary, Executive Director of
Water policy Weghorst, ExeJutive Director of operations Sheilds, Executive Director of Engineering

and Water Qua[ty Burton, Director of Water Resources Sanchez, Director of Public Affairs Beeman,

Director of Treasury and Risk Management Jacobson, Director of Human Resources Roney, Director

of Recycling Opera-tions Zepeda, Diiector of Water Operations Roberts, Director of Maintenance

Drake, Legal Còunsel Arneson (via teleconference), Secretary Bonkowski, Principle Engineer

Akiyoshi,-Government Relations Officer Compton, Mr. Allen Shinbashi, Mr. Alex Munoz, Mr. Jim

Reeã, Mr. Bruce Newell, Mr. Ric Cox, Ms. Cathy Paxton, Mr. K.R. Jagawratti, Ms. Laurel Wykes,

and Mr. Dru V/hitefeather.

ORAL COMMIINICATIONS:

Mr. Ric Cox and Ms. Catþ paxton inquired about a coordinated effort with their homeowners'

association and the Districi relative to landscaping at IRWD's former Perez Reservoir site.

Director Withers agived at 5:I3 p.m. Director Swan suggested that staff research a landscaping

easement indemnifying the District'

Mr. Dru Whitefeather and Ms. Laurel Madonado made an inquiry relative to connection fees for

residential service in the former Orange Park Acres area as they are in the process of building a

second residence on an existing property which has a septic system which will not accommodate

additional flow. Executive Direótorof Engineering and Water Quality Burton provided them

information relative to sewer hookup fees. He further said staff will be revisiting these fees in a

few months and will be making recoÍrmendations for each home.

V/RITTEN COMMI-INICATIONS : None.

None.

PRESENTATIONS

AS

General Manger Cook reported that Mr. Henry Solis was recognized by the CWEA for

receiving its Richard D. Èomeroy Award for his efforts to the industry that have helped

expand fnowledge, improve methods and introduce new techniques that enhance the

prófessional development of sewage collection personnel'

A-1

o



PRESENTATIONS (CONTINUED)

H FIRST
HOTEL

Using a PowerPoint presentation, Mr. Gabriel Vargas provided a presentation on the new

Hyatt House in Irvine, the first fully dual-plumbed hotel in California.

CONSENT CALENDAR

On MOTION by Withers, seconded and unanimously carried, CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 4

THROUGH 71VERE APPROVED AS FOLLOWS:

4. RATIFY/APPROVE ROARD OF DIRECTORS' AT MEETINGS

5

AND EVENTS

Recommendation: That the Board ratifylapprove the meetings and events for Steven

LaMagMary Aileen Matheis, Peer Swan, Douglas Reinhart and John'Withers, as

described.

MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Recommendation: That the minutes of the March 13,2017 Regular Board Meeting be

approved as presented.

FEBRUARY 2017 EASI IRY REPORTS

Recommendation: That the Board receive and file the Treasurer's Investment Summary

Report, the Monthly Interest Rate Swap Summary for February 2017, and Disclosure

Report of Reimbursements to Board members and staff; approve the February 2017

Summary of Payroll ACH payments in the total amount of $1,691,520 and approve the

February 2017 accounts payable Disbursement Summary of warrants374709 through
37 507  ,'Workers' Compensation distributions, wire transfers, payroll withholding
distributions and voided checks in the total amount of $12,161,916.

PHASE 1 FINAL ACCEPTANCE

Recommendation: That the Board accept construction of the UC Irvine Cooling
Tower Recycled'Water Conversion Pipeline Phase I, project 07102; authorize the

General Manager to file a Notice of Completion; and authorize the payment of the

retention 35 days after the date of recording the Notice of Completion

6

UC7

A-2



ACTION I,ENDAR

201 7 LEGISLATIVE UPDATE

Government Relations Officer Compton placed before each Board member a copy of amended

Assembly Bills Nos. 574, No.791,792, and793, along with a draft opposition letter to

Assemblymember Garcia opposing ABs 791, 792, and793 (Frazier). Ms. Compton reviewed

these bills and recommended that the Board take an oppose position. Following discussion,

Director LaMar asked to follow up with a sunmary of ABs 791,792, and793. On MOTION by

Matheis, seconded and unanimously carried, THE BOARD ADOPTED A "SUPPORT"

POSITION ON AB 574 (QUIRK), AND AN "OPPOSE" POSITION ON AB 1667

(FRIEDMAN), AND AUTHORIZED STAFF TO COMMLINICATE THE DISTRICT'S

CONCERNS REGARDING STATEWIDE REQUIREMENTS FOR DEDICATED

IRzuGATION METERS TO THE AUTHOR; AND A..CO-SPONSOR AND SUPPORT,,

POSITION ON AB 986 AND AB 1654, AS PROPOSED TO BE AMENDED BY ACWA;

REAFFIRMED ITS "SUPPORT'' FOR THE TAX-EXEMPT STATUS OF MLINICIPAL
BONDS AND "OPPOSE'' ANY CAP ON TAX.EXEMPT MLTNICIPAL BOND INTEREST;

AND AN "OPPOSE" POSITION ON ABs 791, 792, AND 793.

o
DELTA FLOV/

Govemment Relations Manager Compton reported that the State'Water Resources Control Board

(State Board) proposed an amendment to the 
'Water 

Quality Control Plan for the San Francisco

Èay/Sacram"trto-Sutr Joaquin Delta Estuary. Ms. Compton said that the proposed amendments

would increase the unimpãired flow requirements for the San Joaquin River, which would

negatively affect water supply reliability for California's urban and agricultural communities.

Shé said that after reviewing the proposed amendments, the Association of California Water

Agencies (ACWA) drafted ãn "ACV/A Policy Statement on Bay-Delta Flow Requirements,"

*fri.tr rwas approved by the ACWA Board of Directors earlier this month. She said that ACWA

is now asking its -"-b.rr to adopt a resolution in support of the policy statement. Following

discussion, rtuff*ur asked to submit a cover letter with the resolution explaining the District's

rationale on this issue. On MOTION by LaMar, seconded and unanimously carried, THE

BOARD ADOPTED THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION BY TITLE:

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF

IRVINE RANCH \MATER DISTRICT IN SUPPORT OF THE

ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES POLICY
STATEMENT ON BAY-DELTA FLOV/ REQUIREMENTS

ES

General Manager Cook said that a resolution was placed before each Director. Mr. Cook said

that for fiscal year ended June 30, 20l6,the District implemented the Government Accounting

Standards Board's (GASB) Rule No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. Under the

new Rule, real estate investment values previously reported on a cost basis are now reported on

the District's annual financial statements at fair market value. He said that consistent with the

A-3



change in valuation for financial reporting, staff recommends a revision to the District's Real

Estate Investment Policy relative to the valuation used in the percentage limitation guidelines.

Director Withers reported that this item was reviewed and approvgd by the Asset Management
Committee on Marôh 23,2017. On MOTION by Withers, seconded and unanimously carried,
THE BOARD ADOPTED THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION BY TITLE:

RESOLUTI NO. 2017 -9

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 2008.2 AND
ADOPTING REVISED REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT

POLICY

MANAGEMENT

Director of Treasury and Risk Management Jacobson reported that in February 2008, the Board

approved Phase I of the Sand Canyon Office Project on land adjacent to the Sand Canyon

headquarters site. This project was completed in early 2012 and the medical office building is

fully leased through April2022 Mr. Jacobson said that Phase II of the approved campus master

plan includes construction of an approximate 71,000 square foot professional office building on

the remaining vacant land.

Mr. Jacobson said that the Board previously approved the retention of Ware Malcomb to provide

architectural services related to design of the Phase II building and site work. Following the pre-

application process with the City of lrvine, building plans were submitted and are currently in the

second round of plan review. Plan approval is estimated to be complete in June/July 2017.

Mr. Jacobson said that based on the plan approval status, retaining a project manager is

recoÍ¡nsnded to assist staff with completion of the plan approval process, to provide a project

cost estimate, as well as management of the bidding, contractor selection and construction of the

project. Staff anticipates that construction will begin when a key tenant lease agreement is

secured. Mr. Jacobson said that staff requested proposals from three firms to perform project

management services related to completing the plan approval process and construction of Phase

II. The firms include Newport Real Estate Services, Bernards and Abacus Project Management.

Two of the firms, NRES and Bernards, submitted complete proposals, and the Abacus proposal

did not include pricing information requested. He said that based on the proposals received, stafi
recommends the retention of NRES to rnanage Phase II of the Sand Canyon office development

project.

Director Withers reported that this item was reviewed and approved by the Asset Management

Committee on March 23,2017. On MOTION by Withers, seconded and unanimously carried,

THE BOARD APPROVED THE RETENTION OF NEV/PORT REAL ESTATE SERVICES
TO PROVIDE PROJECT/CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES RELATED TO

THE SAND CANYON OFFICE DEVELOPMENT PHASE II IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO

EXCEED $23O,OOO.

A-4



GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

General Manager Cook noted that tonight's Board meeting will be adjourned to March 28,2017

at7{5 a.m. to hold a tour of the District's Michelson 'Water Recycling Plant Biosolids and

Energy Recovery facility.

Mr. Cook said that he and Executive Director of Water Policy 
'Weghorst will be traveling to

Buena Vista Water District on Wednesday, and that on Thursday, he will be traveling to

Sacramento to participate on a panel during its Energy Storage Summit. He further said that next

week he and Government Relations Manager Compton will be in V/ashington D.C. meeting with
various legislators and staff.

DIRECTORS' COMMENTS

Director Matheis reported that she attended a Santiago Aqueduct Commission meeting where she

was appointed Alternate Commissioner, a'WateReuse Annual Conference in San Diego, and the

34th Annual 'Water Education Foundation's Executive Briefing in Sacramento.

Director LaMar reported that he attended the NWRA Federal Water Issues Conference in
Washington, D.C. for four days last week'

Director Withers reported on his attendance at a WateReuse Annual Conference in San Diego,

and aUniversity Temple program relative to water development in Israel.

Director Swan reported on his attendance at Newport Bay 
'Watershed meetings, a Newport

Chamber of Commerce meeting, a WACO Planning meeting, and a San Bernardino Valley

Water District meeting relative to the Santa Ana River Watershed's integrated regional water

management plan, One'Water One Watershed.

Director Reinhart said that he attended a South Orange County agency meeting.

OTHER BUSINESS

President Reinhart said that the following Closed Session items would be held:

1) CONFERENCE V/ITH LEGAL COUNSEL RELATIVE TO ANTICIPATED LITIGATION -
Government Code Secti on 54956.9(dX2) - significant exposure to litigation (one or more potential

cases);

2) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COT'NSEL RELATIVE TO EXISTING LITIGATION -
Government Code Section54956.9(dxl) IRWD v. OCWD

Case No.30-201 6-00858584-CU-V/M-CJC);

3) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COLI-NSEL RELATIVE TO ANTICIPATED LITIGATION -
Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) - significant exposure to ligation (one potential case);

and

4) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT - Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b).

Title: Legal Counsel

A-5



OPEN SESSION

Following the Closed Session, the meeting was reconvened with Directors Reinhart, Withers,
Swan, LaMar and Matheis present. President Reinhart said there was no action to report.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, President Reinhan adjourned the meeting to Tuesday, March
28,2017 at7:45 a.m. atIRWD's Operations Center for a tour of the Michelson Water Recycling
Plant Biosolids and Energy Recovery Facility. He closed the meeting in memory of Serrano

Water District's Director Rich Freschi.

APPROVED and SIGNED this 10th day of April,z0l7

President, IRVINE RANCH V/ATER DISTzuCT

Secretary IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Legal Counsel - Bowie, Arneson,'Wiles & Giannone

A-6



EXHIBIT "B''

MINUTES OF ADJOURNED REGULAR MEETING _ MARCH 28,2017

The adjourned regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) was

called to order at 7 :45 a.m. by President Reinhart on March 28, 2017 at the Operations Centet, 3512

Michelson, Irvine, California.

Directors Present: Matheis, Reinhart, LaMar and Swan.

Directors Absent: Withers.

Also Present: General Manager Cook, Executive Director of Finance Clary, Executive Director of
V/ater Policy Weghorst, Executive Director of Operations Sheilds, Executive Director of Engineering

and'Water Quality Burton, Director of Water Resources Sanchez, Director of Water Operations

Roberts, Director of Maintenance Drake, Director of Recycling Operations Zepeda, Principal
Engineer Malloy, and Ray Bennett.

'Written 
and Oral Communications: None.

Items too later to be agendized: None.

PRESENTATION

MI Y
RECOVERY FACILITIES

The Board of Directors and staff toured IRWD's Michelson'Water Recycling Plant Biosolids and

energy recovery facilities.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further discussion, President Reinhart adjourned the meeting at 8:40 a.m.

APPROVED and SIGNED this 10th day of April,2\l7.

President, IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

Secretary IRVINE RANCH V/ATER DISTRICT

B-1



APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Legal Counsel - Bowie, Arneson,
V/iles & Giannone

B-2



EXHIBIT "B"

MINUTES OF ADJOURNED REGULAR MEETING - MARCH 28,2017

The adjourned regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the lryiry Ranch water District (IRWD) was

called to order at7î5 a.m. byÞresident Reinhart on March 28,2017 at the operations Cente\3512

Michelson, Irvine, California.

Directors Present: Matheis, Reinhart, LaMar and Swan'

Directors Absent: V/ithers.

Also present: General Manager Cook, Executive Director of Finance Clary, Executive Director of
'Water policy Weghorst, Executive Director of operations Sheilds, Executive Director of Engineering

and Water euality Burtãn, Director of 'Water Resources Sanchez, Director of Water Operations

Roberts, Director of Maintenance Drake, Director of Recycling Operations Zepeda, Principal

Engineer MalloY, and RaY Bennett'

Written and Oral Communications: None.

Items too later to be agendized: None.

PRESENTATION

RECOVERY FACILITIES

The Board of Directors and staff toured IRWD's Michelson'Water Recycling Plant Biosolids and

energy recovery facilities.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further discussion, President Reinhart adjoumed the meeting at 8:40 a'm'

APPROVED and SIGNED this 10th day of April,2}l7 '

President, IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

Secretary IRVINE RANCH WATER D

B-1

ISTRICT



APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Legal Counsel - Bowie. Ameson,
V/iles & Giannone

B,-2



April10,2017
Prepared by: T BonkowskiAvl Cortez
SubmittedLy: K. Burton@
Approved by: Paul CooÇ /-

CONSENT CALENDAR

BAKER WATER TREATMENT PLANT LANDSCAPING
CONSTRUCTION AV/ARD

SUMMARY:

The construction of the Baker Water Treatment Plant is complete and ready for the installation of
the site landscaping and irrigation system. Staff recommends that the Board authorize the

General Manager to execute a construction contract with Tropical PlazaNursery, Inc. in the

amount of $189,356 for the Baker W'ater Treatment Plant Landscaping project.

BACKGROI,IND:

The newly constructed Baker W'ater Treatment Plant provides an operational source of supply

for drinking water and in the event of short-term water shortage emergencies, enhances the water

reliability for the participant water districts of El Toro, Moulton Niguel, Santa Margarita,

Trabuco Canyon and Irvine Ranch. This project will install the site landscaping and irrigation

system. Bxhibit "A" reflects the landscaped areas of infill planting, non-irrigated hydroseed and

mulch, and gravel and cobble. The construction contract will also include a 60-day maintenance

period.

Construction Award:

Staff requested bids for the design-build project from a select list of two landscape contractors,

Marina Landscape and Tropic alPlazaNursery. Both contractors have worked with the District

for many years and are knowledgeable of District standards and preferences. A pre-bid site

meetingwas held on February 20,2017, and both contractors submitted bids on March 18.

Tropici PlazaNursery is the apparont low bidder with a bid of $189,356; staff s estimate of the

improvements was $200,000. The Bid Summary is attached as Exhibit'08".

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Project 05027 is included in the FY 2016-17 Capital Budget. The existing budget is sufficient to

fund the project.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

This project is subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and an

Environmental Impact Report (EIR) was prepared in conforrnance with California Code of
Regulations Title 14, Chapter 3, Article 7. The Final EIR was certified and adopted by the

Boãrd in April 2011. Addenda No. I and No. 2 to the EIR were prepared in accordance with

Section 15164 of the CEQA Guidelines and were approved by the Board on March 15,2012

and March 12,2013, respectively.

6
tb Baker Landscape Construction Award.docx



Consent Calendar: Baker Water Treatment Plant Landscaping Construction Award
April 10,2017
Page2

COMMITTEE STATUS:

Construction awards are not routinely taken to Committee prior to submittal to the Board.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $189,356 V/ITH TROPICALPLAZA
NURSERY, INC. FOR THE BAKER V/ATER TREATMENT PLANT LANDSCAPING,
PROJECT 05027.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit É64" - Site Plan
Exhibit 668" - Bid Summary



EXHIBIT "A"

Å Rainbirdr8uSam

@ Rainbird r8o4 Eubbles

A Rainbi¡d uH Nozzles

^ 
Râinbi¡d15SSTNozzles

A Rainbi¡d 8H Nozzles

O Rainbid 9oo -PC-SAM-SHRUB ROTORS

(& Rainbi.d 2" EFB-CP Series Bræ Valves

(þ nui"Ui.a aaLnC guíck Coupler Purple Cover

X
Purple Recycled Wate¡ PVC Pipe 2'CTASS 3r5 æ Mainline

Sch4o PVC Sleeve x sÞe oflateral line & Mainlioe

- - - - - - Purple Recycled Water PVC Pipe ¡112" sh4o as lateral line

Eromline PVC W raided pipe

O Existing Fire Hyd¡antç

O ExistingRedBackflw

O ExistingPotablebackflow

o Reclåim Wàrninc Siens

ZoneAq - Az3
are existing

(Existing) Purple Recycled Water lrrig¿tion

Mainline to zones Ar7 - 423

z" Connection ofnew mairiline to existing 2" irrigation

mainline left in place during construction. Irrigation

on slope will NOT be operation until repairs are made

by others.

z" Reclaim Water POC

Criryold Mæte¡ Valve z' Normally Cløed

Calseæ Flow Meter

CalSen* SSE Heary Duty Ënclæure. Existing ÊTzooo
cont¡oller to be placed in new eqclozure

Nelson Brass Ball valve z'

L E

S

T
E

R
I
A

s
T

f-----¡

o.-o-
-.o

3 Storm Drain
Storm Water
Biofiltration
Planter boxes

.o ,L.

-o .U
rll

ç'

S

N

M

F

C

M

SHEET REF:

L-r

F

A5

200
MF
Fæd

Buìletin: Inigation & landscape

Description: lnstall new lrrigation rystem &
Iandsepe around new treatmeût plant

A5

Construdion
MÐageñeht

Õffié

^l

A8A9

MF Treãtment

300

Building

Proiect Name: Baker Waste Water Treatment Plant Irrigation & lãndscape lnstall PI."A,NVIEW

2ro8z Wisteria
Location: Baker Waste Water Treatment Plant

Owner:

Vìctor Zamora

7o0
Chemical
Building

lßÞll new shw unde. *ps

Vãlve tb¡ Fuhrê Pl¡nþr

6

¡

Eidng sþde



Opening: March 18,2017

EXHIBIT "B''
Irvine Ranch Water District Bid Summary Form

Baker Vy'ater Treatment Plant

Landscape Improvements

PR 05027

Entered By: T Bonkowski

1

Marina Landscape Maintenance
1900 S Lewis St

Anaheim, CA 92805

Total
Amount

$4,270.39
$10,213.19

s46,843.37
$80,611.90

$6,405.59

$21,376.00
s35,725.98

$0.00

$0.00

s205,446.42
$0.00

s205,446.42
Manufacturers:

Controller
S S Controller Box

Master Valve
Valves

Valve Boxes

Unit
Price

94,270.39

$10,213.19
s46,843.37
$80,611.90

$6,405.59

$21,376.00
$35,725.98

$0.00

$0.00

CalSense

CalSense

Griswald
Rainbird
Carlson
Nelson

1

Tropical Plaza Nursery
9642 Sanfiago Blvd

VillaPark, CA9286l

Total
Amount

$3,800.00

$15,000.00
$24,000.00

$112,800.00
$8,000.00

$7,000.00
$14,000.00

$2,000.00

$2,756.00

$189,356.00
$0.00

$189,356.00
Manufacturers:

Controller
S S Controller Box

Master Valve
Valves, Nozzles, Bubblel

Valve Boxes

Quick Coupler

Unit
Price

$3,800.00
$rs,000.00
$24,000.00

$112,800.00

$8,000.00
$7,000.00

$14,000.00

$2,000.00
$2,756.00

CalSense

CalSense

Griswald
Rainbird
Carlson
Rainbird

Engineer's Estimate
Budget

Total
Amount

$200,000.00
$0.00

s200,000.00

Unit
PriceUnit

LS
LS
LS
LS
LS
LS
LS
LS
LS

Qtv
I
1

I
I
1

I
I
1

1

Description

Demo

Header Board Installation
Gravel Installation
Irrigation Installation
Planting

Hydroseeding
Mulch Installation
60-dav Maintenance
Bonds

Subtotal

Adiustment (+ or - )
TOTAL AMOUNT OF BII)

Item
No.

I
2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9



April10,2017
Prepared by: C. Kessleyl'Lew
Submitted by: K. BurtoúY
Approved by: Paul CooU/ffi.

CONSENT CALENDAR

5 AL

SUMMARY:

Heritage Hills Irvine ,LLc,(Heritage Hills) is proceeding with development of a portion of

District 7 within ganning Aiea 5r (ea 51). The development includes the construction of

streets, storm drains, doriestic water, Sewer, and recycled water improvements' Staff

recommends that thá Board authorize the General Manager to accept Heritage Hill's construction

contract with FyDAe in the amount of $155,316 for the District 7, Recycled Water Facilities.

BACKGROUND:

Heritage Hills is moving forward with development of backbone recycled water improvements

within pe 51, District l. p1-5l District 7 is l,ocated north of Irvine Boulevard between Aquila

and Axis. A location map is attached as Exhibit "A"'

The design and construction of the IRWD facilities are being performed under the terms of a

Reimburiement Agreement between Heritage Hills and IRWD approved by the Board in

August 2016. Heritage Hills began construction of facilities in September 2016.

The pA 5l District 7, Recycled Water Facility Improvements consist of installing approximately

600 feet of g-inch diameter and 3,900 feet of 6-inch diameter recycled water pipeline within

Aquila and Axis. Heritage Hills retained Hunsaker to prepare the recycled water plans and

received bids from two olthe five contractors that were invited to bid. Heritage Hills

recommends awarding the construction contract to the lowest bidder, FYDAQ, for a bid amount

of $155,316 as shown in B*hiUit "B". In addition, Heritage Hills has received consultant

p.oporui, for geotechnical observation and testing, surveying, field archeological and

palåontologicãl monitoring and construction support services. Staff has reviewed the consultant

proposals ind the construclion bids and found the amounts to be acceptable. A summary of the

Þn-St District 7 Recycled V/ater Facilities costs is shown below.

Design (Hunsaker)
Construction (FYDAQ)
Geotechnical Services (Engeo)

Construction Engineering/Surveying (Hunsaker)

Archeo/Paleo Monitoring (LSA)
Heritage Hills Administration Fee (1%)

$ 35,000.00
$ 155,316.00
$ 5,900.00
$ 6,000.00
$ 2,625.00
$ 1s.s31.60
s220,372.60

7
ck-PA 5l District 7 Heritage Hills Capital Recycled Water Facilities



Consent Calendar: Planning Area 51, District 7 Capital Recycled Water Facilitres
April10,2017
Page2

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Project 07169 is included in the FY 2016-17 Capital Budget and has sufficient budget.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

Construction of capital recycled water facilities in Planning Area 51, District 7 is subject to
CEQA. In conformance with the California Code of Regulations Title 14, Chapter 3, Article 7 a

Supplemental Environmental Impact Report was certified by the City of Irvine on April4,2012
(200210t020).

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Operations Committee on March 28,2017.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ACCEPT HERITAGE
HILL',S CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT V/ITH FYDAQ IN THE AMOUNT OF $155,316
FOR PROJECT 07T69.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit '(A)) * PA 51, District 7 Location Map
Exhibit rrB" - Bid Summary for PA 51 District 7 Capital Recycled Water Facilities



EXHIBIT "A''

ì
.j
j

IroIri
Ò
ù,
f
:
o

o
d

ù
rì

Õ

_co

No
ö

¡
rl

:
a\\

ft:a
f,
ô
I,
f,

a
ln
È
a
f.

\
Þ
a
Õ

ù
o
l
o

s
b
I

TECEND

- 

nmsÐ I Rff'tctÐ ntlEn (20ìE c) - Rto æ08 6715

- 

ffi I Rúta-Ð rAtû (znlr q - nn Næ 674t

- r - - ÐûStzt¡G ffi'CtÐ f/Aff¡. (20ìlE C)

\\

"%

o\
Iì
=c)
a!
o
r
Io
.qq{a

FIGURE

1

PLANNING AREA 51, HERITAGE HILLS
DISTRICT 7

CAP¡TAL RECYCLED WATER

HUNSAKER & ASSOCIATES
NE, INC

ENCINEËRING . SURVEYINC

' PH¡{9{9}t83i010 . fX:f949)563 0759

PREPARED BY:

N
ThGHughcs' lfl¡æ, & 92ó¡s

IRVI
P¡.ANNING



EXHIBIT "8"

Bid Comparison
Altrir lrv¡trc - D¡strict 7

IRIVD Capital Reeycled \ürter Improvementg

Job No.5133180 Fyd¡q Compatry (Lov Bid) L & S Construction Boudre¿u Pipeline Kana Pipelinc Sboftitt Pipelire

31212077L:L4 PM

Enginecr's Estimatc - Hunsâker Associates

Inine - d¡tcd 6124116

Tdd CGr

$¡06 0ô

$806.00

s24.697 t7

sr s5 t63 94

s3-6?0 00

t5.t 78,00

s5.6t0 00

3t96-63r-t t

U[it Pri!.

Ítô6 m

$806.00

$4 t- I 6195

$40.5?9

sl 835 00

s1.726.00

32 105.00

SUETOTAL N.ÛCYCLE¡
WAlf,RCAP¡1Af
IMPROVEMETTTi

IJM

EA

lf

IF

EA

ÊA

ÉA

OTY

600

3.84t

1

2

ITÉM
TOTAL

000

0 0{}

0.00

0.00

o0û

0.00

ô oil

0-00

0.ó0

0.00

TJNIT
PRICE

¡TEM
TOTAL

000

ô0Õ

0.00

0.ôô

0^00

o00

ô 0l.)

oôo

000

0.00

UNTT
PR¡CE

ITE,U
TOTá,L

û.00

0"00

a).00

noô

0"00

o 0f)

0_00

0.00

oln

0-00

rnill
?RICE¡TEMTOTÂL

1.850"00

3 200.00

? s0ô o0

2.300.00

22 100.0û

r 07.548 00

4 201).00

5-l?0.00

8-800.00

15EJ68.00

ÌJNIT PRICE

r"850.00

12m00

2.900.00

2 300.00

38.00

28.00

? 10000

r 790.û0

4-¡tû0.00

rfEll' TOÎAL

t.500.00

2 5fþ 00

1.600,00

3 600 ôô

tÎ f}{)(} 00

107 548.00

1 7gf ôt)

4 77ô 00

lo 000 00

r5tiJr6.û0

IJNIT PN,ICE

1.500,00

2.500 00

3_600,04

3 rln.oo

30.00

28.00

1.899.00

I tcû lf)

5.00000

QTY

I

I

I

I

600

3 i4l

2

I

7

tNn

LS

LS

EÀ

LT

I,F

EA

EA

EÁ

1VORK DESCR'Pî¡ON

Irvine Rrncb ìVster Disúricl
PlrtrD¡ns Arer 31 - Distr¡ct 7

IRWD Code 6745
CrDitol Rccvc¡ed Wsþr ImDroveDents

Tìb Ptuj¿rt ii fü dE Crpir¡l lmprmffits for dE lw¡re
nùch wú.r lristrict úd shdl rrq¡¡F Pmiling 1Y.g6 úd

Cerriñed Pryrolls

Schcdule I - CåDitrl lmDrovemctrts:

åç¡1z"/"ofBið -totølæ
Paymsvëfômncê æ làfruåErus boôd (Not b rxcK zn
rf Eidl - CônDleG
tremve reñpoø¡y ¡tg{ut 

^sory 
e Jo¡n rxrsng ð rYL

Wâtê. Mâiñ - Cnmñl¿r¿

kmve lghpor¡¡y ¡lu${ü ßmÞly & Jolñ lxEong o_ tvL
ilaler MaiD - Comolete

"bßaElr rvç lrut¡!À(w Dtc wü ru wrul rllú!&sc
ll¡rg Ëlod¡¡ wiû T¡mch & Bedding pet IRWD st¿ Þwg" w- l? -
:dEl#
.wo rY\ lBF9¡ LWg¡{ W& ¡tu!{e¡ nEtrtrs
llng Blockg with Trqch & Beddng prr IRWD Sld. Du€. W¡ 7 -
:oGÞ¡!aË
jûEhC¡ r Ksillenr wedge f@ vave, LL l)u ¡lgo vave Þox
rr IRWÞ Std DwÊ. W-22 - Comolete

lonsrûcr ó" Rsiliflt Wedge Gate Volvq CL 150 Flld Valve Box
¡er IRWD Std, Þwc, W-Z Compleæ

S6!qf ¡ÞvcAsDat.Cs¡ pe¡IRwDS¡4Ir!4 w.¡ I
. Codd![r

Srbro¡rl Scbeduh I - C¡p¡tol Réycl.d lvrter lmp.Wt¡l

cosT
CODE

z75t

2731

215t

n5t

2151

275t

aTtt

2'l5l

2151



April 10,2017
Preparedby: Tony
Submitted by: Cheryl Clary
Approved by: Paul Cool/ k(.

ACTION CALENDAR

ANNUAL ORACLE SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE
AND SUPPORT AGREEMENT RENEV/AL

SUMMARY

The Oracle Software Maintenance and Support Agreements, which expire in May 2017, provide

for upgrades and maintenance of the District's Oracle Customer Care and Billing (CC&B)

software, Oracle eBusiness Suite (EBS) Financial software, and Oracle Technology software.

These agreements provide pricing for software maintenance and licenses contained in the

Unlimited License Agreement (ULA) executed with Oracle in May 2014 as well as the EBS

Financial Software Agreement executed with Oracle in May 2010. Staff recommends renewal of
the annual Oracle Software Maintenance and Support Agreements, and additional licenses and

support, in the amount of $926,000, which will become effective (ULA) May 30, 2017 and

(EBS) ll/.ay 22,2017 rcspectivelY.

BACKGROUND:

The Board approved a ULA software agreement, with a termof 42 months, with Oracle in May

2014 througñNovember20lT,for Technology software and additional CC&B software licenses.

The District uses Oracle Technology software to run the servers and databases that support the

Oracle EBS Financial applications, Oracle CC&B applications, Oracle Business Intelligence, and

Maximo Enterprise Asset Management applications software. The agreements cover all versions

of Oracle Technology software products, CC&B software products, and EBS Financial products

purchased by the District, and allows for upgrade to new versions as they become available.

included in ihe agreement was a zero percent increase in software and support maintenance for

renewals commencing after 2015 andthrough 2021. The renewal amount remains unchanged

from 2016.

The Board approved a software agreement with Oracle in May, 2010 for EBS Financial software

licenses. The agreement includes an annual increase in software and support maintenance for

renewals commencingin2}ll. The renewal amount increased 4.7Yo from20t6.

Several of the EBS software programs are licensed by enterprise based on operating revenue.

For the District, this value is the audited operating revenue before adjustments for expenses and

taxes generated during a fiscal year. The agreement provides that if the operating revenues

increase, the District is required to order additional licenses and technical support for such

licenses. The formula generates an increase of $35,500 for additional licenses and support, as

required by the agreement.

The following table provides a summary of costs for the Oracle software maintenance and

support agreements and additional licenses and support:

Itm Annual Oracle Software Maintenance and Support Agreement Renewal.docx



Action Calendar: Annual Oracle Software Maintenance and Support Agreement Renewal

April10,2017
Page2

Staff recommends renewal of the annual Oracle Software Maintenance and Support Agreements

and additional licenses and support in the amount of $926,000.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Oracle Software Maintenance and Support Agreements are included in the FY 2017-18

Operating Budget.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

Not applicable.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Finance and Personnel Committee on April 4,2017.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD APPROVE RENEWAL OF THE DISTzuCT'S ANNUAL ORACLE
SOFTV/ARE MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT AGREEMENTS, AND ADDITIONAL
LICENSES AND SUPPORT, IN THE AMOTINT OF $926,000 EFFECTIVE MAY 3O,2OI7

(uLA) AND MAY 22,2017 (EBS), RESPECTIVELY.

LIST OF EXHIBITS.

$ 639,300Oracle Technology (ULA) Software & Support Maintenance

$ 132,400Oracle CC&B Software & Support Maintenance

$ 1 18,800Oracle EBS Financial Software & Support Maintenance

$ 35,500Oracle EBS Financial Software Additional Licenses & Support

Based on $M Revenue (28.7Klicense, 6.8K support)

$ 926,000Total Oracle Software Maintenance and Support Agreements &
Additional Licenses & Support

None.



Aprll10,2017
Prepared by: Eileen Lin
Submitted by: Cheryl Clary
Approved by: Paul Coo)/ÇZZ 

.

ACTION CALENDAR

AUDIT FIRM EXTENSION FOR THE
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30. 2017

SUMMARY:

In2}I2,the Board approved a five-year professional services contract with Mayer Hoffman

McCann P.C. (MHM) for financial statement audit services. ln2015,the key principals at MHM
left the firm and formed a new firm, Davis Farr LLP. The Board approved a two-year audit

services contract with Davis Farr, commencing with the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. The

two-year contract was for $100,000 plus possible single audit fees relating to government grants

not to exceed $2,600 over the two-year period.

ln2017,the District upgraded to a new version of the Oracle Financial System. The project

included consolidation of several of the District's improvement districts of which the audit firm
is familiar. In order to maintain continuity and have a smooth transition of the changes as a

result of the implementation, staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to

execute a new audit services contract with Davis Fan LLP for the fiscal year ending June 30,

2017 at a cost of $53,040 plus possible single audit fees not to exceed $2,600.

BACKGROUND:

In April 20l2,the Board approved a five-year audit services contract commencing fiscal year

endeà June 30, 2012 withMHM for financial statement audit services. The agreement was for

$255,000 plus possible single audit fees relating to govemment grants not to exceed 512,490.

ln2015,MHM notified District staff that the local government audit practice of MHM was

leaving MHM and starting a new firm, Davis Farr LLP. Most of the principals and staff

transitioned to the new firm. In order to maintain continuity and the institutional knowledge of
the District, the Board approved a two-year audit services contract for fiscal years ended June 30,

2015 andJune 30, 2016 with Davis Farr, LLP for financial statement audit services. The

agreement was for $100,000 plus possible single audit fees not to exceed $2,600 over the two-

year period.

ln20l7,the District upgraded to a new version of the Oracle Financial System. The project

included improvement district consolidations as well as implementation of a Project

Management Module. The District has utilized the auditors from MHM and now Davis Farr

since 2006. The firms have provided quality audit services to the District and they are familiar

with the improvement district changes. In order to maintain continuity and have a smooth

transition of the changes as a result of the implementation, staff recommends extending the

existing contract with Davis Farr LLP to perform the audit services for the fiscal year ending

June 30, 2017. The audit fees for fiscal year 2017 are the same as the audit fees for Fiscal Year

2016.

9
Audit Firm Extension.docx



Action Calendar: Audit Firm Extension for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30,2017

April10,2017
Page2

At the end of the contract for Fiscal Year 2017, staff and the Finance and Personnel Committee

will consider whether it is appropriate to issue a Request for Proposal for new audit services.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

The one-year agreement is in the amount of $53,040 plus possible Single Audit fees not to

exceed $2,600 and is included in the Fiscal Year 2016-17 Operating Budget.

CE:

None.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Finance and Personnel Committee on April 4,2017

REC ATION

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A NEW

AUDIT SERVICES CONTRACT V/ITH DAVIS FARR LLP FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
ENDING JLINE 3O,2OI7 AT A COST OF $53,040 PLUS POSSIBLE SINGLE AUDIT FEES

NOT TO EXCEED $2,600.

EXHIBITS:

Exhibit "d" - Engagement Letter from Davis Farr, LLP
Exhibit 668" - System Review Report on Davis Farr LLP



Exhibit "A"

+lPtny,i:F"nnr
Davis Farr LLP

23Ol Dupont Drive lSuite 200 | lrvine, C492612

Mcrin: 949.474.2020 | Fox: 949,2tì3.552O

March 23,20'17

lrvine Ranch Water District
Gheryl Glary, Director of Finance
15600 Sand CanYon Ave
Iwine, CA 92618

Dear Ms. Clary:

we are pleased to confirm the anangements of our engagement and the nature of the services we will provlde

lrvine Ranch Water Distrlct (the "Entity")'

ENGAGEMçNT OBJECTIVES
we will audit the t¡n"ñffijilments of the Entity's as of June 30, 2017 and for the year then ended, and the

related notes to the financial statements.

Also, accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("US GAAP") provide for

certain required supptemen-tary infbrmatiòn ("RSl"), such as management's discussion and analysis

(,,MD&A,), io suppnmänt the Eniity's basic financial siatements. Such information, although not a part of.the

basic financial statements, is reqúired by the Government Accounting Standards Board who considers it to

be an essentiat part of f¡nanc¡àt reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate

operationat, economic, or historical 
-contelxt. 

Às part of our engagement, we will apply cg.rtSin.limited

procedures to the fntùy's RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States

äf America ("us cRÁs,). These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the

methods of preparing the information anà comparing the information for consistency with management's

responses to our inqiiries, the basic financial staiements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audlt

of the basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the informalion

because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide

any assurance. The iollowing RSI is required by US GAAP and will be subjected to certain limited procedures,

but will not be audited.

1. Management's Discussion and Analysis
2. Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratio

3. Schedule of Pension Contributions

OUR RESPONSIBILITIES
@istheexpressionofanopinionastowhetherthefinancialstatementsarefairly
preseníed, in all material respects, in conformity with US GA|P and to report on the fairness of the additional

information referred to above when considered in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

We will also provide a report, which does not include an opinion, on internal controls related to the financlal

statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements,

noncompliance with wh¡cfr could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by Govemment

A-1



Page 2 of 6

Auditing standards. The reports on internal control and compliance wlll each include a paragraph that çtat9s

the report is sotety ro describe the scope 
"^d 

t.ri¡.ö ði iñtàinril control over financial reportlng and compllanÇe'

and the resutts of that testing, and not dd;ìilË ãn.opinlon on the effectlvenees of internal çontrol over

financiar reporting or on compriance and tt rüñå ,"pórt is'an integrar part of.an audit performed in accordance

with Goyern mont Auditing standards¡n .on-rioãiitig internat çoñtrol'over financial reporting and complianoe

and that the report is not suitable for any other purpose'

Audit
our audit will be conducted in accordance with us GAAS and the standards for financial audits contained ln

Government Auditing sfandards, issued ;;'ii;"-ð"rptiólr"r ceneral of the united states, and will include

tests of the accounting records and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such an

opinion, we cannot provide as-surance tñ;iã unmodifred oprnron wi[ þe expressed. circumstances may

arise in which it is necessary for us to mooiiv our òpinion.ör add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter

paragraph. tf our oprnioÀ on tñe t¡nanc¡al siaieni"nts is bther than unmodified, we willfully discuss the reasong

with management in advance, lf, for any ää; ;; {:lllb-le to complete the audit' or are unable to form

or have not formed ui opinùn, *ä ,"y úecrine to express an opinion or withdraw this engagement.

our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded ln the

accounts (e.g., tests of the physicatex¡steñãä'ãi invé,ntories, direct'cbnfirmation of certain assets and liabilltlee

by correspondence w¡tn seeóteo customärï ãiåoìtoré, andínancial institutions, etc.). we may also request

written represenrations trom the Entity,s rtffi;G;;Ëart orthe engagement, and they may billthe Entlty for

responding to this inquirY.

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements; therefore, our audit wilr invoüã'i;ñ;j ánþ.rt the-number of transactions to be examined and

the areas to be tested. An audit atso ¡nduïeä ãüâtuating the appropriateness of accounting poricies used and

the reasonabreness of significant arco,itinïåiiiräiãt-ra.ij ui.managem.ent, as well as evaluating the

overa¡ presentation át inä financial statääe"nts wà wirr plan ario perfoim the audit to obtain reasonaþle

assurance about whether the financiat siåtements are freä of rnaterial misstatement, whether from errorg'

fraudurent financiar reporting, misappropriation of assets, or viorations of raws or governmenlal-regulatione

that are attributable to the Entity or to áàîr óv management or employees acting on behalf of the Entity'

Because the determination of abuse is uüójãctive , Goíernment Auditing standards do not expect auditors to

provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse'

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, comþined with the inherent limitations of internal controls, and

because we wi¡ n|i Ë;;ñ-â oeta¡ea ä"rinàtnn of alt transactions, there is a risk that material

misstatements may exist and not be oeteteo'uv uàf ey"n though theaudit is properly planned and performed

in accordance with us GMS. ln additioîiåñ'.üo¡t ts not.deligned to detect immaterial misstatements or

viotations of laws or governmental regutãi¡oñi irlai do not nave-a direct and material effect on the financial

statements. we will inform the appropriate level of management and those charged with governance of any

material errors, fraudulent financial r"port¡ig, bi ri,i*àpplipriation of assets that comes to our attention' we

wi¡ also inform the appropriate level 
"f 

r;;å'gilänt åno tirose charged with governance of any violations of

laws or governmental regulations that ðäñ tó our attention, unldss clearly inconsequential, and of any

materiat abuse that comes to our attention, óuiieiponsioility, as auditors, is limited to the period covered by

our audit and does not extend to any later periods fbr whlch we are not engaged as auditors'

A-2



Page 3 of 6

lnternal Control
our audit wiil include obtaining an understanding of the Entity and lts environment, including internal centrolg

sufficient to assess the risks of material misstalement of the financial statements and to design the nature'

timing, and efent of further audit procedures,

We will obtain an understanding of the design of the relevant controls and whether they have been placed ln

operation, and we wilL assess õontrol risk, iests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of

certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detectlng errors and fraud that are material to thg

financial statements and to preventing and detectln! mlsstatements resulting from illegal acts and other

noncompliance matters that have a direct and materiãl effect on the finansial statements. Tests of contr9lc

relative to the financial statements are required only lf control rlsk is assossed below the maximum levç1, Our

tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would-be necegsary to.render fl ?pl]on 
on internal contrOl and,

accoioingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Govemmant

Auditing Sfandards.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal cqntrols or to identify control deficiencies, Howevor,

we will inform r"n"gã*uni 
"iO 

tnoru charged with governance of internal control matters that are requlred

to be communicated under professional standards,

Compliance
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of materlal

misstatement, we *¡ri p"rforr tests of the Entity's compliance with the provisions of applicable law8,

regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants, Hówever, tho obfective of our audit will not be to provide an

opînion on bverall .orpT"nc" and we wil not express such an òpinion in our report on compliance issued

pursuant to Government Auditing Sfandards'

The services described above do not relieve management or those charged with governance of thelr

responsibilities.

THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
Thepreparat¡onan@financlalstatementsoftheEntityaretheresponsibilityof
management with ovãrsight from those charged wjtl.r governance. Those charged with governance are also

respoñsibte for oversÀeffi tne strategic direcion of thd Entity and any obligations related to its accountability'

resôlving disagreements between management and us regaiding financial reporting, appointing us to perform

the services described ãOoue, and inforñring us about alfknown or suspected fraud involving the Entity. ln

irin, *" will provide grose chârged with goiernance wlth any communications required by the professional

standards described above.

MANAGEMENT'S FESPONSIBILITIES
ementdecislonsandperformingallmanagementfunctions,andfor

desigñating an ¡nOiv¡ouà1, preferably froñ senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience

to oversee these services, any 
-bookkeeping 

servlões, tax services, or other services we provide.

Management is responsible ior evaluating thä aãequacy and results of the services performed and accepting

responsibility for them.

A-3



Page 4 of 6

Management is responsible for making all financial records and related infqrmatlon availaþle to us and for the

ã""riãrv and completeness of that iñformation, Management lç also responsible for.providing us wlth (a)

access to all information they are aware of that is relevant to the preparatlon and fair presentatlon of the

financial statements, 1nj aooiíional information that we may request for the purpose of this engagement, and

(c) unrestricteo acce'sé ìð pérronr within the Entity fróm whom we determine it necessary to oþtaln

information.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintainlng.lnternal controls, including monitorlng ongolng

activiires, for the ser'eótiãn ánd application oi accounting prlnòlpÞs, for the safeguarding of assets, and for the

preparation and fair presentation öttne financial statemènts in conformity with US GAAP even though wq may

ässist management w¡irr ineir preparation. Accordingly, manag.ement may be required to acknowledge in the

written repreientation letter our assistance with prefaiatlon of the flnancial statements and that management

has reviewed and apfroveO the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and hae

accepted responsibility for them.

Management is responsible for adjusting the financlal statements to correct material misstatements and for

confirñring to us in ihe management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatemontg

aggregatõo by us during the current engagement and,pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial'

näin iñO¡v¡Ouálty and in the aggregate, io ihe financial statements taken as a whole'

Management is responsible for the design and implementation.of programs a¡d conhols to prevent and detect

fraud,änd for informing us about all knõwn or suspected fraud affecting the Entity involving (a) management,

(b) employees who ha-ve significant rotes in inteinal contrqls, and (c) oth,ers yhï9 the fraud could have a

material effect on the financial statements. Management is also responsible for informing us of any known

allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the gnt¡ty received in communications from employees,

forrñer employees, regulatórs, or others. ln adãition, management is also responsible for identifying and

ensuring tdat ine Entiti complies with applicaÞle laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and for

taking timely ano apþropriäte steps to remedy any fraud, illegal acts, violations of contracts or grant

agreements, or abuse that we may report.

During the course of our engagement, we will request lnformation and explanations from management

,.ugarãing the Entity. At the cõnc'iusion of our engagement, we wlll require, as a precondition to the issuance

of our rãport, thai management provide certain iepresentations in a written representation letter. The

procedures we will perform in our engagement and the çonclusions we reach as a basis for our report will be

ireavily influenced by the written andoral representatlons.that we receive from management. ln view of the

foregóng, the Entity agrees to release our firm, its shareholders, and other personnel from any liability and

costé relãting to oui sãrvices under this letter resulting from false or misleading representations made to us

by any member of the Entity's management,

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
-a 

process for tracking the status of audit findings

and recommendations, Management is ãlso responsiÞla for identifying for us previous financial audits,

attestation engagements, perfõrmance audits or other related studies, This responsibility includes relaying to

us corrective actions taféÅ to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits,

attestation engagements, performance a-udits, or other-studies, Management is responsible for providing its

views on our current finàings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as management's planned

corrective actions, for the repórt, and for the timing and format for providing that information.

A-4



Page 5 of 6

orHER SERVICEq
Thã Eriitlrust obtain our written consent before including its financial statements and our report in an offerlng

or other document, or otherwise distributing our report or referencing our Firm in connection with an offering.

Management agrees to provide reasonablõ notice to allow sufficienl time for us to perform certain additional

proc"ãures. trlanagemeÀt will also provide us with a copy of the final reproduced material for our approval þefore

it is distributed. Our fees for such services are in addition to those discussed elsewhere in this letter, and the

specific terms of any such future services will be determined at the time the services are to þe performed.

As a result of our prior or future services, we might be requested to provide information or documents to the Entity

or a third party in a legal, administrative, or arbitration or similar proceeding_ in which we are not a party, lf this

occurs, our efforts iñ complying with such requests will be deemed billable to the Entity as a separate

engagement. We shall be entifled to compensation for our time and reasonable reimbursement for our expenses

linõtuãing legal fees) in comptying witlr the request. For all requests, we will observe the confidentiality

iequirernentJof our profession and will notify management promptly of the request.

ENGAGEMENT FEES
Our fees for the serviõs previously outlined are $53,040. Our fees are based upon the complexity of the work

to be performed, timing of the engägement, experience level of the personnel required, and ostimates of the

professionaltime to complete the required services.

Additionally, our fees are dependent on the availability, quality, and completeness of the Entity's records and'

where appiicable, upon the 
'Entity's 

personnel providing the level of assistance identified in the "prepared by

client,, rériuest list distributed at tire end of our planning work (e,g,, Entity employees preparing confirmations

and schedules we request, locating documents selected by uS fortesting, etc'),

Should our assumptions with respect to these matters be incorrect, or should the condition of the records,

degree of cooperaiion, or other matters beyond our reasonable control require additional commitments by us

beiond those upon which our estimated fees are based, we may adjust our fees and planned completlon

Oa[es. lf significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with management and arrive at a new fee

estimate as soon as feasonably practicable. ln addition, fees for any related projects, such as proposed

business combinations or reseaich and/or consultation on special þusiness or financial issues, will be billed

separately from the fee referred to above and will be subject to separate arrangements'

We consider telephone calls and meetings on accounting and reporting matters to be an integral part of the

engagement and no additional fees are charged for these sêrvices. lf, however, there is a significant

transaction or new accounting issue that requires us to spend a substantial amount of time that was not

anticipated in our fees, there may be additional billings,

The fee estimate above assumes no adjustments will be necessary for routine accounting entries normally

made before the beginning of the engagement, lf, for any reason, we are asked to assist in the preparation

of these entries, beíore bãginning thJs éervice, we will provide an estimate of the time required to perform

such services and the additionalfees to be billed.

lnvoices will be submitted as the work progresses and a final invoice will be submitted upon completion of the

services. lnvoices are payable upon receiþt. lf our invoices for this, or any other engagements the Entity may

have with us, are not paiá within 30 days, we may suspend or terminate our services for this and any other

A-5



Page 6 of 6

engagements. ln the event our work is suspended or terminated as a result of nonpayment, the Entity agreee

we will not be responsible for any consequences'

Very truly yours,

OTHER ENGAGEMENT MATTERS

The undersigned is the engagement partner responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the

report.

We appreciate the opportunity to provide these services and believe this letter accurately summarizes the

signifiänt terms of oui engagement. Please sign the enclosed copy of this letter and return it to us.

trþ
Jennifer Farr, CPA
Davis Farr LLP

The services and arrangements described in this letter are in accordance with our understanding and are

acceptable to us.

lrvine Ranch Water Distrlct

By-
C' d Administration

A-6



Exhibit "B"

c¡vl .Fr
tlßßillllll$filP,'

Joru.r h.turrs, CPA

Sru'l rr." C. Wtu nlrs, CPA

JrninrO, Rorulu,CPA

cPAly,çflj,c*
CrmHmath hrtemaùoonl

(rd¡liod P0bli( Àr(0ùnlonlr, Ç Surinors [0n! ull00lr

Sy$tern Rcvierv Repqlt

DAVIS FAIIII LLP
Irvine, Califbrnia;
nnd the Peer Revierv Comnrittee of the Calilornia Society olCPAs

We have reviewed the systern of quality control for the accounting and nuditing practice of
Davis Farr LLP (the fìrm) in effect for the year ended May 31, 2016. Our peer revierv was
conducted in accordance lvith the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviervs
established by lhe Peer Revierv Board of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. As part of our peer revielv, ',ve considered reviervs by regulatory entities, if
applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures. The firm is responsible
for designing a system of quality control and complying rvith it to provide the firm rvith
reasonable ilssurânce of performing and reporting in conformity lvith applicable prolessional
standards in all rlaterial respects, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design
of the system of qunlity control and the fìrm's compliance therervith based on our revierv,
The nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures perfonned in a System
Review are described in the standards rit w!ñ!v.0icpâ.grq/ÞIsuInrnnry.

As required by the standards, engagcments selectecl I'or revielv included engagements
performed under Governmenl Auditing Standards and an examination of a service
organization control (SOC) I Type 2,

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing pmctice of Davis
Farr LLP in effect for the yenr ended May 3 l, 2016, has been suitably designed and conrplied
with to provide the firm rvith rensonablc assurance of perfornring and reporting in confornrity
rvith applicable professional standards in all nraterial respects. Firms can receive a rating of
poss, pctss rvith cleJìciency(ie.ç) or fttil. Davis Farr LLP has received a peer revierv rating of
p(ss.

4"/ Qòn.o** {íP
Ontir'r'io, Cal i t'or¡rin
June 29, ?016

.l l2ll t'ollcrlr¡rs
Suitc I lll)
()rrtario. (- Â 917ó4

909.(,r4tì,999{)

tll)l).(¡,14.{lfi9ó
r¡r 9llt).94t1.9633

¡11 lrl{tt,¡11 k[.r';rlrvrr cotl
tt rv*'.1:\'lilcr ittrrr,r,t r-rrtl

'rl/l

yaur

ß aur



ACTION CALENDAR

April10,2017
Prepared by: J. Smyth
Submitted by: K.
Approved by: Paul cooÇ(/.

TURTLE RIDGE PIPELINES REHABILITATION
E

SUMMARY:

Corrosion-related leaks have occurred in the lO-inch ductile iron recycled water and 16-inch

ductile iron domestic water mains in Turtle Ridge in20l4 and2016 due to severely corrosive

soil conditions. The first phase of the project requires preparation of a Preliminary Design

Report with conceptual désigns for the rehabilitation, replacement, or cathodic protection of the

pipelines. Staff recommends that the Board:

o Authorizetheaddition of Project 07888 for $309,000 and Project 07889 for $309,000 to

the FY 2016-17 Capital Budget; and

o AuthorizetheGeneral Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement with
Psomas in the amount of $135,809 for the preparation of the Turtle Ridge Pipelines

Rehabilitation Design Report.

BACKGROUND:

In August 2016,a corrosion-related leak occurred in the l6-inch ductile iron domestic water

main in Turtle Ridge located in Irvine. A similar corrosion-related leak was repaired on the

parallel 10-inch duõtile iron recycled water main in 2014. The District constructed both

pipelines in2003. The District's consultant, HDR, investigated the cause of the corrosion and

attributed the damage to severely corrosive soil conditions.

The first phase of this project includes the preparation of a Preliminary Design Report with

conceptuål designs foirehabilitation, replacement, or cathodic protection of the 16-inch domestic

and tô-inch recycled water pipes in Turtle Ridge Drive from Bonita Canyon Drive to Summit

Park Drive in lrvine. A location map is attached as Exhibit "A"'

Consultant Selection:

Staff issued a Request for Proposal on January 20,2017 to Brown and Caldwell, GHD, HDR,

Michael Baker International, and Psomas for preliminary design services. Staff held a pre-

proposal meeting on February 2,2017 to review and discuss the project and scope of work.

Þroposals were received on February 22,2017 from three consultants: GHD, HDR, and Psomas.

Michael Baker and Brown and Caldwell declined to submit a proposal. After evaluating the

proposals, staff recommends the selection of Psomas based on its outstanding proposal, pipeline

ässåssment methodology, project understanding, experienced team and best value. The

consultant selection -átri* is attached as Exhibit o'8". Psomas' proposal in the amount of
$135,809 is attached as Exhibit "C".

js Turtle Ridge Pipe Rehab Budget Addition 1.0



Action Calendar: Turtle Ridge Pipelines Rehabilitation Budget Addition and Consultant
Selection
April10,2017
Page2

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Projects 07888 and 07889 are not included in the FY 2016-17 Capital Budget. Staff requests the

addition of Projects 07888 and 07889 to the FY 2016-17 Capital Budget as shown in the table

below. Funding for Projects 07888 and 07889 will be provided by the Water (1100) and

Sewer (2100) Replacement Funds respectively.

Project Current
No. Budget

Addition
<Reduction> Total Budget

07888
07889

$-o-
$-o-

$309,000
$309,000

$309,000
$309,000

Total $-o- $618,000 $618,000

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

Design activities are not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Prior to

approval of the project and in conformance with the California Code of Regulations Title 14,

Chapter 3, Section 15004, the appropriate environmental document will be prepared when

meaningful information becomes available.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Operations Committee on March 28,2017

ON

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE ADDITION OF PROJECTS 07888 FOR $3O9,OOO

AND 07889 FOR $309,000 TO THE FY 2016-17 CAPITAL BUDGET; AND AUTHORIZE
THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
IN THE AMOLINT OF $135,809 WITH PSOMAS FOR THE TURTLE RIDGE PIPELINES
REHABILITATION, PROJECTS 07888 AND 07889.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit '6A)) - Location Map
Exhibit 668" - Consultant Selection Matrix
Exhibit ('C' - Psomas'Proposal



EXHIBIT ''A''
LOCATION MAP

{,

MaYerCt t*

canyon 9J
Bonita CanYon-Dr

--à
C
.È
f!,
:lti
,Ê
¡Êt,

oÌt
cF,

?
v€o3

*ü,t**s
#"

{t*

* BodË

¿\

F.edemtlon"V

lurtlp
¿rÉSÐt

ero
I?å

Õ

Ë
J

q

L

't

È.q4õ¡

%

ti
ù

-¡

':i

Turtle Ridge
Pipelines

ê{}
r"Þ'

,f %**



EXHIBIT "B"
Consultant Selection Matrix

Turtle Ridge Pipelines Rehabilitation

HDR GHDWeights PsomesA/&A ConsultingItem Descript¡on

400/"A TECHNICAL APPROACH

2 340o/o 11 Overall Project Understanding / Approach

31 22 Scope of Proposel

21 3
3 l\rãn Hour Eslimetes

4oo/o

20o/o

2.81.0 2.2Weiohled Score fiechnicel Aporoach)

60%B QUALIFICATION AND EXPERIENCE

3 220% 11 Firm/Team

1 3 2

Brien Clark Eduardo Pinzon
4Qo/o

Neha Gaüar
2 Projecl Manager

31 2

Casey Raines
20Vo

Neha Gaüar Amy Omae
3 Projecl Engineer

1 3 2

Jeff Knauer/Trel Mangarin
2oo/o

Glenn Wllson/Debra Keye Oan Ellison
4 Project Engineer - Assessmenl

2.8 2.21.0Weiohted Score lExoeriencel

2.6 2.41.0COMBINED \iTEIGHTED SCORÉ

3 21Ranking of Consultants

SCOPE OF WORKc

fask Hours FEETask Hours FEE Task Hours FEETASK

273 $59,281202 $36,625 412 $83,298PDR

26 $97,900 52 s95,74062 $99,184

1

2 Condition Assessment

$155,021264 $135,809 438 sr81,198 325TOTAL FEE

OTHERD

NoYes NoJoint Venlure

Not Provided
GHD1000018754
B&A1000012180
M8C1000001341

Psomasl 00001 0904
v&41000007205DIR Reg¡stration

NoNo NoExceotions taken to IRWD Sld. Contract

YesYes Less than req'dlnsurance (Professional & General Liability)

Forced

3t28t2017 js Turtle Ridge Pipe Rehab Budget Addítion Exhibit B.xlsx



PSOMAS 4Þ

EXHIBIT "C''

g

Turt

En

lrvine Ranch Water District

ring

dge

nee

ER

Design Services for the

Pipel ine Rehabi I itation

Proposal | 02.22J7
c-1



PSOMAS
Ealancing lhe Natural and Built Environmenl

February 22,2017

Malcom Cortez, PE
Principal Engineer
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
The Michelson Water Recycling Plant
3512 Michelson Drive
Irvine, CA92612

Subject: Proposal for Engineering Design Services for the Turtle Ridge Pipelines Rehabilitation

Dear Mr. Cortez:

We truly appreciate the opportunity to submit our proposal for engineering design services for the Turtle

Ridge Pipelines Rehabilitation project. We are highly motivated and look forward to the challenges

offered by this project. You have our commitment that, if Psomas is selected for this assignment, it will
be executed by those individuals listed herein and completed on schedule and within budget, unless

otherwise modified by IRWD.

We look forward to working with IRWD staff and the opportunify to provide engineering services to the

Irvine Ranch Water District. Should you have any questions conceming our proposal, please do not

hesitate to contact us aÎ(714) 751-7373.

Respectfully submitted,

PSOMAS

L. Boyle, ENV SP

President

Neha Gajjar, PE, ENV SP

Task Manager

3 Hutton Centre Drive
Suite 200
Santa Ana, CA927OT

f el714.751.7373
Fax 7'14.481.8883
www.psomas.com

c-2



TABLE OF CONTENTS

$ection 1: Scope of Work

Section 2: Team

2

5

Section 3: References

Section 4: Schedule

$ection 5:Budget

Section 6: Joint Venture

Section 7: Appendix

Conflict of lnterest Statement

Contract Exceptions

lnsurance Certificates
DIR Registrations

20

28

32

30

34

PSOMAS lrv¡ne Ranch Water Dig)t_l 
Ígngineerìng 

Design Services for the Turtle Ridge P¡pelines Rehabilitation



?,,
Cì'
C'
EI
(D
cl

á,ct

'F

I Scope of Work

lrvine Ranch Water District

Engineering Design Servlces tor the Turtle Ridge Pipelines Rehabilitation
c-4



1 Scope of Work
S ECTI ON

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING AND

METHOD OF APPROAGH
Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) wishes to assess the condition of two water

mains in the Turtle Ridge area of its system. In20l4, a lO-inch ductile iron
recycled water main experienced a pipeline failure and was subsequently repaired.

As a result, IRWD authorized an evaluation of the pipe to determine the cause of
the failure. The study concluded severely corrosive soils and a lack ofelectrical

isolation at the connection with the CML&C steel pipe as the primary cause of
the leak. Recently, the adjacent 16-inch ductile iron domestic water main also

experienced a major failure, and was repaired in August 2016. This last repair

accelerated the need to address the issue and the Request for Proposal (RFP) was

issued.

The first step will be to perform a pipeline condition assessment for both mains.

Our subconsultant, V&A Consulting, will conduct external non-destructive testing

on both pipelines at two locations each. The actual testing will be performed using

Broadband Electro-Magnetic (BEM) testing to measure the pipe wall thickness.

The findings will be summarized in a report.

The RFP requests a preliminary design report (PDR) to determine the optimal

approach to mitigate any future damage to the pipes. IRWD prefers the consultant

evaluate three specific alternatives: (a) cured-in-place pipe (CIPP), (b) pipeline

replacement, or (c) installation of cathodic protection components. During the

pre-proposal meeting, the CIPP method was discussed. The lining of pressure

pipelines with CIPP is limited to a maximum operating pressure of 150 psi due to

structural limitations of the liner. Based on information provided by IRWD, the

subject pipelines have high operating Pressures (289 psi in the domestic 16-inch

main and 226 psi in the lO-inch recycled main), so the use of CIPP is not a viable

alternative. Therefore, this proposal does not include CIPP as a rehabilitation

option.

The PDR will include an exhibit identifring the extent of the recommended

replacement and/or cathodic protection, depending on the results of the condition

assessment. The exhibit will utilize aerial photogrammetry (from Google Maps@ or

other similar source) and IRWD-provided GIS. We anticipate two exhibits, one for

each of the mains.

SCOPE OF WORK

Task 1: Preliminary Des¡gn Phase Services

Design services will include preparation of a preliminary design report (PDR)

evaluating the pipeline condition assessment and recommending either main

replacement or cathodic protection. The PDR will include two exhibits identifring
the extents of the recommended alternative for each main and an associated

construction cost estimate for each alternative. The scope will include the following

items.

PSOMAS lrvine Ranch Water Di$;t-l 
$gineering 

Des¡gn Services for the Turtle Ridge Pipelines Rehabililation p



1. project Meetings: Psomas will conduct and attend project meetings at IRWD offices including preparation

of aþndas and minutes for each of these meetings. Three (3) meetings will be included for the design

,..',rì."., including a kick-offmeeting and one meeting each to review the 60% and 100o/o Draft PDR

submittals.

2. Review of Bacþround Material: Psomas and V&A will review the available plans (atlas maps and as-built

drawings) provided by IRWD, and HDRt corrosion evaluation report prior to the condition assessment

activities to determine the requirements for the condition assessment. V&A will prepare all field equipment

necessary for condition assessment testing, including personal protective equipment.

g. Condition Assessment: V&A will perform a condition assessment of the existing l0-inch and 16-inch ductile

iron pipelines. The pipelines will be excavated in two locations per pipeline by |amison Engineering Contractors

(lEC). It is assumed tÈat the depth of the excavations will not exceed five (5) feet and that dewatering will

not be needed. The excavation dimensions are assumed to be four (4) feet wide by six (6) feet long' At each

excavation, pipe wall thickness measurements will be obtained for the entire circumference of the pipe over a

length of approximately three (3) feet using Broadband Electro-Magnetic (BEM) technology. BEM testing is a

,ron-dertructive frequency-independent application of electromagnetic or eddy current systems that produces

a thickness profile oia pipe. fhe gEùI scan is not affected by background electromagnetic interference, and the

test frequencies can beãã;usted to the specific pipe material and site conditions. This technology allows for the

assessment of ferrous metal pipe thickness. Metallurgic changes in the pipe composition, as formed by corrosion

processes such as graphitization, can be identified. The figure below is an example ofa contour plot ofBEM

thickness measurements around the circumference of a pipe with very minor corrosion'

Crowr' of Pipe

Thickness
BEM Sisnal
lntensity
(pscent)

Waf

oo
-c(.)
s
ooco
d,
ts

5()

õ

lnverl of Pipe

<__-

Llrc.rlvr cf Prl:¡

(in-)

0_280

0.2ô0

o_240

0.220

0.2s0

0_180

0,160

0_140

0,120

0,100

0.080

0,060

0.010

0.020

0.000

12$olo

11V/o

1O0o/o

90%

80%

700Ã

60%

500Á

400/"

30%

2004

1006

0Yo

5 10

Length along pipe (lnches)

15

PSOMAS

0

lrvine Ranch Water Diurt_l 
$noineeri

ng Design Serv¡ces for the Turtle Ridge Pipelines Rehabilitation I



In addition, the following test methods will be used:

I Ultrasonic testing-the ultrasonic wall thickness measurements will be

taken at discrete locations as verification of BEM data.

. Visually check for and measure the graphitization on the pipe.

r Measure pit depth on the surface using a pit depth gauge.

I The condition of the pipe will be evaluated using the VANDA'" Metal

Condition Index Rating System. This system provides a graphic

means to convey the condition of metallic surfaces to the owner. The

Index provides a consistent reporting of corrosion damage based

on qualitative, objective criteria. Condition of corrosion can vary
from Level 1 to Level 4 based upon visual observations and field
measurements, with Level 1 indicating the best case and Level 4

indicating severe damage.

r The exterior condition of the pipe will be documented at each

excavation.

r V&A will describe the pipe bedding as observed after excavation. This

will be a general description of the pipe bedding and not a geotechnical

evaluation.

r The condition of the pipelines and site conditions with be documented

with digital photographs.

4. Construction Cost Estimate: Psomas will provide an itemized

construction cost estimate for the two alternatives (pipeline replacement

or cathodic protection) at the 6070 Draft PDR and update it at the 100%

Draft PDR stage.

5. íOo/oDraftPDR: A 600/oDraft PDR submittal will include a discussion

on the corrosion assessment, two exhibits identifying the recommended

alternative, and a construction cost estimate for each of the alternatives.

Since the BEM testing anaþis and results process takes 4-6 weeks, the

results will be provided at the 1007o draft PDR to maintain IRWD'S

schedule.

6. 1007o Draft PDR: A 1007o submittal will include everything from the 607o

Draft PDR and will incorporate IRWD staffcomments on the submittal.

The engineer's estimate will also be updated for this submittal.

7. Final PDR: A Final submittal will include everything from the 1007o Draft

PDR and will incorporate IRWD staffcomments on the submittal. The

engineer's estimate will also be updated for this submittal.

PSOMAS lrv¡ne Ranch Water D¡Ut_l 
frtSìneering 

Design Services for the Turtle Rìdge Pipelines Rehabiiitation



2 Team

lrvine Ranch Water District

Engi neeri ng Desig n Servlces for the Tu rtle Ridge P ipeli nes Rehabi I itatíon

c-8

õ{ð



0rganization Ghart

The chart below identifies our proposed team organization and each team member role.

Neha Gaiiar, PE, ENV sP

Availability: 15%

Joe Boyle, PE, ENV sP

(Availability: 5%)

Glenn Willson, PE

Pipeline Condition
Assessment Principal-ln-Charge

Availability: 4%

Debra Kaye, PE

Pipeline Condition
Assessment Manager

Availability: 25%

Brian Briones, PE

Pipeline Condition Assessment
Assistant Manager

Availability: 20%

Clinton McAdams, EII ENV SP

Associate Engineer

Availability: 207o

PRINCIPAL ENGINEER
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

PROJECT MANAGER

OAIQC MANAGER

PIPELINE CONDITION ASSESSMENT
(v&A coNSULTING ENGINEERS. lNC.)

PSOMAS lrv¡ne Ranch Water DiU)t-l grgineering Design Services for the Turtle Ridge Pipelines Rehabilitation I



6 J o int Ve ntu re
SECTI ON

SU BGONSULTANT OUERVI EW

V&A Gonsulting Engineers, lnc. (DBE/MBE/SBE)

V&A Consulting Engineers, Inc. (V&A) is a firm providing responsive service

and successful solutions specialized in corrosion engineering. Headquartered

in Oakland, California, they have evolved into a multi-disciplined

engineering organization concentrating on civil infrastructure. V&A services

municipalities, special districts, counties, and private agencies. They team with
design consultants and municipal clients on projects such as evaluation and

condition assessment of tanks, utilities, and water treatment plants; design

of galvanic and impressed current cathodic protection systems for tanks,

pipelines and water treatment plants; coating systems recommendations and

ãvãluation; field testing cathodic protection systems; corrosion failure anaþis;

materials selection; and more.

Gondition Assessmenl

For more than 30 years, V&A has conducted condition assessments of coated

or uncoated steel and concrete structures within municipal civil infrastructure

facilities and collection systems. They provide the necessary recommendations

and design services for the rehabilitation or replacement of these structures.

Typical projects include pipelines, tunnels,

tanks, digesters, outfall pipelines, water

treatment plants, wastewater treatment plants,

and pump stations. V&A uses a 3-step approach

to determine condition including evaluation of
existing condition, in-the-freld data collection,
and then anaþis of design and operational
requirements against collected data in order to
prepare detailed reports and technical memos.

V&A has capabilities to determine the

condition of reinforced concrete structures
such as splitter boxes, grit chambers, clarifiers'

activated sludge tanks, secondary clarifiers,

chlorine contact tanks, digesters, tunnels' and

dissolved air floatation tanks. They measure

corrosion rates for process piping made of steel,

ductile iron, cast iron and copper. V&A has completed plant shutdowns as Part
of condition assessment efforts. All their engineers are confined-space certified

and trained in cPR/First Aid, allowing condition assessment work inside of
pipelines, digesters, and similar confined sPaces.

PSOMAS lrvine Ranch Water Del¡ct 
4 W¡neer¡ng

Design Services for the Turtle Ridge Pipelines Rehabilitatìon P



Gorrosion Engineering

Today's municipal infrastructure assets were designed to be in service 60

to 100 years. Many systems are past their prime and v&A engineers assist

agencies in protecting these assets from a shortened service life due to the

damaging effects of corrosion. Th.y pinpoint the causes of corrosion-whether
atmospheric, immersed, or buried-and recommend solutions for mitigating

their damaging effects. Their process approach incorporates evaluation of
assets to determine the extent of corrosion, design corrosion control/cathodic
protection system, and finally plan master corrosion control plans for long-

term protection and oPeration.

V&A + Psomas

Over the past 10 years, V&A has successfully teamed with Psomas providing

condition assessment corrosion engineering services for several projects. These

include:

r Gird to Monserate Hill Water Pipeline Condition Assessment, Rainbow

Municipal Water District

r Corona Del Mar Water Transmission Main Corrosion Engineering, CitF of
Newport Beach

r Seismic Retrofit of Water Transmission Pipelines, City of San Diego

r Paula Lane Reservoir Construction Assistance, City of Petaluma

¡ Mid-Ci!¡ Pipeline Phase 2 Corrosion Control Design, City of San Diego

r Deluz I & 2--Fallbrook 6, Plan Comments Review San Diego County

Water Authority

PSOMAS lrvine Ranch Water Deyicl [ {gineeri
ng Design Services for the Turtle Ridge Pipelines Rehabilitation S



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Turtle Ridge Pipelines Rehabilitation Project

Estimated Labor Hours & Fee

ç4,297

$34ô

$r35,E09

$6,09€

$4,756

$99,18,4

$12,384

$8,74€

$30

$0

$89,250

s75

$75

$75

$0

$89.505

94,222

$346

s46.304

s6.0ô6

$4,756

$9,934

$12,309

$8,671

26

26

62

73

50

25

2

264

0

2

4

2

2

2

0

12

0

I
30

12

I
4

0

62

0

6

20

'16

I
2

2

54

I
4

4

4

4

2

0

26

12

b

4

4

4

2

0

32

0

0

0

0

0

2

4

2

1

0

7

0

o

0

4

0

24

0

0

0

12

I
0

0

3

0

0

0

2

1

6

0

0

16

12

I
0

12

t lx¡cton a z Pro¡ec{ Meetinss

2 lReview Background Material

g lPerform Pipeline Condition Assessment

4 lPrepare60% DraftPDR& Exh¡b¡t

5 lPrepare 100% Drafl PDR & Exh¡bit

6 lPrepare Final Draft PDR & Exhibit

7 lOo¡nion of Probable Conslruct¡on Costs (600/0, loo% & Final)

Subtotal Prel¡minary Des¡gn Services

Preliminarv Des¡on

2611262&26322721342Total Est¡mated Houns and Fee

P:@S!gE
PM - Project Manager (Neha Gâiar, PE)

QC - Quality Contrcl(Joseph Boyle, PE)

CADD - CAD Oes¡gner

PA - Proiecl Ass¡stant

V&A Staff

PIC - Principal-ln-Charge (Glenn Wllson, PE)

SPM - Senior Prcject Manager (Debra Kaye, PE)

SPE - Senior Pþjec't Eng¡neer (Brian Briones, PE)

AE - Assoc¡ate Eng¡neer (Cl¡nton McAdams, EIT)

Ast E -Assistant Enginer

PA - Prciect Admin

Legend

c-12



April 10,2017
Prepared by: C. Kessler/IJ-Lew
Submitted by: K. Burton@
Approvedby: Paul Cooky' Ø<.

ACTION CALENDAR

TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND LAGUNA CANYON ROAD
CAPITAL RECYCLED WATER FACILITIES

CONTRACT CHANGE ORDERS

SUMMARY:

Irvine Community Development Company (ICDC) is proceeding with the Technology Drive
Extension project which includes the construction of streets, storm drains, domestic water, and

recycled water improvements. As part of the project, ICDC is constructing IRWD capital

recycled water facilities within Technology Drive and Laguna Canyon Road. Staff recommends

that the Board approve Contract Change Orders (CCO) Nos. 3, 4 and 5 in the amounts of
5382,07 4.72, S 1 I 6,5 5 0.97 and S7 8,052.67, respectively.

BACKGROUND:

ICDC is constructing the Technology Drive and Laguna Canyon Road Zone B Recycled Water

pipeline as part of its Technology Drive Extension project under Master and Supplemental

Reimbursement Agreements executed in May 1997 andDecember 2014, respectively. The

project consists of approximately 6,000 feet of 24-inch cement mortar lined and coated steel

pipeline within Laguna Canyon Road and the new Technology Drive extension. Construction of
the pipeline began in March 2016 and approximately 2,000 feet has been constructed. The

project is scheduled to be complete in fall 2017. The improvements are shown in Exhibit "4".

The project has encountered several issues that have had substantial impacts to schedule and

budget including an unforeseen Caltrans embankment repair needed at the I-5 Freeway ovelpass,

redesign of Technology Drive grade to account for the Marshbum channel being higher than

record drawings indicated, and substantially thicker than standard street sections that are as much

as 13-inches of asphalt concrete over 25-inches of base within Laguna Canyon Road. Recently,

the contractor encountered numerous conflicting utilities near the recycled water pipeline

connection point at Irvine Center Drive and Laguna Canyon Road that were not on any record

drawings. As a result, additional potholing was required to resolve utility conflicts at the

connection point.

A detailed swnmary of the project design and construction change orders is summarized in the

Staff Report attached as Exhibit "B". Staff requests approval of CCO Nos. 3, 4 and 5 in the

amounts of $382,074.72,5116,550.97 and $78,052.67 respectively. The CCOs are attached as

Exhibit "C".

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Project 01015 is included in the FY 2016-17 Capital Budget. The existing budget is sufficient to

fund these CCOs.

ck Technology Dr and Laguna Cyn Rd Capital RW Facilities t1



Action Calendar: Technology Drive and Laguna Canyon Road Capital Recycled Water

Facilities Contract Change Orders
April 10,2017
Page2

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

Construction of capital recycled water facilities as a part of the Technology Drive Extension
project is subject tô Caüfornia Environmental Quality Act. In conformance with the California

Coãe of Regulations Title 14, Chapter 3, Article 7, anBnvironmental Impact Report was

certified by the County of Orange on August ll,1992 (920-31007).

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Operations Committee on March 28,2017.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD APPROVE CONTRACT CHANGE ORDERS NOS. 3,4 AND 5 IN THE

AMOUNTS OF $3S2,074.72,$1I6,550.97 AND 578,052.67, RESPECTIVELY, FOR THE

TECHNOLOGY DRWE AND LAGTiNA CANYON ROAD CAPITAL RECYCLED WATER

FACILITIES, PROJECT 01 01 5.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit "A)) - Project Location Map
Exhibit 668" - Staff Report - Summary of Design and Construction Change Orders

Exhibit "C" - Sukut CCO Nos. 3,4 and 5



EXHIBIT "A'

r-R.W.D.

EDlsoi,¡
IJB
slAnoN

nwr dTr
olt c

t¡¡

2o
z
L'
c¡2
.tt

\

IRVINE VÀI.I.EY
cou-EGE

IRVINE CENTER DR.

LOCATION MAP



EXHIBIT "B''

StaffRePort
Technology Drive and Laguna Canyon Road Capital Recycled Water Facilities

Summary of Design and Construction Change Orders

Michael Baker International Desisn Contract
Contract

No.
Date Description Amount Status

Origina!
l)esisn

Dec
20t4

'l'he original design conTract was authorized in $288,680.00 Approved

Decenlber 2014.

Desigrr
CO No. I

Nov
2At5

Pipeline diameter increased from 20-inch to

Z4-inch and materialfrom PVC to cement
$40,117.00 Approved

mortar lined and coated steel

DESIGN CONTRACT TOTAL $329.457.00

Sukut Construction Contract
Contract

No.
Date Description Amount Status

Original
Construction
Contract

November 23,2415
Nov
20t5

Original Construction Contract was authori zed $2,344,000.00 Approved

Construction
CO No. I

Mar
2Al7

Railroad hlsurancc Prcrnium- Addit ional 530,976.25 Approved

i nsurance requ irements for construction with t n

railroad right-of-way

Construction
CO No. 2

Mar
2017

Added Ductile lron (DI) Spools' Correction
to plan per RFI 18. Per specificatiotr, IRWD
requested DI spools to be changed f'ro¡n

CLMC to ductile iron and be installed on

both sides of,buttertly valves. Increased

$ 10,486.48 Approved

1

Construction
CO No. 3

Mar
2017

While lng
existing facilities it was discover that the
existing roadway structural seotions were
vastly different than how it was shown on

plans, Approved plans show standard cover

of 4-inch asphalt over 6-inch rock base. Due

to poor soil conditions, actual street sections

were designed and installed as much as 13-

inoh asphalt over 25-inch rock base. This
change order includes additional costs related

5382,074.72 Cunently
requested

to additional removal and replacement.

B-1



Contract
No.

I)ate Description Amount Status

Construction
CONo.4

Mar
2017 Revisions to bid quantities including

correction CMLC pipe thickness from 0.13

inch to IRWD specification of 0.25 inch,

addition of 9 cathodic protection stations and

one temporary flush out. Deduction of
$1,109,400 and addition of items I thru 7 in

$l16,550.97 Currently
requested

Construction
CONo.5

Mar
2017

the toøl amount of $1 50.97

Added Potholins Costs. 1) Potholing of $78,

existing utilities as identified by Underground
Service Alert/Dig alert. 2) A Southern

California Edison (SCE) encasement was

located during potholing that had not made it
to SCE's record drawings. The SCE

encasement runs the entire length of the

project within Laguna Canyon Road and

substantial potholing was necessary to
redesign around conflicts. 3) At the Irvine
Center Drive point of connection, numerous

utility crossings hindered constructability' As
a result, additional potholing was required in
order to design a siphon to the Irvine Desalter

.67 Currently
requested

Construction
CO No. 6

Mar
2Al7

s brine line.

Utility Conflicts and Relocations. Additional
cost associated with slower
production/additional shoring due to crossing

existing 4-inch RW at Civil Station (STA)
39+10 thal was not identified on plans.

Additional cost to rnodifo atr airvac at STA
4tr22 to maintain min. clearance to adjacent

54,334.64 Approved

rutilities.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TOTAL ï2,966,475.73

B-2



EXHIBIT 
..C''

CHANGE NO.:
DATE:

003

Feb 2017

POTENTIAL CHANGE OF WORK ACKNOWLEDGEMENT & VALUE
IRWD CAPITAL

The purpose of this form is to acknowledge a change in work for the intent of reimbursement of costs. Upon

acceptance a change order will be issues.

IRWD P.O. No.: CODE 6401 ICDC Contract No.: 4500093830
Owner: Irvine Community Development Company

Sewer
Domestic Vy'ater

Reclaim Water
Other

X

C ontractorlConsultants SUKUT CONSTRUCTION

Design Engineer:

IRWD Mgr. CHzuS KESSLER
MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATI ONAL

Project f)escription: CAPITAL 24'RECYCLED V/ATER: SPECTRUM 6, TECHNOLOGY DRIVE
EXTENSION BID BOO237

Plan Revision Required: [-l VeS X NO Estimated Cost: 't2

Change Initiated By: ïy¡ilgpothol¡ng th9 eI!çtjngulilities it rva$ discovered that the existi¡lg roadwny

st¡.uctt¡ial seetion was vastlv ¡diffefent Ûren structu¡'al section shown on the

approvgd plans. The approvgd plan ind¡cates 4" asphatt/ 6': rockþase. The actual

ãIistineË;üons ane 6; Ac/22'i CII Basp. ?'Ac/tl" clt Base..& 8'¿ç1t4" ctl
Base.

Work Description:

Roàj (add $33;624.?2)

1. Submitted by David Burser 2-16-1'1 z-lut
Owner Representative / Date

2a. In IRWD's opinion the aforementioned work does does not

qualiff as a potential change in work.
IR\\Ij comments (required if representative does not concur with the potential change)

2c. Reviewed by:
lDate

3. Received and Recorded bY:
Owner Representative i Date

2b

PART B - CHANGE OF \ryORK VALUE:

S:VCDC\COMMUNITY DEV & CONSTRUCTION\CONSTRUCTION AND

ENCINEERING\DAu rger\TECHNOLOCY DRTVE\CCOs-PCO Ws\IRwD
pcows\suKuT\2.06.i z ponw¡nounwo rcow,0o3 ASPHALT sEcrloN
CHANGES $3E2,074.?2URWD PCOW.OO] ASPHALT SECTION CHANCES

s382,07 4,12.doc

C-'l

$

Revised l0/7/02



Detailed Backup Atûached

l. Submitted by:

2. Recommended by:

X

IRWD Representative I Date
7/zol r z

S:\ICDC\COMMLTMTY DEV & CONSTRUCT¡OÑCONSTRUCTION A¡{D
EÌ.¡G¡NBBRING\DBurgoñTECHNOLOGY DRM\CCO3-PCOWSURWD
PCOTilS\SLKUT9.06; 17 FORIVARD\¡RWD PCOII/.oO3 ÀSPEALT SECTION

CIIANGES S3s2'074;?2URWD PCOW.003 ASPHALT SECT¡ON CI{ANGBS
î3E2,0747¿'doa

ca

Revised 10/7/02



CHANGENO.
DATE

004
Feb. I 2017

POTENTIAL CHANGE OF WOIIK ACKNOWLADGEMENT & VALUE
CAPITAL

The purpose of this form is to acknowleclge a change in work for the intent of reimbursement of costs' Upon

acceptance achange order wiil be issues'

IRWD P.O. No. coDE 6401 ICDC Contract No,: 4500093830

Owner: Irvine Community Development Company

Sswer
Domestic Water
Reclaim \Vater
Other

Contractor/Consu ltants : SUKUT CONS'I'RUCTION

BAKER TNTERNATIONALX Design Enginoer:
IRWD Mgr.

MICHAEL
CHRIS KESSLER

Pro.iect Description CAPITAL 24'' RECYCLED WATER: SPECTRTIM 6, TECHNOLOGY DRIVE

EXTENSION BID BOO237

Plan Revision Required: X YES NO Dstimated Cost: $1

Change Initiated BY:

Work Desuiption

2b.

"-r

tv I t-)l. Submitted by: David Burser 2-16-17
Owner RePresentative lDafe

2a. ln IRWD's opinion the aforementioned work does

qualifu as a potential change in work'

IRWD comments lrequireã if representative does not concur with the potential change)

does not)L

2c. Reviewed bY:

IRWD RePresentative Date

3. Received and Recorded bY

Owner RePresentative / Date

PART B _ CHANGE OF \ilORK VALUE: $

Detailecl Backup Attached

L Submitted by:

2. Recommended bY,:

x

Owner / Date

/
IRWD Representative / Date

S:uCDC\COMMUNITY Dsv & CONSTRUCTIoN\CONSTRUCTION i\NÞ

e¡{õir.rrieruxcroaurfsfltclt{oLf¡CV o*¡vF;\(:CO}ICOWIUiWD
iòõwslluir¡nl oc ilroiw,rnounsp Pcow,olx tll) T0 â!Pl9f¡9 P-tit
àirÃñðns irlo,sso qtutwo pcow ooq slD To APPRovED PLAN cÈIANGES

$l 16,550 9t doc

c-3

zf z"f ¡7

Revised 10/?/02



CHANGE NO.
DATE

005

Feb 1 2017

POTENTIAL CHANGE OF WORK ACKNOWLEDGEMENT & VALUE
CAPITAL

The purpose of this form is to aoknowledgo a change in work for the intent of reimbursement of costs- Upon

acceptance a change order will be issues.

IRWD P.O. No.: CODE 6401 ICDC Contract No.: 4500093830

Owner: Irvine Community Development Company

Sewer
Domestic Water
Reclaim Vy'ater

Other

X

Contmctol /Consu ltants SUKUT CONSTRUCTION

Design Engineer;
IRWÐ Mgr.

MICHAEL BAKER TNTERNATIONAL
CHRIS KESSLER

project Description: CAPITAL 24'RECYCLED WATER : SPECTRUM ó, TECHNOLOGY DzuVE

EXTENSION BID BOO237

PART Ä - POTENTIAL CHANGE OF TilORI(:

Plan Revision Required: n vgS X NO Estimated Cost:

Change Initiated By:

tWork Description

descriptions &-þack uP).

l. Submitted by: David BureerT-76-17 ',1 tb /tz
Owner Representative / Date

2a. In IRWD's opinion the aforementioned work does does not

qualif, as a potential change in work.
IR\ ¡ó comments (requireã if representative does not concur with the potential change):2b.

u

2c. Reviewed by:
IRWD Representative / Date

3. Received and Recorded bY:

Owner Representaliv e I Date

PART B - CHANGE OF \ryORI( VALUE:

Detailed Backup Attached

S:UCDC\COMMUN¡TY DEv & CONSTRUCTIOI{\CONSTRÙCTION ÀND

ENGINtrERJNO\DBu¡g,or\lECf INOLOCY DNVE\CCOs'PCOWsURWD
pcows\suKuT\2-06 lr ro¡.wenpunwo Pcow-005 ADDITIoNAL POTHOLTNC

s/8,052.6?URWD PcoW 005 ADDrrfoNAr PoTIIoLTNC $18,052 67 doc

X

c-4

$

Revised l0rl02



1. Submitted by:

2. Recommended b¡': tf zolq
IRWD lDate

S:UCDG\COMMTMTY DEV & CONSTRUCTIOI{\CONSTRUCTION À¡lD
ENOINEER¡N(¡\DBurger\f BCHNOLOCY DRI\'ECCO¡PCOW¡\IRWD
PCOWS\SUXUI\2.06, I 7 FORWARDURWD PGOW,005,\DDTTIONAL POTHOLINO

¡r8.0s2.67URWD PCOW005 ADDTTIONAL POTHOLING $70,052.6?.doo

c-5

Revisod l0/l/02



April 10,2017
Prepared by: K. Welch/F. Sanchez
Submitte¿ by: P. Weghorst f
Approved by: Paul CooU2/ þ .

ACTION CALENDAR

RATIFICATION OF AGREEMENT FOR ONE-YEAR PROGRAM TO AUGMENT

S Y:

In February 2016, the Water Banking Committee approved terms for a one-year recharge

program that would allow Buena Vista'Water Storage District (BVV/SD) to recharge high-flow
Kern River water using the recharge basins at IRWD's Stockdale'West Ranch. The program was

not pursuedin2016 because the Kern River did not reach high-flow conditions. With the cunent
wet year conditions BVV/SD is now interested in using the Stockdale'West Ranch recharge

basins. On March 30, BVWSD requested reasonable modifications to the proposed terms and

offered to begin immediate delivery of water to the Strand and Stockdale'West water banking
projects. Staff and legal counsel prepared a letter agreement that encompassed IRWD's terms

and BVWSD's requested revisions. The agreement was then reviewed with the Supply

Reliability Programs Committee. On March 31, the Committee authorized the General Manager

to execute the agreement on an urgent necessity basis to facilitate the immediate delivery of
BW/SD's 

"\iater 
to both the Strand and Stockdale West Ranch Projects. Staff recommends the

Board ratify approval of the agreement with BVV/SD for a one-year program to augment

recharge using Stockdale'West recharge facilities.

BACKGROUND:

In 2010, IRV/D and BVWSD entered into a long-term Agreement for.Water Acquisition by
kvine Ranch Water District from Buena Vista Water Management Program (Exchange

Agreement) for an exchange program at the Strand Ranch Integrated Banking Project. The

Exchange Agreement allows BVV/SD to recharge up to 17,500 acre-feet (AF) of high-flow Kern
River water per year at the Strand Ranch on an unbalanced exchange basis, with IR\MD receiving
507o of the water, less a share of the losses.

After purchasing the Stockdale W'est property in December 2010,IRV/D implemented a Pilot
Project for recharge on the property by constructing recharge basins. In August 207l,IRWD and

BVV/SD entered into an agreement allowing BVWSD to use the Stockdale'West Pilot Project

recharge basins for one year to capture up to 10,000 AF of high-flow Kern River water on an

unbalanced exchange basis. BVWSD recharged 3,268 AF of high flow Kern River water under

the Pilot Project in addition to 17,500 AF at the Strand Ranch.

Staff has been working with BVVúSD in implementing a one-year program to use the recharge

basins at the Stockdale'West Ranch under substantially the same terms as those implemented in
the 2011 pilot program. The following is an overview of the Stockdale Integrated Banking
Project, the terms of a proposed one-year program to use the Stockdale 'West 

recharge basins,

requested revisions to the terms made by BVWSD and the need to ratify approval of a one-year

kw Ratify l-Yr Re,charge Prog Agreement.doc t2



Action Calendar: Ratification of Agreement for One-Year Program to Augment Recharge Using
Stockdale West Recharge Facilities
Apnl10,2017
Page2

program agreement based on the revised terms that facilitated the urgent need to avoid the lost
opportunity to immediately begin recharging water at both the Strand and Stockdale'West
projects.

Stockdale Integrated Banking Proiect:

In December 2015, the Board approved the Final Environmental lmpact Report (EIR) for the
Stockdale Integrated Banking Project. The EIR provided for the development of the Stockdale
'West property into a fully functioning water banking facility, including construction of
conveyance facilities and three extraction wells which are currently being equipped. The Board
also approved the'Water Banking and Exchange Agreement between Rosedale-Rio Bravo'Water
Storage District and IRWD for the use and operation of the Stockdale Integrated Banking Project
facilities (Stockdale Operating Agreement).

Proposed One-Year Recharge Prosram:

At the'Water Banking Committee meeting in February 2016, staff reviewed a draft term sheet

providing for a one-year recharge program that would have allowed BVWSD to use the

Stockdale'West recharge facilities. The proposed terms were similar to those of the 2011 Pilot
Program. The terms would have allowed BVWSD to recharge and store up to 20,000 AF of its
water on an unbalanced exchange basis by augmenting the 17,500 AF of recharge allowed on

Strand Ranch. All other terms for the one-year program were consistent with the Exchange
Agreement and the terms and conditions of the Stockdale Operating Agreement. Because the
Kern River failed to reach anticipated high-flow conditions, the BVWSD Board of Directors
declined to enter into the one-year recharge program in2016.

Requested Modifications to Terms for One-Year Recharge Proeram:

Current wet year conditions have resulted in increased outflows from Lake Isabella, thus creating
high-flow conditions on the Kem River. To maximize recharge of Kern River water supplies
under these current conditions, BVWSD has expressed interest in the use of Stockdale West
recharge basins in addition to Strand Ranch recharge basins. In February 2017, the Supply
Reliability Programs Committee responded by approving an updated term sheet that would allow
BVWSD to use the recharge facilities at the Stockdale'West. The updates had been made to the
original term sheet which was approved by the Water Banking Committee in2016. Upon
approval of the Committee, staff presented the updated terms to staff at BVV/SD. On March 30,

2017, BVWSD requested modifications to the terms and offered to immediately begin deliveries
of Kern River water to the Strand and Stockdale 

'West projects upon IR'WD's acceptance of the
modifications. The modifications requested by BVWSD are described below.

Revised Deliveries

The first requested modification would allow for 12,500 AF of deliveries to the Stockdale'West
as opposed to the original proposal of 20,000 AF that was included in the February 2017 te.rm



Action Calendar: Ratification of Agreement for One-Year Program to Augment Recharge Using

Stockdale West Recharge Facilities
Aprll70,201^7
Page 3

sheet. When combined with the 17,500 AF of water to be delivered to the Strand Ranch,

BVWSD would be making total deliveries of 30,000 AF through the upcoming summer.

Increas ed Rec ov ery C ap acity :

The second modification that was requested by BVV/SD was for an additional 833 AF per year

of recovery capacity. If accepted by IRWD, the increased capacity would be used to recover

BVV/SD's share of water delivered to the Strand and Stockdale 
'West 

Ranches during the one-

year program, thus augmenting the annual rate of return from 6,667 AF per year to 7 ,500 AF per

year. This increased rate would not apply to the future return of water that would be recharged

outside of the one-year program. Considering that the equipping of the wells on the Stockdale

West Ranch is nearly complete, staff determined that this increased rate of return would have no

impact on other IRWD exchange programs or upon its ability to recover water for use by IRWD.

Schedule for Addirional Transþrs to IRWD:

The final modification requested by BV\MSD was to the schedule for additional transfers to

IRWD should BVV/SD delay requesting return deliveries of its share of the water recharged in

the one-year program. The revised schedule would shorten the time it would take for l00%o of
the water to be deemed transferred to IR\MD while giving BVWSD additional time to request

return deliveries before having to transfer additional water to IRV/D. The revised schedule

would not affect additional transfers of water to IRWD as a result of future recharge events that

are not part of the one-year program. Staff considers the proposed modification to the schedule

to be fair and equitable.

Revised One-Year Program lætter Agreement:

In order to avoid a lost opportunity to capture high-flow Kern River water, staff worked with
legal counsel to expedite the preparation of a letter agreement for the one-year program that

incorporated BVWSD's requested revisions to the one-year program terms. Staff reviewed the

revised terms and agreement with the Supply Reliability Programs Committee on March 30,

2017. The Committee concurred with the fair and equitable revisions to the term sheet and

authorized the General Manager to proceed on an urgent necessity basis with the execution of the

letter agreement that would facilitate the immediate delivery of BVWSD water to both the Strand

and Stockdale West Ranch and to present the executed agreement for ratification by the full
Board of Directors. The fully executed agreement is attached as Exhibit"A". Staff recommends

that the Board ratify approval of the executed agreement.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

The total cost of the IRV/D share of water under the proposed recharge program is estimated to

range from $50 to $85 per AF, depending upon recovery costs. Pursuant to the revised terms, if
after Year Seven BVWSD has not recovered its water, IRWD shall compensate BVWSD for
additional water transferred from BVV/SD to IRWD in excess of 507o at BVV/SD's then current



Action Calendar: Ratification of Agreement for One-Year Program to Augment Recharge Using
Stockdale West Recharge Facilities
April I0,2017
Page 4

State'Water Project Table A Variable Operations, Maintenance, Power and Replacement unit
cost rate for water. The current estimated cost of the additional water is approximately $27 per

AF.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

In compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the California Public
Resources Code Section 21000 et. seq., and per the California CEQA Guidelines in the Code of
Regulations, Title 14, Division 6, Chapter 3, Rosedale as lead agency filed a Notice of
Determination for the Stockdale Integrated Banking Project Final EIR with the County of Kern
on December 8,2015, and with the State Clearinghouse on December 9,2015. IRWD, as a

responsible agency, filed a Notice of Determination with the County of Orange on Decernber 14,

2015, with the California State Clearinghouse on December 15, 2015, and with the County of
Kern on December 2I,2015. The banking of BVV/SD high flow Kern River water available

from BVWSD pre-1914 water rights is consistent with the sources evaluated in the Stockdale

Final EIR as well as the Final EIR for the Strand Ranch Integrated Banking Project. A Final EIR
for the Buena Vista'Water Management Project (BVWMP) was prepared, certified and the

project approved by BVV/SD. The BVWMP Final EIR covers the delivery of BVWSD high
flow Kern River water to water banking facilities such as the Strand and Stockdale Integrated

Banking Projects and including Rosedale facilities.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

The revised terms and agreement with BVV/SD for a one-year program to augment recharge

using the Stockdale West recharge facilities was reviewed and approved by the Supply

Reliability Programs Committee on March 31.,2077.

RECOMMENDATION:

TTIAT THE BOARD RATIFY APPROVAL OF THE AGREEMENT WITH BUENA VISTA
V/ATER STORAGE DISTRICT FOR A ONE-YEAR PROGRAM TO AUGMENT
RECHARGE USING STOCKDALE \MEST RECHARGE FACILITIES.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit "A)2 - Fully Executed Agreement for the One-Year Program to Augment Recharge

Using Stockdale West Recharge Facilities



EXHIBIT ''A''

;

March 3l,L0l7

Honorable Board of Directors
Buena Vista Water Storage District
P.O. Box 756
525 N. Main $ffeet
Büttonwillow, CA 93206

Re: One-Year Program to Augment Recharge Using Stockdale West Recharge Facilities

Dear Board Membe¡s:

Ple¿se be advised that the Board of Directors of frvine Ranch Water District ("IRWD") has

¿"i.*in"¿ to proceed with the one-year augmentatio! Program described in th" 9l:y:l{ìfd
Term Sheet (the t'One-Year P'rogrâm") with Buena Vista Water Storage Ðistrict (í'BVV/SD")
(IRWD and BVWSD collectively are refened to as the o'Parties" and each individually may be

iefened to as a "Party"). The Parties hereby agree that the One-Year Program will be

implernented as described in the '¡Terms for a One'Year lqcharS¡ Program to A'ugm-ent

Recharge Under the Agreement Between lrvine Ranch lVater Dlstrictand Buena Vista

Water $to""g. District*Using Stockdale West Recharge Facilities" (the "Term Sheet") which

is attached heieto as Exhibit *À" and incorporated hereín by ttris reference. The One-Year

Progtam wilt be governed by the terms and conditions of this letter (the "Letter Agreement") and

the îerm Sheet, 'rìrcluding as specified and incorporated in the Term Sheet certain terms and

conditions of the Agreemônt for Water Acquisition by lrvine Ranch Water District from Buena

Vista Water Management Program executed December 22, 2010 and datcd as of January I , 201 1

(the "IRWD/BV Exchange Agreemenf').

In signing below, each of the Parties represents and warrants to the other Pafly that each is a duly

orguñi"rã or constituted entity, with alfrequisite power to carry out its'obligâtions under the

Te-rm Sheet and this Letter Agreement, and that the execution, delivery and performance of these

documents have been duly authorizedby all necessary âçtion ofthe board ofdirectors or other

governing body,of such Party, and shalinot result in a'violation of such Parly's otganizational

documents. The,Parties further agre€ âs follows:

l. Amendments: No amendment of the Term Sheet or this Letter-{Ereement shall be

binding upon the párti"r unless it is in writing and executed by both of the Parties.

Z, 'Ëurthr;g Agliop: The Pa¡ties agree to and shall take such further action and execute and

deliver sucÈ á¿Aiiionat docurnents as may be reasonably required to effectuate the One-Year

Program, consistent with each and all ofihe terms and conditions of the Term Sheet and this

Letter Agreement.

A-1



Buena Vista rffater Storage Distriot
March 3l,2Ùn
Page2

3. Assignment: No Party shall assign or othewise hansfer its rights or obligations in, under
or to the One-Year Program, the Term Sheeto or this Letter Agreement, in whole or in part,
without the prior wrítten consent of the other Party. Atl covenants and agreements contained in
the Term Sheet and this Letter Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefìt of the Parties'
respective successors and permitted assigns.

4. Joint Drafring and Negrtiation: The Term Sheet and this Letter Agreement have been
jointly negotiated and drafted, The language of each shall be construed as a whole according to
its fair meaning and without regard to or aid of Civil Code Section 1654 or similar judicial rules
of construction. Each Party acknowledges that it has had the opportunity to seek the advice of
experts and legal counsel prior to executing saÌd documents and that it is fully aware of and
understands all oftheir respective terms and the legal consequençes thereof.

5. Rcpresentations: Each Party represents to the other Parry that all representations madc by
it pursuant to the Agreement a^re true and accurate as of the date of this Letter Agreement.

By its signature hereon, IRWD eccepts the Term Sheet as amended and supplemented by
the terms and provisions contained in this Letter Agreement. Please indicate the acceptance of
BVWSD ofthe Term Sheet, as amended and supplemented by the terms and provisions
contained in this Letter Agreement, by signing and retuming the enclosed copy. Thank you for
your cooperation.

IRWD intends that this Letter Agreement and the Term Sheet are consistent with, and are
entered into by IRWD pursuant to, that certain Water Banking and Exchange Program
Agreement (Stockdale West and Stockdale East Properties) between Rosedale-Rio Bravo lVater
Storage Distríct and lrvine Ranch Water District dated as of January 25,2016.

This Letter Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original, and when taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

Very truly yours, Àpproved

IRVTNE H WATER DISTzuCT

Ceneral Manager

READ, APPROVED AND ACCEPTED:

BUENA STO

/lr'¿¿ ¡L -

as to form:

(

Title: â

A-2



t

I

Summary of Terms
March 31,2017

EXTIIBIT "A''

Terms for a One.Year Recharge Program to
Augment Recharge Under the Agreement Between

Irvine Ranch Water District and

Buena Vista \ryater Storage District
Using Stockdale lVest Recharge Facilities

GEI.{ERAL TERM,g

Irvine Ranch Water District (the "IRWD"); Buena Vista Watçr Storage
District (the "BV')

IRWD and BV seek to carry out a one-year recharge program ("Recharge
Program') to augment the recharge capacities under the IRWD Water
Exchange Program established in the long-term Agreement for Water
Acquisition by IRWÞ from BV Water Management Program that was
executed on December 22,70ll,0 ("IRWD/BV Exchange Agreement').
Recharge would be augmented through the delivery of BV Exchange
\ffater to IRWD's Stockdale V/est property on a 2-for-l basis consistent
with the IRWD/BV Exchange Agreement as described in this term sheet
("Term Sheet"). Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defïned
shall have the same meanings as are given to such terms in the IRWD/BV
Exchange Agreement.

April l,2017 (the "Effective Date').

One year from the Effective Date, terminating on March 30, 2018,

IRWD has constructed recharge facilities at its Stockdale West property in
Kem County, California. These facilities consist of approximately 259
acres of recharge basins and appurtenant facilities to convey water to the
Stockdale West properly from the Strand Ranch Integrated Banking
Project and a tumout from the Cross Valley Canal that is expected to be
operational in spring 2017. By augmenting recharge abilities under the
IRWDiBV Exchange Agreernent, the Recharge Program will provide
improved wâter management and reliability, The Recharge Program may
include use of recovery wells on Stockdale West which have been
constructed and expected to be operational in Summer 2017.

The IRWD/BV Exchange Agreement provides for storage of BV
Exchange Water on a 2-for-l basis consistent with the BV Water
Management Program that includes a Water Exchange Frogram that
allows BV to more effectively and beneficially manage BV's water
resources. The IRWD/BV Exchange Agreement allows BV to supply up

I

Entities:

Effective Date:

I enn:

Stockdale West:

Exchange Program:

A-3



Non-Binding Effect:

Gcneral,Expenses:

CEQACompliance:

Permit Costs;

Water Rights:

Source of Water:

Quantity:

Summary of Terms | 2
March 31,2017 I

to 17,500 AF of BV Exchange Water ín any given year for recharge at the
Strand Ranch Integrated Sanling Project und prouídes for IRWDìo retum
fifty percent (50%) of the water less losses at a rate of no more than 6,667
AF in any given year. As consideration, the remainder of the water is
deemed transferred to IRWD with provisions for additionaltransfers that
are dependent on time length of storage. The IRWD/BV Exchange
Agreement has a term through January 13, 2039, extendable by tñe parties,

This Term Sheet is intended to be a statement of the terms of the proposed
transaction. It is subject to the execution of a letter agreement ("ietter
Agreement") by IRWD and BV inclusive of the terms and conditions set
forth herein.

Each party shall be responsible for its own fees and expenses arising out
of the negotiation and execution of agreements related to this transaction,
obøining necessary approvals, and the like.

Both partíes shall comply with CEQA and cooperate with one another
with respect to CEQA compliance for the proposed Recharge Program.
BV was the lead agency with respect to CEQA compliance ior its gV
Water Management Program, which included the Water Exchange
Program, and adopted a Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) on
January 12,2010. IRWD was a responsible agency with respect to CEeA
compliance for the Stockdale Integrated Banking Project, including the
delivery of BV Exchange Water to the Stockdale West, and adopted a
Final EIR on December 14, 2015. IRWD was a responsible agency with
respect to CEQA cdmpliance for the Strand Ranch integrated Éaoking
Project, and adopted a Final EIR on May 27,2008. BV and IRWD shall
each be responsible for its own fees and costs associated with future or
additional CEQA compliance regarding its participation in the Recharge
Program, including litigation expenses if any.

As provided in the IRWDiBV Exchange Agreement (Section l(F)).
However, no permit costs are expected for the Recharge Program.

As provided in the IRWD/BV Exchange Agreement (Section l(G);
Section 3(B) (iÐ (4)).

nscrJÂ&qp *q6rvlÞFrrAtiow rE,Fl. s

As provided in the IRWD/BV Exchange Agreement (Section 2(AXi)).

Up to 12,500 additional acre-feet (AF) of water during the one year term
hereof ("Augmentation Water"), to augment the I 7,500 AF of B V
Exchange Water that BV is allowed to supply to the Strand Ranch
Integrated Banking Project as specified in the IRWD/BV Exchange
Agreement, resulting in a total of 30,000 AF of BV Exchange Wáter to be

A-4



i

Summary of Terms
March 3l,Z0l7

rccharged during the Recharge Pn:gram. The Augmentation Water is to
be stored in an account within the Stockdale Integrated Banking Project
within the estimated storage capacity of 26,000. Th" ur" of *r¡i storage
capacity in the Stockdale lntegrated Banking Project will not increase the
dedicated storage capacity amount as specified in the IRWD/BV
Exchange Agreement. The Recharge Program shall augment or increase
the existing annual recovery capacity of 6,667 AF as provided in the
IRïVD/BV Exchange Agreement for delivery of IRWD Retum Water ro
BV by an annual amount of 833 AF. The resulting 7,500 AF augmented
recovery capacity willbe used to make IRWD Retum Water deliveries to
BV associated with this Recharge Program and shalt not augment or
increase future IRWD Return l¡Våter deliveries not associated with this
Recharge Program.

As provided in the IRTvVD/BV Exchange Agreement (Se*ion 2(Axiii)).

As provided'in th" IRWD/BV Exohange Agreement (Section 2(AXIV)).

As provided in the IRWD/BV Exchange Agreement (Section 2(A) (v)).
Norwithstanding that recharge of the Augmentation Wâter will occur on
the Stockdale West property, the location of storage, recovery, retum and
delivery points shall be the same as for water other than Augmentation
Water.

The provisions governing the Additional Transfened Water specified in
the IRWD/BV Exchange Agreement (Section 2(A) (vii)) shall apply but
shatl be modified withiespãct ro rhe j0,000 nr'of riv Éxchangä'water
recharged through this Recharge Program æ shown in the following tabte
and shall not affect the future consideration provided to IRWD as a result
of future BV Exchange Water deliveries in äccordance with Section 2(A)
(vii) ofthe IRWD/BV Exchange Agreement:

is the amou

J

Quality:

Availability:

Delivery Points;

Year Following
Recharge Event

Percent Tran¡ferred to
IRWD

Percent Returned to BV ¡f
Returned During e¡ Before the

lndlcated Year
50

7eë s0

3S2s

100*

A-5



Summary of Terms
March 31,2017

4

Other Terms: Except where otherwise specified above orthe context requires otherwise,
all terms and conditions of the IRWD/BV Exchange Agreement are
incorporated and will apply to this Term Sheet, the Letì'er Agreemenr and
dispositìon of the,4"ugrnelìtäti;ùn ìffater inetuding without limitarion,the
retum of water to BV, conshuction of facilities, indemnifrcations and
duties related to the operation, maintenance, power and repairs. For the
purpose of this Term Sheet and the Letter Agreement, such terms and
conditions of the IRWD/BV Exchange Agrecmcnt shall be read and
construËd as though references therein to the Agreement or the words
"herein," "hereof," and the like were to this Term Sheet and the Letter
Agreement, and references to water included the Augmentation Water.

A-6


	Agenda
	#3: Workshop: FY 2017-18 Operating Budget and Proposed Rates and Charges
	Proposed FY 17-18 Operating Budget_.pdf
	Proposed Operating Budget Fiscal Year 2017-18
	Assumptions
	Summaries
	Administration
	Finance and Administrative Services
	Engineering
	Water Quality
	Water Operations
	Recycling Operations
	Maintenance
	Water Policy
	General Plant
	Labor

	#4: Ratify/Approve Board of Directors Attendance at Meetings and Events
	#5: Minutes of Board Meetings
	#6: Baker Water Treatment Plant Landscaping Construction Award
	#7: Planning Area 51, District 7 Capital Recycled Water Facilities
	#8: Annual Oracle Software Maintenance and Support Agreement Renewal
	#9: Audit Firm Extension for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017
	#10: Turtle Ridge Pipelines Rehabilitation Budget Addition and Consultant Selection
	#11: Technology Drive and Laguna Canyon Road Capital Recycled Water Facilities Contract Change Orders
	#12: Ratification of Agreement for One-Year Program to Augment Recharge Using Stockdale West Recharge Facilities



